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PART B. CONTENT

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. General information

Trading name: Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation

Bisiness Registration Certificate No.: 0302615063 issued by the Department of Planning and
Investment of Ho Chi Minh City for the first time on May 14, 2002, registered for the 17th

change on September 30, 2024
Charter capital: 1,480,035,180,000 VND
Chwner's investment capital: 1,480,035, 180,000 VNI

Address: Lot 46 Quang Trung Software Park, Tan Chanh Hiep Ward, District 12, Ho Chi

Minh City, Vietnam

Phone number: {028) 37159910
Fax; (028) 5437 1074

Website: www. saigontel.com

Stock code: 50T

Formation and development process:

2002

On May 14, 2002, SAIGONTEL was established and officially operated with a
charter capital of VIND10 billion. With the support given by Saigon [nvestment

Group and envisioning telecommunications as one of the most developed mdustries
in the future, right after its establishment, SAIGONTEL officially provided high-
speed [nternet service in Tan Tao Industrial Park and Viemam - Singapore Industrial

Park (VSIP).

2014

The company won the first big project of System [ntegration (SI): "Upgrading and '

expanding VolP 171 system” for Viet Nam Data Communication Compeny {VDC)
{one unit directly under Vietnam Posts and Telecommunications Corporation,

WINPT, and started its segment of software development.

2005

The Company was officially licensed by the Ministry of Post and
Telecommunications to provide ISP telecommunications services (Intemnet access
services). The Company's Kinh Bae ICT Park (in Bac Ninh) was conunenced with
an initial area of 30ha, and so did its Saigon [CT Building at Quang Trung Software
Park (in Ha Chi Minh City) which aimed to meet the requirements of the Company,

its customers and pariners.

2006

Aiming to meet the demand for human resources of information technology,
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SAIGONTEL coordinated with Hung Vuong University and the first [T human

resource training course for the Japanese market was opened.

2007 o In January 2007, SAIGONTEL became the founder {with 7% ol the charter
capital) of HCMC Hi-Tech Park [nfrastructure Development and [nvestment
Joint Stock Company.
o In February 2007, SAIGONTEL officially did business in Game Online in
Vietnam with Shaiya as its the first to be launched. Afier only one year of
release, Shaiya obtained many awards: The firm with well-known newly-
released game and the Online Intemational Game with the most impressive
graphic design of the yeat,

s On September 19, 2007, SAIGONTEL was officially licensed by the Mimsiry
of Information and Communications to provide OSP telecommunication
services (Online Service Provider).

2008 | On January 18, 2008, 43 million shares of the Company were officially listed on Ho
Chi Minh City Stock Exchange with SGT as the stock ticker,
2001 | SAIGONTEL became the major shareholder of Saigon Postel Corp. SFL.
2013 | SAIGONTEL marked officially its footprint in smartphone market by becoming the
exclusive distributor of Sharp smartphones; Haier smartphone in Vietnam,
2014 ¢ In November 2014, SAIGONTEL One Member Co,, Ltd, was established
and specialized in distributing telecommunications products and equipment.
During the last months of the year, SAIGONTEL One Member Co., Lid.
marked its footprnt by winning bids for many sizable projects, providing
telecommunications products and  equipment to  Viettel Military
Telecommunication JSC. and Viettel Global system, which generated maore
than 40% of the Company's revenue,
¢ In December 2014, the establishment of SAIGONTEL Distribution and
Service JSC marked the [CT (Information and Communication Technology)
divigion’s solid growth; in addition 1w the sirategic business category of
mohile phones, the Company was officially assigned by the Management to
do more business in various potential segments like leasing premises, doing
business in functional food items, and so on.
Also in 2014, the Company teansferred a part of the sharves of Saigon Color Media
JSC (SGC) 1o third party by which SGC was, since then, no longer a member
company of SAIGONTEL.
20015 | SAIGONTEL Service and Distribution Joint Stock Company, in its first year of
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operation, signed principle agresments with suppliers of big and prestigious brands
in the world, such as: Plantronics, Seagate, Transcend, 3sixt, Zadex, etc. o

exclusively distribute some product lines in Yietnam.

2016

s On September 6, 2016, SAIGONTEL entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding which marked the first step of cooperation between
SAIGONTEL and PetroVietnam Oil Corporation (PVoil) in petroleum
business in industrial parks.

Also in 2016, besides the remarkable milestones of the pavent company, a member
company, Service and Distribution Joint Stock Company (5D} also became the
exclusive distributor of Seagate brand for external hard drives, HP components in

Wietnam.

2017

e [0 March 2017, SAIGONTEL concluded an agreement with China
Unicom America to become a partner providing intemnativnal
telecommunications infrastructure services in the 1S,

o  On September 19, 2017, SAIGONTEL signed a memorandum of
understanding with FICT - the largest Transportation Group in Fujian
province as a cooperation in transportation, logistics, warehousing,
database development, big data setup, transport vocational education and
training.

s InSeptember 2017, SAIGONTEL became a partner of Aipac to provide
high-tech sotutions in Sillicon Yalley, USA and Private Mobile,

On November 27, 2017, A Petroleum Store which was a jont venture between

SAIGONTEL and PetroVietnam Oil Corpoeration (PVoil) at Dai Dong Hoan Son
Industrial Park.

2018

As a strategic partner of Microsoft, SAIGONTEL organized an exhibition on
wchnology  solutions for smart  industrial  park  development. SMART
INDUSTRIAL PAREK, at Dai Deng Hoan Son industrial park to introduce

technology solutions 1o enterprises.

2019

« On May 13, 2019, a cooperation agreement was signed by and between
SAIGONTEL and Viettel Group to build a model smart industrial park.

s  On September 16, 2019, a strategic cooperation agreemenl was signed by
and between SAIGONTEL and Australian Advisory to attract international
investment in both Vietnam and Australia.

On Octoher 8, 2019, topping out ceremony of SAIGONTEL Central Park Project

Annual Report 2024




took place.

2020

2020 was a year of significant transformation in SAIGONTEL business
structure, with its development oriented towards a "industry - urban -
service" model.

On January 02, 2020, a Memorandum of Understanding was signed by and
between SAIGONTEL ard Da Nang Board of Investment Promotion and
Support to officially became the city's representative in promoting and
attracting investment in Da Nang City.

On January 16, 2020, a Memorandum of Understanding was sigred by and
between SAIGONTEL and SkyXSolar Joint Stwock Company to establish a
company operating in the development and construction of rooftop selar
power projects in industrial parks owned, managed, or coordinated by
SAIGONTEL, its affiliates or partners.

In January 2020, the People's Committes of Bac Ninh province issued a
decision on the establishment of Dai Deng - Hoan Son 11 industrial park with
the project scale of 96ha, and total investment of more than VNDI1,000
billion. Accordingly, the industrial land bank of SAIGONTEL continued to
increase, which quickly drew attention of many large investors.

On March 10, 2020, a strategic cooperation agreement was signed by and
between SAIGONTEL and Saigon - Hue Investment Joint Stock Company
aiming to jointly develop Saigon - Chan May Industrial Park and Non-Taniff
Zone in Chan May Economic Zone.

In July 2020, the Social Housing Project of Bau Tram Lakeside Urban Area,
Da Nang was comimenced by SAIGONTEL's member company, Saigon
Urban Investment and development Joint Stock Company. It was expected
that the project could be handed over in CH/2022 to mest the urgent housing
needs of workers in and around industrial parks.

In August 2020, SAIGONTEL entered into a joint venture with SkyXSolar
{under Vinacapital) to establish SkyXSAIGONTEL Joint Stock Company
to develop rooftop solar power projects in industrial parks owned by
SAIGONTEL and its affiliates. Immediately after its establishment,
SkyXSAIGONTEL successfully signed a contract to conduet roofiop solar
power for Euwrowindow Central plant in Da Mang, and set a goal of
successfully developing S0++MW within the next 2 years with expecied
total investment of USD34 million.

In September 2020, the People’s Committes of Da Nang City, Danang Hi-
Tech Park and Industrial Zones Authority formally held an investment
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certificate handover ceremony for SAIGOMNTEL's warehouse For lease
project in Da Mang hi-tech park with phase-1 scale of 15ha, and total
invesiment of VND600 billion. SAIGONTEL's warehouse for lease area
was planned with a total scale of 3(ha,

« On October 23, 2020, a business cooperation contract was signed by and
hetween SAIGONTEL and Asian Coast Development Company Limited
(ACDL) with the goal of cooperating and establishing a jeint venture
company to implement and develop the Entertainment Complex project in
Binh Chau Town, Xuyen Moc District, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province, The
project was a combination of resort tourism maodel with horse racing, which
was expected to contribute to changing the resort tourism market in the

coastal city. A joint venture company would also be established by the two |
parties to operate and develop the project in the future. |

o [n December 2020, SAIGONTEL entered into an alliance with Microsoft {a
leading technology corpotation in the US) — PWC (one of the world's top 4
strategic consulting firms) and NGS (a parner to implement technology
solutions) 1o advise on the "digital wansformation” strategy for BR-VT and
Long An provinces.

(n December 25, 2020, SAIGONTEL was distinguishingly honored by [ra Nang
city as @ unit that had made a great deal of contributions in promoting the city's
investment attraction in the period of 2016 - 2020 with various effective activities
such as: successfully held the first online conference in promoting Korean
investment in Vietnam in December 2020; successfully attracted the project of
Semiconductor Component Factory Uniled State Enterprise, LG and some other
partners to invest in Da Nang hi-tech park; connected the city with South K orean
high-tech associations to sign cooperation agreements. This mark once aguin
affirmed SAIGONTEL's ability to attract investment to projects and industrial parks
in which SAIGONTEL was investing. It was also a premise for many other
provinees such as Long An, BR-VT, Hai Duong, Thai Nguyen, Quang MNinh, ete. 1o
trust and be willing to sign cooperation agreements by which SAIGONTEL winild

become their investment promotion representative in the following years,

2021

o [n January 2021, SAIGONTEL agreed to sponsor Long An and Thai
Nguyen in their planning for the socio-economic development and digital
transformation.

s On January 25, 2021, SAIGONTEL and SMBL Co., Lid beld a ceremony

of signing strategic cooperation in the plan to attract Korean investment in
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industrial zones and hi-tech zones in which SAIGOMTEL has been 'lm’-es-t'ing-
i Vietnam,

On April 13, 2021 Ori Garden Social Housing project invested by Saigon
Da Nang [nvestment foint Stock Company (SDN) and Saigon Urban
Development and JSC (SGU)} - a member company of Saigon
Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation  {SAIGONTEL)
ccosystermn was commenced by SAIGONTEL as the project developer.

On Apdl 15, 2021, SAIGONTEL ocbtained the decision to establish 3
industrial clusters: Tan Phu | industrial cluster, Tan Phu 2 industrial cluster,
Luong Son industrial cluster - Song Cong city in Thai Nguyen province.

On May 14, 2021, SAIGONTEL signed a memorandum of understanding
to finsnce the infrastructure development and the ceremony of signing a
financing contract for planning Hai Duong provinee for the period 2021-
2030, vision through 2030.

On September 22, 2021, SAIGONTEL Long An Co., Lid., a subsidiary of
SAIGONTEL obtained the investment certificate for Construction
Investment and intrastructure business project in Nam Tan Tap Industrial
Park.

On September 22, 2021, an agreement was signed by and between

SAIGONTEL & KBC and Quantum Corporation (USA) to attract an
investment of USD30 billion in Vietnam.

On December 11, 2021, Thai Neuyen People’s Committee and Saigontel -
NGS alliance officially opened the first digital citizenship platform of the
provinee - "ThaiNguyen [D" application.

On December 17, 2021, SAIGONTEL and Ecologic Engineering Company signed
an investment cooperation agreement between Vietnam and India in infrastructure

development, industry, and innovation with an investment value of up to USD4

2022

» The Company completed its public offering to get its Charter capital

increased to VIND1 480,035, 180,000.

On February 11, 2022: SGT and SMBL signed an investment promotion
agreement in South Korea market

From February 24-26, 2022: SGT, Vinacapital, and Aurous signed an MOU
to invest in a complex of Industrial Packs and Serviee and Residential Urban
Areas in Bac Giang up to USDZ.5 killion.
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e From May 11-17, 2022: KBC, 3GT GROUP & its member companies
attracted USDS billion of invesiment from US partners

s June 17, 2022: SGT successfully organized the Vietnam - Korea Investment
Promotion seminar with the theme "Investment strategy in the context of the
new normal and promoting innovation",

s June 22, 2022: SGT and VCCI delegation & leaders of provinces worked
with The Korea Federation of SMEs (KBIZ)

e June 24, 2022: SGT acted on behalf of the businesses to attend the Vietnam
Investment Promotion Conference in Korea

o July 30, 2022: SGT and Long An province worked with the Vietnamese
Ambassador in South Korea on investment promotion activities.

|
o August 26, 2022: SGT and 5TS Development Joint Stock Company signed

a memorandum of understanding to cooperate in developing a chain of
commercial and service zones in Vietnam.

o Apgust 23, 2022: Long An province, together with SGT and the partners,
signed 02 cooperative MOUs in training and developing high-quality human
resources, contributing to the socig-¢conomic development of the Mekong
Delta in general and Long An provinee in particular.

o August 26, 2023: SAIGONTEL signed a memorandum of understanding
with STS Development Company - MBC PlayBe Company and Long An
Provinee on developing a 150ha multi-purpose complex in Long An.

« Movember 14-19, 2022: Chairman Dang Thanh Tam attended the 29th Asia-
Pacitic Economic Cooperation Forum (APEC) in Thailand with the Heads
of state and economic delegations of 21 member countries with the goal of
promoting cooperation  for economic recovery, promoting balanced,
sustainable, and inclusive growth, and comprehensive connectivity,

s [December 06, 2022; SGT & MIK Group Vietnam Joint Stock Company and

a consortium of leading South Korean investors were interested in investing

in Long An in health, education, technology. culture, and trade services at
Vietnam - Korea Business Forum.,

December 08, 2022: Vietnam Chamber of Commerce and Industry (VCCI), The

Korea Federation of SMEs (KBiz) with a support given by SAIGONTEL

successfully held “Backdu Forum 20227 leading South Korean SMEs to Viemam,

2023 s 20/2/2023: The People's Committee of Dong Nai Province and the
SAIGONTEL - MNGS Technology Alliance officially inaugurated the
provinee's first digital eitizen platform - the "Dong Nai Digital Citizen
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Platform.”

22/05/2023: The Department of Planning and Tnvestment of Thai Nguyen
Provinee issued & Centificate of Registration of Establishment for the Branch
of Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock Company in Thai
Nguyen Province, with the activity code 030261 5063-005.

25/05/2023; The groundbreaking ceremony for the construction of high-tech
Factory premises for rent by Saigontel in Da Nang wok place at the Da Nang
Hi-Tech Park - Phase 1 (Lot A23, Street Mo, 10, Da Mang Hi-Tech Park,
Hoa Lién Commune, Hoa Vang Distriet, Da Mang City), undertaken by
Saigontel - SGTHitech Investment and Development Company Limited, a
member of the SAIGONTEL Group.

26/05 - 29/05/2023; SGT, together with the Long An Provincial Delegation
led by the Deputy Secretary of the Provincial Party Committee and the
Chairman of the Provincial People's Committee, Mr. Nguyen Van Ut
visited and worked in Secul, South Korea.

06/06/2023: Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock Company
{SAIGONTEL) and a delegation of doctors from Japan held a working
seasion with the Thai Nguyen Provincial People's Committee to propose
cooperation with hospitals and enterprises operating in the healthcare sector
in the province to implement stem cell therapy for some common diseases.

09/06/2023: SGP and SHP weleomed a delegation from the Dong Nai
Provineial Party Committee for a visit and exchange of experiences in social
housing development in Hai Phong City.

11/06/2023: SGT and SGU welcomed a delegation from the Dong Mai
Provincial Party Committee for a visit and exchange of experiences in social
housing development in Da Nang City.

28/06/2023: SGT, wpether with the Southeast Asia Impact Alliance (SIA),
visited and worked with the Institute of Economic Research, Taiwan ([TER)
in Taipei City; Dr. Julie Tan - Director of Research Institute No. 9, received
the delegation,

3I0/06/2023: The Branch of Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint
Stock Company in Bec Ninh successfully signed a formal contract for the
transfer of factory office premises and lease of land at lot C6-1-2 with the
Investment and Trade Limited Company Dinh Dinh Vietnam - specializing
in manufacturing plastic products, installation of imported machinery and
equipment, with a total contract value of over ¥ND 30 billion.

25/07/2023: Al the Planning and Investment Promotion Conference, Long
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An Provinece exchanged a Memorandum of Undesstanding (MOL) between
the Provincial People’s Committee and Saigon Telecommunication
Technology Joint Stock Company (SAIGONTEL) and its partners under
SAIGONTEL's Green Infrastructure Development Allisnce, ineluding
Energy Capital Vietnam Company (ECV), Allotrope Partners Limmited
Liability Company (AP), Chart Industries Company (CI), Babcock &
Wilcox Company (B&EW)...

08/092023: The Dong Mai Provincial People’s Committee organized a
gigning ceremony of & memorandum  of understanding  between
SAIGONTEL's Creen Infrastructure Development Alliance and the
Provinge. The memorandum relates to cooperation on green growth for the
enlite province.

13/09/2023: Witnessed by VCCL, leaders of the Long An Provincial People's
Committee, Hung Yen Province, Soc¢ Trang Province, Saigontel, and |
partners Valley Campus Japan, Valleycampus Saigon Company Limited - |
Japan signed a MOU on cooperation to deploy felds: (1} Training, |
providing human resources: training, retraining in real-life environments for

learners and other components in the agriculture research, production and

consumption chain; supply highly skilled manpower to meet Japan's strictest

requirements m agricultore, and ICT industry; (2) Platforms/Solutions:

deploy high-tech agricultural [oT applications, apply Blockchain technology

to frace origing, and monitor carbon emissions; (3) Research and

Deploviment: transfer technology/equipment solutions for projects in high-

tech agriculture, environmental sectors applying new technologics of
Industry 4.0 m Vietnam.

160972023; Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock Company
(Saigontel) accompanied the leadership of the Market Development and
Science & Technology Enterprise Bureau (MNatec), expenis from the Asian
Development Bank (ADB) in a working session with Long An Province.

21/9/2023; Prime Minister Pham Minh Chinh witnessed the ceremony ot
exchanging cooperation documents between the People’s Committee of Hai
Phong City and Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock
Company (Saigontel) together with Kinh Bac Urban Development
Corporation (KBC), Energy Capital Vietnam Company (ECY), and the Port
of Los Angeles - USA (POLA), Through this cooperation agreement, the
partics will jointly research and develop the Nam Do Son Integrated Port
project in Hai Phong City, building MNam Do Son Port into a modem gateway
port, where domestic and international goods are transshipped in Vietnam,
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22/9/2023: The Ori Garden social housing project, undertaken by Saigon
Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock Company (Saigontel) — a
member company of the Saigontel ccosystem, was honored (0 receive the
"Project worth living in 2023" award,

25/00 - 27092023 A delegation of Talwanese enterprises - the world's
second-largest semiconductor industry, visited and worked with ministries
and departments in Hanoi. Accompanying the delegation on this business
ip to Vietnam was Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock
Company (SAIGONTEL).

510/2023: Thar Neguyen Provincial People's Committee, in collaboration
with Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock Company
(Saigontel), organized under the auspices of the Viemamese Embassy in
South Korea and Hwaseong CCI, an investment promaotion seminar with the
theme "Thai Nguyen - Successful destination for investors” which was
successfully held.

231W2023; SGT facilitated a investment connection dialogue between
Long An Province and Korean enterprises. Particulacly, the event was
attended by leaders of nearly 20 leading Korean conglomerates and
companies in fields such as finance, banking, retail, real estate, construction,
food, green industry, including Lotte, apM Group, SNS VINA, Industnal
Bank of Korea, Korea Development Ban, AJ Networks. Cl Cheiljedang
Food, ZENITH, SMBL, Wooyang Shipping, Socsan Group, TORAY, ECO-
uc, LS.,

20/10/2023: Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock Company
(Saigontel), together with the Asian Development Bank (ADB) and Valey
Campus Saigon Company (VCS), had a working session with the Long An
Provincial People's Committee on traming and developing human resources
in the province to achieve green growth objectives.

11-17/11/2023: SGT, along with a high-level Vietnamese delegation,
attended the APEC 2023 High-level Week. During the event, Saigontel's
Green Allisnce signed a memorandum of cooperation to research
ppporiunities for reducing emissions and antificial

2024

January 19, 2024: Held a working session with a delegation of U.S.-
Taiwanese enterprises in Long An to promote cooperation in the

semiconductor sector and green growth,

January 22, 2024: Signed an agreement with Micro Electricity
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(Taiwan) to develop renewable energy in industrial parks across
Vietnam.

« March 25-26, 2024: Co-organized a green growth seminar in Long An
and Dong Nai in collaboration with the Green Alliance.

o April 1,2024: Welcomed a delegation of [sracli billionaires exploring
investment oppottunities in industrial and energy infrastructure in
Vietnam.

« April 22-26, 2024: Participated in Long An Province’s mvestment
promotion  delegation o South Korea, focusing on  high-tech
industries, renewable energy, and green industrial parks.

o  April 26, 2024: Co-hosted the seminar "New Supply Chain Value |
Chains” in South Korea with the participation of Samsung, Hyundai.
Daewoo, and others.

« May 31, 2024: Coordinated with the Peaple’s Committee of Lao Cai
Province to organize an online seminar titled “Mineral Development
Potential in Lao Cai™ in Ho Chi Minh City.

« June 18, 2024 Collaborated with the Australian Consulate General to

organize the forum “Green Growth in Vietnam.”™
«  July 5, 2024: SAIGONTEL — OITI (SoiHub) Open Innovation Center

organized a conference and training program on the semiconducior
sector at the Long An Provincial People’s Commutice,

»  August 2024: In collaboration with SoiHub, SAIGONTEL organized
4 “Training Program for Human Resource Development in the
Semiconductor Industry™ for Long An provincial leaders in Taiwan.

«  September 25, 2024: SAIGONTEL became a member of the C4IR and
co-hosted the Ho Chi Minh City Economie Forum (HEF 2024).

«  October 25, 2024: Welcomed Keelung City Government (Taiwan) t.u
promote technological cooperation and innovation with SoiHub at
Techiraverse 2024 — the Open Innovation Day.

« October 2024; Held working sessions with ministries and agencies
including MOIT, MOST, and MPI during the visit of the US.
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delegation — Business FExecutives for National Security (BENS).

« MNovember 14, 2024: Accompanied the President of Vietnam in
welcoming the 11,8, Business Alliance — APEC delegation and signed
an agreement with P&G Tech to invest in a Data Center at Nam Tan
Tap Green Industrial Park, Long An.

«  December 2024: Co-organized the Long An Province Culture — Sports

~ Tourism Week as a diamond sponsor of the program.

e

2. Business lines and locations
. Business lines
SAIGONTEL develops 03 main business arcas as follows:
& Telecommunications and Information Technology
s [eal Estate
s Project development and management consulting services
b, Business Area
SAIGONTEL's business operations are primarily concenteated in Ho Chi Minh City, Hanoi,
Bac Ninh, Long An, Thai Nguyen. Da Nang City, Ba Ria - Vung Tau, Hung Yen, Bac Giang,
and Quang Minh.
3, Information on the Governance model, business organization, and management
structure
a. Governance model
s General Meeting of Sharefolders: is the highest authority of the Company, comprising all
shareholders with voting rights. The General Meeting of Shareholders convenes annually or
extraordinarily, with at least one meeting per year. The General Meeting of Shareholders
has the following duties:
v To approve, amend, and supplement the Charter;
v Toapprove the Company’s development plan, approve 2nnual financial statements, awd
reports from the Board of Directors’ members and Member of the Board of Supervisors;
v To decide on the number of Board of Directors” members; to clect, remove, and dismiss
Board of Directors’” members, Member of the Board of Supervisors;
v (Other rights as stipulated in the Company's Charter,
s Board of Directors: is the body with full authority to exercise the rights and obligations of
the Company that do not fall under the authority of the General Merting of Sharcholders,

responsible for overseeing and directing business operations and affairs of the Company,
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supervising the General Director and other managers. The rights and obligations of the
Board of Directors are poverned by law, the Company's Charter, the quy ché nii bd ve quan
trj Cdng ty, and Resolutions of the General Meeting of Sharehalders.

Board of Supervisors: |s an agency under the General Meeting of Shareholders, elected by
the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of Supervisors performs the task of
representing sharcholders in controlling all business activities, governance activities, and
operations of the Company, The Board of Supervisors operates independently of the Board
of Directors and the General Director.

Board of Management: Appointed by the Board of Directors, responsible for orpanizing,
operating, and managing all daily production and business activities of the Company
according to the strategics and plans approved by the Company's Board of Directors and the
Pai hdi ddng C& dong. In addition, there are Deputy General Directors in charge of each
operational block of the Company, including: Deputy General Director in charge of the
[ndustrial Park block:; Deputy General Director in charge of Finance and Accounting;
Dieputy General Director in charge of the Technology block: Deputy General Director in
charge of the Urban Real Estate block: Deputy General Director in charge af Engingering,

b, Management apparals strnchure

1 porbagermwed PR
s g Ly

e

c. SUBSIDIARIES, AFFILIATES

Céng ty con: As of December 31, 2024, the Company has seven (07) Cong ly con.
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1. SAIGONTEL REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
BRC No.: 0106684254, issued on November 06, 2014, in: Hanoi City
Address: Floor 3 - Mo, 193, Trich Sai Street, Buoi Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi City
SAIGONTEL s stake: 35 Billion VND (equivalent to 70% ty & biéu quyé)
Main  business lines: Wholesaling and manufacturing  electromic  and
telecommunications equipment and components; Real estate business, qu:.rén gir dyng
diit owned, used or leased,...
1. KINH BAC INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
BRC No.: 0102319613, issued on I.'.ll:r 17, ?.Dlj'?. in: Hanoi City
Address: Floor 3 - No. 193, Trich Sai Sweet, Buoi Ward, Tay Ho District, Hanoi City
SAIGONTEL's stake: 46.243 Billion VND (equivalent to 14.85% ty 1€ biéu quyét)
Main business lines: Trading in machinery, telecommunications equipment,
electronic informatics, consulting on investment project preparation and construction
of worlks,...
3. SAIGON URBAN DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK
COMPANY
BRC No.: 0109049028, issued on December 31, 2019, in: Hanoi City
- Address: Floor 2, Building 2473, Ne. 6 Le Van Thiem, Thanh Xuan Trung Ward,
Thanh Xuan District, Hanoi City
_ SAIGONTEL's stake: 120 Billion VND {equivalent ta 60% ty 1€ biéu quyér)
Main business lines: Construction of houses, railways, roads, electrical works, water
supply and drainage; Installation of electrical systems; Brokerage agency: Wholesale
of materials: Real estate business; Advertising; Construction supervision,...
4. SAIGONTEL - THAI NGUYEN INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD
- BRC Mo.: 4601571894, issued on March 12, 2021, in: Thai Nguyen
- Address: House number 381, Luong Mgoc Quyen Street, Hoang Van Thu Ward, Thai

MNauyen City, Thai Nguyen Province
. SAIGONTEL’s stake: 1.383 Billion VIND (equivalent to 100% ty & biéu quyét)
- Main business lines: Real estate business, quven st dung dt owned, used or leased,...
5. SAIGONTEL - LONG AN COMPANY LIMITED
BRC No.: 1101977241, issued on February 18, 2021, in: Long An - B
. Address: No: 6A. Street Mo, 3, Tan Due Industrial Park, Due Hoa Ha Commune, Duc

Hoa District, Long An Province
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- SAIGONTEL's stake: 525 Billion VND {equivalent to 73% 1y 1¢ biéu quyé)
Main business lines: Real estate business, quyén sir dung dfit owned, used or leased, ...
6. SAIGONTEL HIGH-TECH INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CO., LTD
(SGHi-tech)
BRC Mo.: 0402079923, issued on January 20, 2021, in; Da Nang City
Address: 61A Nguyen Van Cu, Hoa Hiep Bac Ward, Lien Chieu District, Da Nang
City
Charter capital: 125 Billion VIND
SAIGONTEL's stake: 123 hillion VND (equivalent to 100% of voting ratio)
- Main business lines: Doing business in real-estate, land use rights of owner, users ot
leased land,...
7. QUANG YEN ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS CO., LTD.
BRC No.: 3702126669, issued on December 23, 2022 at: Quang Ninh
Address: A16-05 MonBay Urban Area, Hong Hai Ward, Ha Long City, Quang Ninh
Province, Vietnam
Charter capital: 230 Billion WND

SAIGONTELs stake: (*)
(*) At the tme of reporting, Saigon Telecom Technology Jeimt Stock Cempany had naf

contrifruted capital, and the Cdng ty con had not generated data.
Main business activities; Manufacturing electronic components
Affiliated company: As of December 31, 2024, the Company has five (05) affiliated
CORpanies.
1. SAIGON VINA TELECOMMUNICATIONS GARMENT JOINT STOCK
COMPANY
BRC No.: 0306192669, issued on October 30, 2008, in; Ho Chi Minh City
- Address: 300A-B Nguven Tat Thanh, Ward 13, District 4, Ho Chi Minh City
SAIGONTEL"s stake: 139.368 Billion YND {equivalent to 48.93% of the voling rate)

Main business lines: Real estate business, real estate brokerage consulting,

construction of all types ol houses, construction of road works, production of raw and
finished woven fabrics. garment production {excluding garments made from fur skin)

2. SKYX SAIGONTEL JSC
- BRC No.: 0316420753, issued on August 03, 2020, in: Ho Chi Minh City

Annual Report 2024 18

=
=

BT

P A

e




. Address: | Tth Floor, Sun Wah Building, 115 Nguyen Hue, Ben Nghe Ward, District
I, Ho Chi Minh City

- SAIGONTELs stake: 3,48 Billion VIND (equivalent to 30% of the voting rate)

- Main business lines: Solar power production; Retail of machinery and electronic
equipment; Management consulting activities; Architectural and related technical
consulting activities; Leasing of machinery, equipment and other tangible items.

3. LONG AN DEVELOPMENT INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- BRC No.: 1101977259, ssued on February 18, 2021, in: Long An

- Address: Lot 8A, Street No. 3, Tan Due Industrial Park, Duc Hoa Ha Commune, Duc
Hoa District. Long An Provinee

- SAIGONTEL’s stake: 600 Billion VND (equivalent to 40% of the voting rate)

- Main business lines: Construction of other civil engineering works,

*L EﬁIGﬂHTEL DISTRIBUTION AND SERVICE JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- BRC No.: 0313042600, issued on December 06, 2014, in: : Ho Chi Minh City

- Address: 3A Floor, No. 12 Pham Dinh Toai, Ward &, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City

- SAIGONTEL's stake: 29 40 Billion VIND {equivalent to 36.75% of the voting rate)

- Main business lines: Real estate business. Warchouse for rent. Trading in houses,

faetories.
5. SAIGONTEL STS VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
- BRC No.: 0318097177, issued an October 12, 2023, in: Ho Chi Minh City
- Address: 6th Floor, Ne, 12 Pham Dinh Toai, Vo Thi Sau Ward, Distriet 3, Ho Chi
Minh City, Vietnam
- SAIGONTEL's stake: 11,513 Billion YND {equivalent to 49% of the voting rate)
- Main business lines: Business of management consulting services, technical design
services for the completion of construction works.
1. ]-Jlleveh]}_ment Orientation
a. The Company's Main Objectives
In 2025, SAIGONTEL will continue to demonstrate its stability and steadfastness through
continuous improvement and research of new projects, along with a dynamic spirit and strong
development aspirations. With the Industry - Urban - Service model that SAIGONTEL is aiming
for, the company sets out goals to achieve outstanding achievements in the fufure:
s Industry: Complete the legal procedures and site clearance to commence construction of

Industrial Park and industrial cluster projects in 20235, Organize investment promotion
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activities, especially foreign investment into existing Industrial Park. SAIGONTEL will
continue to research and expand its land fund in Hung Yen, Dong Mai, and Can Tho
provinces with diverse project investment forms such as specialized economic zones,
ecological Indusirial Park, innovation centers, and business incubators.

o LUrban Areas: Accelerate the sale and hamdover of existing projects to customers. For
projects that have completed legal procedures in 2024, investment and complete
construction of synchronous technical infrasteucture will begin in 2025, At the same time,
continue to seck urban land funds, especially those adjacent to Industrial Park to develap
comprehensively for the locality.

s Services: In 2023, when SAIGONTEL's Industrial Park projects are gradually completed
and put into operation, SAIGONTEL will continue te maximize high-quality resources
and services that have been deploved from the early days of establishment, to continue
to exploit new customers who need to use telecommunications, intemmet, dign thoai,
bandwidth. etc. at these Industrial Park.

h. Medium and long-term development strategy:
The company focuses on developing according to business strategies with the orentation of the
Industrial Pavk - Urban - Service model. Accordingly, the specific strategies are as lollows:

s Industrial Park: Continue to deploy and complete synchronous infrastructure including
clean water supply, wastewater trestment, solar power, green trees, stc. al existing
Industrial Park {Dai Dong Hoan Son - Phase 2, Tan Phu 1&2, Mam Tan Tap, Workshop
at Da Nang Hi-Tech Industrial Park). Organize promotion sctivities ond call for
investment in existing Industrial Park, especially foreign investment. At the same time.
continue to seek and expand the land fund in potential locations in Dong Mai, Ba Raa -
Vung Tau, Can Tho to develop forms such as specialized economic zones, ecological
Industrial Park, Innovation Center, Business Incubator,

¢ Urban Areas: Deploy existing high-rise projects (Bau Tram Social Housing, 300A-B
Mguyen Tat Thanh Project) to soon bring high-guality products to the market. At the
same time, continue to focus on the work of planning and approving planning, design,
EIA and specialized agreements for the Hau Nghia town Urban Areas project.

e Services: Continue (o promote high-quality human resources, existing
telecommunications industry licenses, and services that have been deployed since its
establishment. In 20235, SAIGONTEL will focus on exploiting telecommunications
service packages at existing Industrial Park, Av the same time, focus on deploying the
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Innovation Center (SO Hub) with the main components: Co-Working Space Business,
Innovation Business (Consulting, Training and Investment Promotion, Sponsorship and
Calling for Capital), Training Business and Green Growth Business. [n addition, with 115
strengths and experience in real estate development, SAIGONTEL continues to provide
project management sérvices to companies inside and outside the group.
¢, The Company's sustainable development goals {environment, society and community)
and key programs related to the short and medium term:
In the context of globalization and the trend of green development becoming an essential
requirement, SAIGONTEL focuses on building a sustainable ndustrial ecosystem, promoting
the development of high-tech fields and the circular economy. The company aims to minimize
environmental impacts through the development of green Industrial Park (such as ccological
Industrial Park) and renewable energy infeastructure systems (solar power) at existing [ndustrial
Park. In 2023, SAIGONTEL will conperate in building greenhouse gas inventory programs for
key cooperating provinces, thereby creating a premise for designing carbon neutralization
solutions and plans towards converting into carbon neutral Industrial Park.
Furthermore, the establishment of the Green Alliance under the government's NetZero Carbon
initiative, with the participation of Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation
(SAIGONTEL) and its partners in SAIGONTEL's Green Infrastructure Development Alliance,
including Energy Capital Vietnam (ECV) and Allotrope Partners (AP), will continue to promote
and create solutions for green economic development progeoms in localities through workshops
and programs to disseminate and implement green growth goals.
In particular, SAIGONTEL always complies with legal regulations on environmental protection
and natural resource conservation, The company always focuses on raising awareness among its
staff in protecting water resources and encrgy resources, urging everyone to thoroughly
implement electricity and water saving measures, and have a good sense of protecting the green
and clean environment.
2. Risks
% Economic risks

Economic risks stemming from domestic and intemational macroeconomic fluctuations remain
one of the major challenges facing SAIGONTEL in the real estate sector, particularly in its two
current business areas: urban real estate development and industrial real estate.,

Although various international organizations such as the OECD and [MF have projected a global
economic recovery in 2025, risks related to geopolitical conflicts and a possible reversal in LS.

monetary policy remain significant. With the United States” new immigration and tax policies,
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there are concerns that inflation may return, potentially prompling the Federal Reserve Lo shift
toward monetary tightening by raising interest rates. This scenario could lead to continued
pressure on the USDAVND exchange rate, requiring Vietnam to take inflation-control measures,
which in tum may resull in a prolonged economic downturm.
In the event of an economic recession or reduced activity from foreign investors, the demand for
industrial land leasing and residential real estate purchases and investments may decline, causing
a potential drop in SAIGONTEL's revenue and profit in 2023,
An economic downturtt severely impacts the real cstate market, affecting demand, pricing,
financial activities, and project development. As a result, SAIGONTEL consistently develops
flexible sirategies, optimizes cash flows, and invests in technology and human resources to
overcome challenges and seize opportunities when the market recovers.

% Interest rate risk

[nterest rates are an important factor affecting SAIGONTEL's financial costs, cash flow and
business operations, especially in the current context where the Company has many rveal estate
projects that need to raise large amownts of capital for investment and development.
The Fed's three interest rate cuts in 2024 have farther motivated central banks around the world,
including the State Bank of Vietnam (SBV), to maintain low interest rates and stimulate
economic growth in 2024, However, the DXY* index in 2025 may still remain high, putting
exchange rate pressuve on the VND. The SBY may have to adopt a more flexible monetary
policy, balancing between the goals of controlling inflation and mainiaining economic growth,
When inflation increases, the SBY ofien uses monetary toals to control and restrain it, which
will affect bank lending rates and affect the company's financial operations.
In order to limit the impact of interest rate risk, SGT will analyze the competitive situation m the
market to obtain interest rates that are beneficial to the Company's objectives and still within its
risk management limits. In addition, with the goal of sustainable growth in recent years, the
company will take advantage of preferential loan programs 1o support sustainable development
from commercial banks to optimize borrowing costs.

F21 DXV frclex: alse known as the USD Index, i am fndex Wi meayures the strevigth of the US
dedfar (USDN goainst a basker of major world currencies, This currency haske! includes six
currencies from major US, wading partners: the Ewre (EUR). Jopanese Yen oJPY), British
Pownd (GBP), Cemaediem Dudfen (CAD), Sueedind Krong (SEE), ond Swisy Frane (CHEF)

@ Policy risks

As SAIGONTEL cperates in the fields of telecommunications and real estate, the Company faces
significant policy risks due to the complex nature and frequent changes in legal regulations,

Annual Report 2024 22




especially in the real estate sector.

The revised Land Law, Housing Law, and Real Estate Business Law, effective from August
2024, mark many policy changes for real estate businesses. [n particular, the new regulation in
Article 23 of the Real Estate Business Law requires real cstate project investors to collect
deposits of no more than 5% of the selling price, lease-purchase of houses, and construction
works formed in the future when they are eligible for business. This requires the company to
balance its capital flow more when developing projects. Furthermore, the Land Law (amended)
has specific regulations related to tightening land recovery, to enhance transparency, fairness,
and efficiency in land management. These new regulations may prolong project implementation
time and result in higher incurred costs, directly impacting the Company's cash flow and profits,
Although SAIGONTEL plans 1o develop the technology sector following the Government's
orientation, current laws do not have a complete legal framework for developing the digital
technology industry. Rapidly growing industries such a4 semiconductor technology and Al do
not yet have specific policies in Vietnam. This causes inadequacies in application, and the
management mechanism still has many shortcomings, As a result, it increases the time w0
complete legal procedures for investors, significantly affecting investment decisions in the
context that this is a rapidly developing and changing industry.

To avoid policy risks, SAIGONTEL will always proactively monitor and analyze changes in
|aws, maintain elose cooperation with management agencics to comply with regulations. At the
same time, consult with lawyers and experts to help businesses understand the regulations and
establish monitoring, updating, and adjustment mechanisms to handle risks promply.
Exchange rate risk

With business areas being khu cong nghidp real estate snd telecommunications, most of
SAIGONTEL's partners are foreign enterprises, so exchange rate fluctuations have a significant
impact on partners’ investment decisions. In 2025, if the monetary policies of countries such as
the United States and Europe reverse 1o tightening, the Vietnamese currency will depreciate, and
the profits from production, leasing, or operation in the khu cdng nghi¢p when converted into
foreign currencies will be reduced, thereby reducing the attractiveness of the khu cong nghicp
real estate market to foreign investors,

Therefore, the Company always monitors economic and political developments that affect
exchange rates to develop appropriate risk prevention scenarios through reciprocal contracts to
attract investors and create competitive advantages for SAIGONTEL's khu cong nghigp.
Competition risk

Currently, the Technology — Telecommunications sector in Vietnam is witnessing increasingly
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ferce competition from major corporations such as Viettel, VNPT, FPT, and Moebifone players
that possess comprehensive service ccosystems, strong hnancial capacity, and extensive
telecommunications infrastructure networks. Pressure in terms of pricing, service quality, and
competitiveness presents significant challenges for SAIGONTEL in maintaining market share
and expanding its business operations.
Meanwhile, the real estate sector is also experiencing intense competition as leading developers
such a5 Vingroup, Dat Xanh Group (IDXG), Sun Group, and Nam Long (NLG) are actively
laumeching  large-scale  integrated wrban projects combining residential, commercial,
entertainment, healtheare, and educational facilities. With superior advantages in financial
capacity and project execution expericnce, these corporations have created a considerable
competitive gap compared to mid-sized enterprises like SAIGONTEL.
To mitigate competitive risks in the real estate sector, SAIGONTEL has identified the need to
focus on researching consumer trends and actual market demand to develop tailoved,
differentiated projects, At the same time, the Company is accelerating the application of
technology in project management amd operations, infegrating smart solutions to optimize
cistomer experience. In addition, SAIGONTEL will continue to expand investment promotion
activities amnd proactively seek strategic pariners both domestically and miernationally to
leverage capital, technology, amd experience, thereby enhancing product quality and
competitiveness,
For the Telecommunications segment, SAINGONTEL is formulating a development strategy that
capitalizes on its existing infrastructure within industrial parks, focusing oo providing
specialized telecommumications services for corporate clients, particalarly foreign-invested
enterprises. The Company will prioritize the deployment of high-tech solutions such as data
eenters, private 30 networks, and loT platforms to deliver value-added services, Furthenmare,
SAIGONTEL will strengthen partnerships with technology providers to enhance service delivery
capabilities. The Company also plans to invest in developing its technical workforce and
improving cusiomer service processes o increase satisfaction and sustain competitiveness amid
an increasingly challenging market environment.
Other risks

SAIGONTEL is also exposcd to force majeure risks such as natural disasters, fires, and
pandemics, The Company's business operations are mainly concentrated in the Northern and
Central regions of Vietnam—arens that ave frequently impacted by severe natural disasters,
These events may adversely affect SAIGONTEL s assets and business performance. In response,

the Company has entered into insurance contracts to enhance workplace safety and implemented
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environmental protection plans.

At the same time, SAIGONTEL is focusing on developing its technology segment through data
cernters to keep pace with global digital transformation trends, However, a major risk lies in the
current limitations of human resources and infrastructure, which may fall short of meeting
investor expectations, potentially resulting in wasted assets and increased invesiment costs,
Therefore, SAIGONTEL plans to simultaneously advanee its technological capabilities and
develop industrial park infrastrocture in alignment with global standards to attract foreign

investment,

II. OPERATING SITUATION IN THE YEAR
1. Production and business operation situation
a. Resulis of production and business activities during the year

Revenie striuciinre

By business field

Linit of calewlation: Million ¥ND

Year 2023  Year 2024 L
Target Propartio Pyiporti Inereasc/
Malue Nalue
(ifi ilecrense
Revenue from |
| | commercial and service 995013 | 7597% | 957283 | 3191% | -3.7%%
activities

Bevenue from real

2 | estate business, office 314,748 24.03% R84, 772 | 48.09% | 131.74%
| for lease, land & factory
Total net revenue | 1,309.759 | 100.00% 1,844,055 | 100,007 | 40.79%

I 2024, SAIGONTEL's total consolidated revenue reached 1,844.06 Billion YND, an
increase of 40.79% compared to 2023, The revenue structure has changed significantly,
reflecting the shift in the Company's development strategy, specifically:

Revenue from commercial and service activities reached 957.28 Billion VND, aceounting
for 51.91% of total revenue, a slight decrease of 3.79% compared to the same period last year.
Although continuing to play a key role, the proportion of revenue from this segment has
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decreased comparcd to the level of 75.97% in 2023, due to the impact of the Company
prioritizing resources for the development of the industrial real estate sector.

Revenue from real estate business, land, office and workshop leasing reached 85677 Billion
WVND, accounting for 48.05% of total revenue, an increase of [§1.74% compared to 2023, This
sutstanding growth came from SAIGONTEL's promotion of land exploitation at Dai Dong Hoan
Son Khu céng nghigép Phase 2 and revenue recognition from social housing projects.

The change in revenue structure clearly demonstrates the Company's strategie direction, in
which industrial real estate is gradually becoming a new growth pillar alongside the traditional
trade - service segment. This is the result of SAIGONTEL's promotion of investment in Khu
cong nghidp infrastructure development, focusing on projects with high profitability and suitable
for the current FDI attraction trend. In addition, investment promotion activities and improved
infrastructure service guality also play an important role in increasing added value and asset
exploitation efficiency.

The revenue structure in 2024 shows a reasonable and sustainable shitt in SANGONTEL's
development orientation, creating a solid foundation for the Company to effectively exploil
investment opportunities in the next period,

b, Tmplemeniailon status compared to plan
Lnit: Mitlion YND

Agfual Acnmalb Mo THIEM % Change

Plan 2ik24 _ .
i | 18 5 LS KELZiFZ4 TOZAIER

I Net revenue 1,309,759 4,000,000 1,844,055 46.10% 140.79%

2 :ﬁi e 78,025 430,000 219,657 48.81% 281.52%
In 2024, SAIGONTEL set a target of VMD 4,000 billion in consolidated revenue and VND 450
billion in profit before tax, Although the Company did not fully achieve its planned targets, the
actual results still reflected several positive sipnals. Specifically, net revenue reached YINL
1,844 06 billion, equivalent to 46.10% of the plan and up [40.79% compared to the same period
in 2023. Profit before tax amounted to VND 219.66 billien, fulfilling 48.81% of the target and

posting an impressive growth of 281.52% year-on-year.

The main reason for the shontfall in target achievement was due to legal procedure bottlenecks,
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particularly delays in land altocation, which prevented certain lease agreements from meeting

the criteria for revenue recognition during the year. Nevertheless, these results highlight the

Company's resilience amid challenges, especially the effective strategic shift toward industrial

real estate development—an area that is gradually becoming a new pillar of growth, This will
serve as a solid foundation for SAIGONTEL to make further breakthroughs in the coming years.

2. Organization and personnel
List of Board of Directors members

As of December 31, 2024

| Nao.

Full name Position j

1 Drang Thanh Tam

| Chairman of the Beard of Dhrectors |

2 | Nguyen Cam Phuong

Member of the Board of Directors cum I

: - ] |
General Director, Authorized Person for

: Information Disclosure and Head of
| Representative Office in Ho Chi Minh City

3 Mguyen Thi Kim Thanh

Non-executive members of the Board of

Directors

4 | Ho Thi Kim Oanh

Mon-executive members of the Eﬁﬂrd?[’

Directors

5 | Nguven Thanh Thai

| Independent Member of the Board of
Directors

Profile of the Board of Directors members

My, Dang Thanh Tam - Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date of birth

April 13, 1964

ualification

Marine Engineer
Bachelor of Laws
Bachelor of Business Administration

Diploma in Business Management - Henley Management College -

LK
N - The Chairman of Kinh Bac City Development Holding Corporation
Position at other
: (KBC)
companies

Member of APEC Business Advisory Council
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The Chairman of Saigon MNorthwest Urban Development
Corporation {SCL)

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Saigon - Hai Phong Industrial
Park Corporation { SHF)

Chairman of Trang Cat Urban Development One Member Limited
Company (TCC)

Chairman of the Board of Members of SAIGONTEL Long An Co.
Ltd.

Chaimnan of the Board of Directors of Long An [nvestment and
Development Joint Stock Company

Chairman of Tan Phu Trung Long An Industrial Park One Member
Limited Company (TPT-LA)

Director of Hung Yen [nvestment and Development Croup Joint
Stock Company

General Director of Vinatex - Tan Tao Investment Joint Stock
Company

President of Vietnam CEO Club

President of Golden Star of Vietnam Club

Member of the Executive Committee of Vietmam Chamber of
Commerce and Industry (VCCI)

Work experience

1988 - 1996: Marine officer of Saigon Shipping Company

1996 - 2007 General Director of Tan Tao [ndustnal Park Joint Stock
Company Ho Chi iviinh City {(ITACO)

2002 - present: The Chairman of Saigon Technology and Telecom
Corporation

2003 - present: Chainman of the Board of Directors of Kinh Bac City
Development Holding Corporation, Member of APEC Business
Advisory Couneil

2006 - 2014; Chairman of Saigon Investment Corporation

2009 - present; President of Vietnam CEO Club, President of
Golden Star of Vietnam Club

2010 - present: Member of the Executive Committee of Vietnam
Chamber of Commerce and Industry [VCCT)
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- 2014 — present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Saigon - Hai
Phong Industnial Park Corporation

- 2019 - present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Saigon
Northwest Urban Development Joint Siock Company, General
Director of Vinatex - Tan Tao Investment Joint Stock Company

- Chairman of the Board of Members of Tan Phu Trung Industrial Park
One Member Limited Company - Long An

- 2020 - present: Chairman of Trang Cat Utban Development One
Member Limited Company

- 2021 - present: Chairman of the Board of Members of SAIGONTEL
Long An Co., Ltd, Director of Hung Yen [nvestment and
Development Group Joint Stock Company

- 2022 - present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Long An
Investment and Development Joint Stock Company

- 2021 - present: Chairman of the Board of Members of SAIGONTEL
Long An Co., Ltd, Director of Hung Yen [nvestment and
Development Group Joint Stock Company
Hung Yen [nvesiment and Development Delegation

- 2022 — present: Chairman of the Board of Directors’ members of
Long Aa lnvestment and Development Jmnt Stock Company

Numiber of shares
awned
{representative,
individual)

10,060,740 shares, accounting for 6.8% of charter capital

Ms, Ngunyen Cam Fhuong - Board of Directors’ members cum General Director

Date of birth

Movember 13, 1976

Qualification

- Bachelor of Law

- Master of Business Administration

Position at other

Companies

- Chairwoman of the Board of Director of Saigon Post and
Telecommunications Services Joint Stock Company

- Standing Deputy General Divector of Saigon - Ham Tan Tourisit
Joint Swock Company
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Director — legal representative of Doi Robin Tourist Area Co., Lud.
Board of Directors’ members cum General Director of Saigon Vién
Thang Garment Textile Joint Stock Company Vi Na (SGVN)
General Director of Yung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock
Company

Member of the Board of Directors’ members cum General Divector
of SAIGONTEL - Long An Co., Lid.

Board of Directors' members cum General Director of Long An
[nvestment Development Joint Stock Company

Board of Directors” members of SGT Land

Board of Directors’ members of SGU

General Director of SAIGONTEL - Thar Mguyen Indusirial One
Member Company Limited

General Director of SAIGONTEL - Quang Ninh Industrial One
Member Company Limited

General Director of SAIGONTEL - Quang Yen Industrial One
Member Company Linnted

CGeneral Director of Saigon - Lam Dong Investment & Tourism
Joint Stock Company

CGeneral Director of Kum Ba Joint Stock Company

Work experience

2012 - present: Board of Directors” members cum General Director
af Saigon Technology - Telecommunieations Joint Stock Company
2020 - present: General Director of Kum Ba Joint Stock Company
2021 - present:

+ General Director of SAIGONTEL - Long An Co., Lid,

+ General Director of Long An Investment Development Joint
Stock Company

+ General Director of SAIGONTEL - Thai Nguven Industrial One
Member Company Limited

+ General Director of Saigon - Lam Dong Investment & Tourism
Jomt Stock Company

+ Chairman of the Board of Directors” members of Saigon Post and

Telecommunications Services Joint Stock Company
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+ Stanuling Deputy General Direcior of Saigon - Ham Tan Tourism
Joint Stock Company
+ Director — legal representative of Doi Robin Tourist Area Co,,
Lid.
+ General Director of Vung Tau Investment Group Joint Stock
Company

Mumber of shares

owned

. [ shares
{representative,
individual)

Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Thanh - Member of the Board of Directors,

Date of birth March 06, 1970

Cualification Bachelor of Economics

Deputy General Durector of Saigon Tourism Joint Stock Company

Position at other , T . .
Board of Directors’ members of Saigon - Ham Tan Tourism Joint

Companies Stock Company

= 1992 - 1994 Worked a1 Pacific Alirlines

- 1994 - 1906: Working at Vietnam Airlines

- 2002 - 2023: Deputy General Director of Saigon Tourism Joint Stock
Company

- 2014 - present; Board of Directors’ members of Saigon Technology -

Work experience

Telecommunications Joint Stock Company

Mumber of shares
owned .
. 2,203,852 shares, accounting for 1.49% of charter capital
{representative,

individual)

Mz, Ho Thi Kim Oanh - Member of the Board of Directors,

Date of hirth Febrvary 20, 1973
] Chalification Bachelor of Economics
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Pasition at ather

Companies

Head of the Board of Supervisors of Yinatexin
Head of SDN's Board of Supervisors

Work experience

3014 - 2023 Chairman of the Board cum General Director of
Saigon Investment Joint Stock Company
2014 - present: Member of the Board of Directors of Saigon

Technology and Telecommunications Corporation

Mumber of shares
owned

(representative,
individual)

12,941 shares, accounting for 0.01% of charter capital

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Thai - Member of the Board of Directors

Date of birth

September 01, 1984

Dualification

Bachelor of General Accounting

Position at other

- Board of Directors” members of Vinatexin

companies
Work expericnce 2006 - 2008: Accounting Specialist at Petrolimex Can The Gas Co.,
L.
2008 - 2013; Customer Relations Specialist at Nam Viet Commercial
Joint Stock Bank - Can Tho Branch
- 2014 - 2016 Credit Appraisal Specialist at National Citizen
Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Southern Office
2017 - 2023: Deputy Head of Customer Relations Department -
Saigon Business Center at Mational Citizen Commercial Joint Stock
Bank - Saigon Branch, Assistant to the Chairman of the Board of
Directors - SGI Investment Fund Management Joint Stock Company
- MW2020 - present: Member of the Board of Directors of Saigon
Technology and Telecommunications Corporation
Mumber of shares
s (b shares
(representative,
individual’}
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List of General Director Board

As of December 31, 2014
STT Name Position =
1 | Mguyen Cam Phuong Board of Directors’ members, General Divector
Deputy General Director of Finance, Acting Chief
2 | Le Neguyen Hoang Anh
Accountant
3 | VuNgoc Anh Deputy General Director cum Director of Bac Ninh Branch
Deputy General Director of Urban Areas cum Head of
4 | Pham Van Luc : " '
Representative Oftice in Hanot
Deputy General Director of Engineering kiém Director of
5 | Mguyen Anh Tu .

!E Thai Nguyen Branch

General Director Board profile

Mr. Le Neuyen Hoang Anh - Deputy General Director of Finance kiém Acting Chief

Accountant
Date of birth February 26, 1934
Qualification Bachelor of Economics

Fosition at other

. Chairman of the Board of Directors of SAIGONTEL Distnbution

companies And Service Joint Stock Company,
- General Director of TNGlobal Joint Stock Company
- Board of Directors' members of SAIGONTEL Real Esmate
[nvestment Joint Stock Company
Work experience - 2008 - 2010: Staff of Phuong Tay Commercial Joint Stock Bank

- 2010 - 2011: Specialist of Ho Chi Minh City Securities Joint Stock
Company

- 2011 - 2013 Head of corporate client depanment of Phuong Tay
Commercial Joint Stock Bank

. 2013 - 2014: Head of customer relations department of Mam Viet
Commercial Joint Stock Bank

- 2014 - present; Deputy General Director in charge of finance kiém
Chief Accountant of Saigon Technology and Telecommunications
Corporation

- 2015 - present: Board of Directors” members kiém Deputy General

Director

of Saigon Technology and Telecommunications
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Corporation, General Director of TNGlobal Joint Stock Company

- 2017 - present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of SAIGONTEL

Distribution And Service Joint Stock Company

- 2019 - present: Chief Accountant of Saigon Telecommunications

Carment Joint Stock Company Vi Na

Mumber r-::uf shares
owmed

[representative,

individual)

82,213 shares, accounting for 0.06% of the charter capital,

Mr. Va Ngoe Anh - Deputy General Divector cum Director of Bae Ninh Branch

Date of birth March 09, 1974
Cualification Transport Engineer
Position at other - Chairman af the Board of Directors of Saigon Da MNang Investment
companics JISC (SDM)
- General Director — Legal representative of Kinh Bac - Da Nang
Investment Ome Member Company Limited
- General Director — Legal representative of SAIGONTEL Industry
One Member Company Limited — Hung Yen
Work experience - 2013 - present: Deputy General Director of Saigon Technology -

Telecommunications Corporation, Director of Bac Ninh branch

SGT

2014 - present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Saigon Da

Nang lavestment JSC

2018 - present: Chairman of the Board of Directors of Kinh Bac -

Da Nang Investment One Member Company Limited

Mumber of shares
owned

{representative,
individual}

[ shores

Mr. Pham Van Luc - Deputy General Director of Urban Areas com Chief of
Representative Office in Hanoi
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Date of birth

] MDecember 25, 1985

Qualification

Bachelar

Position at other

companies

- General Director of SAIGONTEL Real Estate [nvestment JSC
- Legal representative of Kinh Bac Investment Joint Stock Company

Work experience

- 2010 - 2013: Deputy Director of B&T High-Tech Commercial
Service Company Limited.

- 2018 - present; General Dircctor of SAIGOMTEL Real Estate
[nvestment F5C

- 2019- 2023: Deputy General Director of Urban Areas of Saigon
Technology - Telecommunications Corporation, General Director of
Robin Hill Tourist Area Company Limited

- 2021 - 2023: Deputy Director of Hung Yen [nvestment and
Development Group ISC

- 2023 - present: Legal representative of Kinh Bac Investment Joint
Stock Company

Mumber of shares
owned
(representative,

individual)

() shares

Mr. Nguyen Anh Tu - Deputy General Divector of Engineering eum Director of Thai

MNgnyen branch
Date of birth November 07, 1982
Qualification Construction engineer

Pasition at other

coOmpanies

Legal Representative kiem General Director of Kinh Bac [nvestment

Joint Stock Company

Work experience

- 2006 - 2008: Design engineer at Vietnam Construction Cotporalion
(Vinacica) - Cienco |

- 2008 - 2009: Design engineér at Taisei Corperation Company

- 2009 - 2017: Project Divector af Ecoba Vietnam JSC

- 2018 - present; General Director of Kinh Bac Investment Joint Stock

Company

- 2019 - present: Deputy General Director of Engineering of Saigon
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Technology

- Telecommunications Corporation

Mumber of shares
owned

{representalive,
indlividual )

{} shares

List of Board of Supervisors

Az af December 311, 2024

Ma.

Fullname

Fu:aiti_l;n

| | Nguyen Duc Thuan

Head of the Board of Supcrvisors

2 | Su Ngoe Bich

Member of the Board of Supervisors

3 | Le Thi Kim Nhung

Member of the Board of Supervisors

Profile of Board of Supervisors

Mr. Nguyen Due Thuan - Head of the Board of Supervisors

Date of birth

December 24,

1975

Dualification

Master of Business Administration;
Bachelor of Accounting - Auditing;
Chief Accountant Certificate,

S F T s

Position at other

companies

- Chief Accountant of TGM Corporation

Waork experience

1999 - 2007: Accounts Payable, Sales Accountant at Saigon
Pharmaceutical Company

2008 - 2004: Deputy Head of Accounting Department at Bien Dong
Petroleum Trading and Services Co., Ltd,

2010 - 201 5: Chief Accountant at Petroleum Industrial Material
Distribution Company - PetroViemam Technical Services Corporation
Year 20160 Chief Accountant of Apis Corporation

2016 - 2019: Chief Accountant of Metal Petrochem Corporation
2020 - present: Chief’ Accountant of TGM Corporation

2021 - present: Head of Member of the Board of Supervisos of
Saigon Technology - Telecomumunications Corporation
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Number of shares

awned
; : {1 shares
(representative,

indlividual)

Ms. Su Ngoc Bich - Member of the Board of Supervisors

Date of birth MNovember 13, 1974

Qualification Bachelar of Finarce - Accounting

Position at other - Chief Accountant at Vinatexin — Tan Tao Investment Joint Stock
companies Company (Vinatexin)

Work experience - 1998 - 1999; Accountant at Duc Hanh Traffic Construetion Co., Lid.

- 1999 - 2001: General Accountant at Hoang Long Advertising Co.,
Led.

- 2001 - 2004: General Accountant at Ma San [nvestment Corporation

- 2004 - present: General Accountant at Saigon Construction
Investment and Construction Service Corporation

- 2008 - 2023: Chief Accountant at Saigon - Binh Dinh Energy
Corporation

- 2014 - 2023 Member of The Board of Supervisors of Saigon

Technology - Telecommunications Corporation

- 2017 - 2023: Chief Accountant at Kumba Corperation

- 2023 - Present: Chief Accountant at Vinatexin — Tan Tao [nvestment
Joint Stock Company {Vinatexin)

“Mumber of shares ) shares

awned
{representative,
individual)
M. Le Thi Kim Nhung - Member of the Board of Supervisors
Date of birth February 08, 1967
' Calification Bachelor of Administration
Position at ather —
COMpanics
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[ Work experience - 2001 - 2006: Head of Ticket Office at Ngan Vu Co., Lid.

- 2006 - 2014: Head of Ticket Office at Saigon Tourist Corporation

- 2014 - 4/2015; Human Resources Administration Specialist at Saigon
Technology - Telecommunications Corporation

- 0442015 - present: Member of The Board of Supervisors of Saigon

Technology - Telecommunications Corporation

Mumber of shares 1,685,907 shares, accounting for 1.14% ol the charter caputal.
owned
(representative,
individual)

Number of officers and :mpl;;:ets:

uanntity Percentage
| A | By qualification 307 100%%
. T o =l TR T
T2 | University : 199 65%
i_i_'féueg: A T
| 4 | Other 87 29%
i B By gender ' 07 ' 100%
1 Male | 199 65%
ET'FEE:&: 108 - 35%
| B | According to the scasonality of 30 —
_ employees
1| Regular workers a ' 307 ' S 100%
2 | Seasonal workers - . T i 0%

Average income

Index Yoear 2021 Year 2023 Yiear 2023 Year 2024

Total number of
285 300 300 307

employees (people)
Average income :

20,999,730 21,239,584 22028390 22,138,334
(¥ ND/person/month)

Personnel policy
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o About fraining

In order to ensure the quality of personnel, especially in the field of telecommunications as well

as SAIGONTEL's new fields such as teal estate. SAIGONTEL realizes that it must have a

complete training and development policy to meet the needs of each position in the Company.

Furthermore, the Company always creates conditions and organizes training courses (o improve

trinh dd chuyén mon and skills to meet the high requirements of the industry, keep up with

innovation and technological advances in the world. In addition, the Company also regularly
organizes collective activities and events to create solidarity and a comfortable and cohesive
working environmenl

Employee training and development regime: To enhance the value of employees in the

workplace and provide clear career orientation for employees, contributing to the company’s

success, every employee has equal training and development opportunities when working.

For new employees: Upon joining the company, employees will;

- Receive onboarding training when starting to work (including information about the
ecompany, organizational regulations, company operations, employee regimes, e, ).

- Receive trinh dé chuyén mdn teaining according 1o their specialization after signing an
official labor contract with the company by organizing advanced traming classes at the
company or registering emplovees w attend short-term/long-tém tmining courses al extemal
QrEAnIZons,

- If necessary, the company will organize out-of-plan professional training courses annually
for employees,

s About recruitment

SAIGONTEL always focuses on attracting talented individuals with trinh d¢ chuyén man,

especially the management and executive personnel team. Depending on each position,

personnel are recruited based on an assessment of their capacity, experience, and relevant skills.

Career advancensent opportunities are always fair for evervone based on a specific career path

with clear standards,

SAIGONTEL recruits highly qualified candidates, graduates from leading universities, and also

creates carcer opportunities for new graduaies with good abilities.
«  Work environment

AL SAIGONTEL, employees work in a professional, dynamic envivonment, accompanied by a

very friendly, harmonious, and united culture. With spacious working conditions, the company

always ensures labor safety, fully equips equipment, machinery, amd tools, and optimally
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supports the human element. To enhance the value of employees in the workplace while

providing clear career orientation, contributing to the company’'s success, every employee has

equal opportunities for training and development when working,
e About salary and bonus

The company always guarantees the rights of employees in accordance with the provisions of
the Lahor Code, the Law on Social Insurance, snd the Law on Unemployment Insurance. In
addition, the company also pays special attention o salary, bonus, and remuneration policies to
attract and retain employees. Salary and bonus policies are built on the criteria of faimess and
reasonableness, At the same time, employses are gusrantesd to enjoy health insurance, social
insurance, and unemployment insutance regimes, and are entitled 1o periodic health check-ups
as prescribed,

In the context of fierce competition and a shortage of professional personnel, SAIGONTEL 15

constantly striving to improve the regime and policies for employees inorder Lo attract personnel

and increase commitment, improve produetivity, and enhance the sense of responsibility of
employees.
»  About welfare benefits

In order (o create sustainable development hetween the company and employees. SAIGONTEL

also pays special attention to and develops many welfare policies for its staff, such as:

- Support for transportation for work purposes, support for gasoline, and parking fees as
required and according te the nature of the job in accordance with the company's current
regulations.

- Allowance regime: allowance for working away from home, business wip allowance, funch
allowance.

- Provision of Company Uniforms: Emplovees who have signed official labor contracts will
be provided with uniforms according to their job positions, in accordance with the Company's
uniform usage regulations.

- Policy for annual periodic heaith check-ups for employees.

- Provision of Bao Viet health insurance for empleyvees with 2 vears of service or more. or

special provision of Bao Viet insurance for employees whe de not have enough vears of

service but have made special contributions o the company.
- Policy to support female emplovees during maternity: arranging transportation for lemale
emplovees during maternity to show concern and provide the best support for lemale

emplovees during matemity 1o enjoy priority benefits.
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= Teambuilding/travel program:

At SAIGONTEL GROUP, employees not only work in a professional and dynamic enviromment

but also accompany a very friendly, harmonious, amnd united culture through arts, sports, and

picnic activities during Teambuilding, year-end summaries, and Company anniversartes.

Through the Company's grassroots Trade Union, the employer will organize domestic or [oreign

tours and vacations for emplovees. The time and [ecation of the tour and vacation will be

proposed by the Trade Union and decided by the employer. The employer will pay the costs
related to the employee's tour and vacation (excleding personal expenses of the employes
incurred during the trip).

- Policy for emplovees' children: In addition to the policy of giving gifts 1o employees on
halidays - Tet, the company also coordinates with the trade urion to crganize gatherings for
all employees and their families, giving gitts o employees' children on other special
occasions such as the Mid-Autumn Festival, International Children's Day June 01,....

- In addition, the trade union also has welfare regimes for employees participating in the
campany's teade union, such as visiting the sick, weddings - funerals, organizing programs
on March 08. October 20...

o Ogeupational safety and labor protection policies

In the office, each working department is designed and maintained to ensuve safety and hygicne.

The company invests in ventilation systems. lighting systems. and convenient working

equipment to create a spacicus and safe working environment for emplovees,

At the Khu cdng nghiép and projects, all emplovees are provided with all necessary working

eguipment and labor protection equipment such as helmets, safety glasses, gloves, and reflective

vests, helping to protect employees from the risk of accidents and injuries during work.

In addition, to ¢nsure the comeet implementation of labor hygiene measures, the Company

periodically organizes training sessions on occupational safety and safe working procedures.

Thess training sessions not only belp raise awareness of occupational safety but also help

employees become familiar with and comply with the Company's safety regulations and

procedures.

3. Investment situation, project implementation situation
. Project investment situation in 2024

In 2024, SAIGONTEL continues to promote investment and implement many key projects in

localities. contributing to completing the Khu cong nghiép - urban - service ecosystem and

creating a foundation for sustainable growth in the following years. Specifically:
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Dai Dong Hoan Sen Khu céng nghiép Project — Phase 2; In 2024, the Company has
completed legal documents and was granted a land use right certificate with an area of
92hat95,8ha, and has signed land lease contracts and recorded long-term land lease revenue
for 13.ha,

Factory for rent project in Da Wang Hi-Tech Industrial Park: Construction Permit phase |
tor plot A23 has been granted, construction has been completed and the first factory tenant
has been secured. At the same time, the construction of the second factory is underway.
Tan Phu | and Tan Phu 2 Industrial Clusters in Pho Yen, Thai Nguyen: 126 ha of land has
been cleared out of a total planned area of 131 ha, and leveling has been implemented to
95% of the area in Tan Phu 1 and 60% of the aren in Tan Phu 2. The project has been
approved for a credit limit of 720 Billion YMD by the Vietnam Joint Stock Commereial
Bank for Industry and Trade - Bac Ninh Branch for implementation.

Lueng Son [ndustrial Cluster, Song Cong, Thai Nguyen: 13.4 ha has been cleared out of a
total scale of 34.33 ha, in parallel with land clearance, the company is alse implementing
mnfrastructure deployment procedures.

Mam Tan Tap Industrial Park, Can Giuoe, Long An: A total of 111.4ha has been cleared.
reaching 75.5% of the area and the 86.3ha baich of land has been handed over. Implementing
procedures to receive dredged materials for leveling as well as procedures for connecting
power lines to prepare for construction. Constructing road No. | phase 1, clean water plang,
wastewater treatment plant and office butlding to complete the infrastructure for the khu
cdng nghiép, ready to welcome guests in 2025, The project was granted a credit limit of 720
Billion VIND» by the Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade - Ngo
(Quyen Branch to serve the deployment.

MNam Tan Tap Resettlement Area, Can Givoc, Long An:

Tan Tap [ndustrial Park Project, Can Giuoe, Long An: The project has a scale of 634 ha,
with a total tnvestment of 9910 Billion YND, and has been granted an Investment
Certificate o the associated Company's subsidiaries, Long An Invesiment Development
ISC. During the year, continue to complete relevant legal documents to implement land
clesrance.

SAIGONTEL Central Park apartment project in Bae Chiang: The company has completed
the construction, acceptance and handover of apartments to customers and has completed
the procedures for granting a Certiticate of Home Ownership to hand over 1o residents.
Bau Tram social housing project in Da Nang: Completed construction and acceptance of
phase 1 at black B4-1 with 4 buildings and 1,549 apartments and phase 2 at block B4-2 with
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6 buildings and 1,809 apartments and from the end of 2024 has been handed over for use.
Regarding business results, all apartments in Phase DD1 have been sold and the red book
has been completed for 817/1,549 apartments. With Phase 2, all 347 NOTM apartiments and
1,154/1,1165 NOXH apartments have been sold.

b, Company’s subsidiaries, associated companies:

Business performance at SAIGONTEL's Company s subsidiaries:

Invesmment valoe Viting

{hrnq!ﬁu} nanie

Adlilrisy

(¥INL)

e

|. | Saigontel Real Estate | Floor 3 - 193 Trich Sai 33,000,000,000 70%
Investment Joint Stock | Street, Boor Ward, Tay
Company Ho District, Hanoi City
2. | Kinh Bac Investment Floor 3 - 193 Trch Sai 46,243,000,000 100%
Joint Stock Company Street, Buci Ward, Tay
Ho District, Hanoi City
3. | Saigon Urban Floor 2, Building 24T3, 120, 000,000,000 0% |
Development And 6 Le Van Thiem Street,
Investment Joint Stock | Thanh  Xuan  Trung
Company Ward, Thanh Xuan
Dristrict, Hanoi City
4. | Saigontel Industrial House number 381, 1,583,004,000 100%
Co., Ltd - Thai Nguyen | Luong Ngoc Quyen
Street, Hoang Van Thu
Ward, Thai MNguyen
City, Thai Nguyen
Provinee
5. | Smigontel - Long An | No. G6A, Street Mo, 3,|  525,000,000,000 [ 75%
Company Limited Tan Due Industrial Park,
[Due Hoa Ha Commune, |
Duc Hoa District, Long |
An Province
6. | Saigontel High-Tech A1A Nguven Van Cu, 125,000, 000,000 100%
[nvestment And Hoe Hiep Bac Ward,
Development Co., Ltd | Lien Chieu Disirict, Da
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(Sghi-Tech) Mang City

Investment valoe

Address

(VND)

Voting

rafe

7. | Quang Yen Elecuronic | House Al6-03 MonBay
Components Co., Ltd Urban Area, Hong Hai
Ward, Ha Long City,
Quang Ninh Province

230,000,000.000

100%,

Business performanee at SAIGONTEL's associated companies:

Company. name

1. | Saigon Vina Telecom
Garment Joint Stock

Company

Middress

30A-B  MNguyen Tat
Thanh, Ward 13, District
4, Ho Chi Minh City

Investment
yalue (WMD)
139,368,.680,000

Vﬂﬁng

e

48.93%

3. | Skyx Saigontel Joint Stock | |7th Floor, Sun Wah | 3.480,000,000 | 30%
Company | Building, 115 Nguyen
' Hue, Ben Nghe Ward, |
District 1, Ho Chi Minh |
City . |
3.  Long An Development Lot 64, Sweet No. 3, | 600,000, 000,000 (1%,
I [nvestment Joint Stock Tan Duc Industrial Park,
Company Duc Hoa Ha Commuine, |
Duc Hoa District, Long |
An Province
4. | Saigontel Distribution And | 3A Floor, 12 Pham Dinh | 29.400,000,000 | 49%
Service Joint Stock Toai, Ward 6, District 3,
Company Ho Chi Minh City
5. | SAIGONTEL STS Vietnam | No. 6A, Street No. 3,| 11,515000,000 |  49%
Company Limited Tan Duc Industrial Park,
i Duc Hoa Ha Commune,
. Due Hoa Dhstrict, Long
! An Provines
4, Finanecial situation
Annual Report 2024 44

e

i
S

2

e



a, Financial situation

Ciair: Mitlion YND

Criterion Year 20123 Year 2024 55 Inerease/decrease
| Total asset value 7.147.682 B.244.899 115,35%
7| Met revenue 1.309.759 |.844.033 140,79%
Profit from business .
3 o 76.625 223963 292,28% |
activilies {
|~ | Other profit 1.400 4305 307,53% |
5 | Profit before tax 78,025 219657 281,52%
| & | Profit after tax 42,810 127.501 297.83%
7 | Dividend rate - | - -

[n the context of the economy in 2024 mﬂt.lnuing to have complex developments,
SAIGONTEL still recorded a clear improvement in financial elficiency compared to the previous
year. Net revenue reached 1,844 .06 Billion VND, a sharp increase of 40.79% compared o 2023,
This growth mainly came from the [ndustrial Park real estate segment, with revenue reaching
986,77 Billion VND - accounting for 48.09% of total revenue, In particular, the signing and
revenue recognition from the land lease contract at Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park Phase 2
and the Bau Tram social housing project contributed significantly to this year's results. At the
same time, commercial and service activities continued to maintain a stable source of income,
supporting overall growth,

Profit from business activities reached 223,96 Billion VNI, an increase of 292.28%; profit
before tax reached 219.66 Billion YND, an increase of 281.52%; and profit after tax reached
127.50 Billion ¥ND, an increase of nearly 298% compared to 2023, Although other profits in
the year recorded a negative 4.31 Billion YND due to factors arising outside of the main
operation, this did not significantly affect the Company's positive business results.

T addition, the total asset value increased from 7,147.68 Billion YND to §,244.90 Billion
VND, an increase of 15.35%, mainly due to the expansion of investment in key projects such as
Mam Tan Tap Industrial Park (Long An), Dai Deng Hoan Son 2 Industrial Park, and Tan Phu |
& 2 Industrial Park.

This result reflects the effectiveness in strategic investment orientation and the successtul
transition to the industrial park real estate sector of the Company's Board of Directors. This is
also the foundation for SAIGONTEL to continue improving its financial capacity, expanding its

scale, and achieving sustainable growth in the tollowing yeas.
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b. Key financial Ratio:

Criterion

YearZihdd

Year 2024

Solvency Ratio
Current ratio . N
Time 211 173
(Crrrent assets/Short-term debt)
Quick ratio
Time 0,28 0,76
(Current assets - Inventory)/ Shori-term debt
Capital structure ratio
DebtTotal assets ratio s 72,52 T4.63
Debt/Equity ratio % 263,93 79473
Orperational capacity ratio
[nventory ruﬁmue:- Sk
Time 0,52 0,44
{Cost of goods sold’Average inventory) :
Total asset urmover I
Time 0,21 0,24
[Nt revenue/Average total assers) |
Profitability |
Ratio of Profit After Tax/MNet Revenue Y 3,27 | 6,91
Ratio of Profit After Tax/Average Equity Vi 2,24 | 6,29
Ratio of Profit After Tax/Average Total
% 0,68 1,66
Agsels
Ratio of Profit from Business Operations/MNet
Y 5,835 12,13
Revenue
Solvency Ratio

In 2024, SAIGONTEL's solvency ratios tended to decrease stightly compared to the previous
vear, reflecting the strategy of coordinating cash flow to prioritize medium and long-term

investment projects. The current ratio reached 1.73 times, down from 2.11 times in 2023; the

quick ratio also decreased [rom 0.98 times to 0.76 times. Although lower than the same period,
these indicators are still maintained above the safety threshold, indicating that the Company still
ensures the ability to pay short-term tinancial obligations when due.

The main reason for this decline comes from the increase in inventory and the increase in costs

of implementing industrial park, urban, and social housing projects that are in the investment
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phase. In addition, the item Other short-term payables increased sharply by more than 18074,
from 197.4 Million YND to 809,43 Million VND, causing total shori-term debt to increase and
affecting the liguidity ratio. This increase mainly reflects deposits, security deposits, and
payables related to land lease and infrastructure construction contracts at key Industrial Parks,
which do not create significant pressure on actual cash flow.

Capital structure ratio

In 2024, SAIGONTEL's capital structure continued to tend to increase the use of financial
leverage to serve the strong investment needs in industrial park real estate and social housing
projects. Specifically, the Debt/Total Assets ratio increased slightly from 72.52% to 74.63%, and
the Debt/Equity ratio increased from 263.95% to 294.23% compared to 2023, This development
reflects the Company's continued expansion of investment scale while equity has not been
increased accordingly.

Total labilities at the end of 2024 increased significantly compared to the beginning of the year,
mainly due to an increase in short-term payables — especially "Other short-term payables®,
reflecting deposits from customers in industrial park land lease contracts and unfinished basic
construction costs. At the same time, financial borrowings at credit institutions such as Vietnam
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Tndustey and Trade — Ngd Quyén Branch, Bic Ninh Branch,
BIDV... continued 1o increase to meet the capital needs for projects being implemented such as
Nam Tan Tap Industrial Park, Tan Phu Industrial Cluster, Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park...
Although the debt ratio has increased, this rate is still under control thanks to SAIGONTEL
proactively managing cash flow well from projects that are being put into operation and
preparing to recognize revenue. [n addition, the Company’s total assets and equity also recorded
growth, but the growth rate has not yet matched the increase in liabilitics.

The reasonable use of borrowed capital is helping SAIGONTEL to take advantage ol
opportunities to expand its investment scale during the period when the industrial real estate
market is recovering. In the near future, when the projects enter a stable commercial operation
phase, the Company has a basis to rebalance the capital structure in a safer and more efficient
direction,

Operational eapacity ratio

In 2024, SAIGONTEL's operational performance indicators experienced mixed fluctuations,
reflecting a transitional phase from investment 0 operation in numerows Industrial Park real
estate projects. The inventory tumnover decreased from 0.52 turns to 0.44 turns, mainly due to
the continued increase in inventory value as the Company actively implemented new projects,

especially Nam Tan Tap Industrial Park, Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park Phase 2, and Tan
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Phu Industnial Cluster, resulting in accumulated unfinished production costs and mvestment
property values at the end of the period.
The cost of poods sold in 2024 increased by more than 338.9 Million YND, but this incresse
{equivalent 10 about 30%) was much lower than the increase in net revenue of more than 334
Million VIND (an increase of 40.79%). However, because the average inventory still increased
sharply, the inventory turmover still decreased slightly. This is a temporary tactor amd will
improve when projects move into the commereial operation phase and record more consistent
revenue,
On the other hand, otal asset umover increased from 0.21 wms to 0.24 s, indicating that
asset utilization efficiency is gradually improving. Revenue recognition from land lease and
transfer contracts in Industrial Park real estate projects has helped accelerate asset turnover.
Profitability
In 2024, SAIGONTEL's profitability indicators all showed significant improvement, reflecting
the effectiveness of the shift to the Indusirnal Park real estate sector, as well as revenue
recognition from projects that have completed the investment phase and are in operation.
Specifically, the atter-tax protit margin on net revenue incréased sharply from 3.27% to 6.91%.
The Company not only grew revenue but also effectively controlled costs, especially the cost of
goods sold. This is because the Company is shifting its revenue structure to focus on activities
with high profit marging such as Industrial Park land and factory leasing.
[n addition, the after-tax profit margin on average equity (ROE) increased from 2.24% to 6.29%,
and the after-tax profit margin on average total assets {(ROA) also increased from 0.68% to
|.66%. Although these indicators are still modest compared to the general level of the Industrial
Park real estate industry, the nearly theeefold increase compared 1o the previous year represents
a significant effort in improving the efficiency of capital and asset wtilization across the
Company.
In particular, the profit margin from business operations on net revenue increased from 5.85%
to 12,15%, indicating that the profit margin from core activities has improved significantly —
clearly reflecting the results of the investment portfolio restructuring process, shifting away trom
the telecommunications sector to more profitable Industrial Park real estate.
5. Shareholder structure, changes in owner's investment capital.
a. Shares
- Total number of shares issued; 148,003,513 shares
¢ MNumber of outstanding shaves: 148,003,208 shares
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e Number of treasury shares: 310 shares

- MNumber of frecly transferable shares: 148,003,518 shares

Number of shares with restricted transter; () share
- Type of shares: Common shares

- Face value: 10,000 YND/share

b. List of major shareholders

| Mumber of Ehvnership_
Mame of
M. shares Value (VND) Percentage
preanization/individual
{shares) (o)
I | Kinh Bac City Devel L
| S S 31.793,846  317.938.460.000 | 21.48%
| Holding Corporation
DTT Investment and _
2 i Development Joint Stock 23,000,000 | 250.000.000.000 16.89%
| Company
3 | Mr. Dang Thanh Tam 10,060,740 | LG0T 400,000 6.80%
4 | Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Xuan 7,452,178 74,521.780.000 5.04% |
| Total 74.306.764 | 743,067,640,000 50.21% |
o Sharelodder structire:
Az of March 26, 2023
Number of Ownership
STT | Type of sharcholder Number of shares
shareholders Percentage
I | Domestic shareholders 2,217 139,801 402 | 4 46% |
1 | Individual 2,160 69507238 | 46, 96%
2 | Organization i 23 70.294.164 47.50%
[I | Foreign shareholders i 139 8.201.806 5.54%
I | Individual 123 7.767.248 5.25% |
2 | Organization 8 16 434.558 0.29%
Il | Treasury shares - 30 00001 %
Taotal 1.322 148,003,515 100%

. Maxinum Sureign ovwenership Percentage: U (%)
*) decovding to Official Dispatch No. 6378/ UBCK-PTTT regarding the amonncement of the

i foreign ownership Percentage ar Saigon Technology and Telecommmications

Corparafion.
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e Changes in owner's investment capital

Charter

Tire of Imereased

capitnl

capital capital ;
ilter
increase yalue

IMerease

Form of capifal increase

Linir: Billion FND

[sduing nnit

[nitial charter capital Ha Chi Minh City
May 14, Departrment of
2002 ) f Planning and
[nvestment
| Shareholders contribute additional | Ho Chi Minh City
March 19, | capital Department of
13 | 3 . .
2003 | Flanning and
Investment
. _— e — A
| Shareholders contribute additional | Ho Chi Minh City o
ital Department of
January 18, Sin 2 capita pa ;
2007 Flanning and
Investment
| Sharcholders contribute additional | Ho Chi Minh City |
Mavch 20, capital Depariment of
| 00 150 .
2007 Planning and
. Investment
ik | - = | —
Shaveholders contribute additional | Ho Chi Minh City
hlay 08, i ' 5 capital Department of
2007 Planning and
[nvestment
N Shareholders contribute additional | Ho Chi Minh City
June 235, capital Department of
e 240 430 ap _
| 2007 Planning and
Investment
| - ==
| Paving dividends in shares for 85C and Ho Chi ‘
| July 17, 135 | 585 | 2007 | Minh City
| R | | | Department of
50
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Time of
capital

iMCrease

{ harter
Inereased

capital

capital Form of ¢capital inerease [ssuing unit

after
value ¥
increase

Planning and

Investment

Tuly 29,
2009

| Paying dividends in shares for SSC and Ho Chi
2008 Minh City
87,750 672,750 Department af
Planning and

[nvestment

August 27,
2010

Paving dividends in shares for | 8SC and Ho Chi
! 2009 Minh City

67,269 T40,019 Drepariment of
. Planning and

[nvestment

September
2, 2022

' Public offering, 5SC and Ho Chi
Minh City
740 1,480 | | Department of

| Planning and

[nvestment

|

! Tre;nmy share transactions:

Mone.

& Other secarities:

Mone.

6. Report on the Company's environmental and social impacts

i. [Tpact on the envivonment:

In recent years, SAIGONTEL has clearly demonstrated its concern and serious investment in

activities related to environmental protection and green growth, The Company not only ensures

the provision of high-quality services but also coordinates with provinces, countries, and

international organizations to promote sustainable goals and minimize negative impacts on the

enviromment

Strong commitment to green growth and Net-Zero targets
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SAIGONTEL has been implementing long-term strategies and deep commitments in
protecting the environment and prometing sustainable development by: participating in
the signing of memorandums of understanding and cooperation agreements with many
provinces { Thai Nguyen, Long An, Dong Nai, Nam Dinh, Bac Ninh) on the goal of green
growth, reducing carbon emissions, and the Net-Zero roadmap by 2050 in accordance
with the Government's orientation,
Multi-dimensienal cooperation with demestic and foreign stakeholders
SAIGONTEL has cooperated with international organizations such as Global Advisory
( Australia) and experts and diplomatic agencies from Australia. Expanding mternational
cooperation helps the Company access advanced technology, experience, and solutions
in the field of green growth and sustainable development,
In 20724, the Company has cooperated internationally to develop the industry with 2 renewable
energy management service model for khu cdng nghigp according to the green energy
management service model, providing green electricity demand for factories, including solar
power grids, energy storage, and a direct green electricity supply model. [n addition, the company
also focuses on raising awareness of environmental protection, encouraging clectricity and water
saving, and investing in wastewater treatment systems at the khu cing nghicp, ensuring
compliance with environmental standands.
SAIGONTEL is also interested in converting from traditional fuels to biomass fuels, one of the
impoitant solutions to reduce greenhouss gas emissions. Participating in the intermational project
to provide heat and reduce greenhouse gas emissions demonstrates the Company's long-term
vision in minimizing environmental impacts and applying renewable energy. The activities and
projects that SAIGONTEL participates in, including the deployment of biomass boilers and the
construction of net-zers khu cong nghiép, are in line with Vietnam's sustainable development
goals. This not enly helps reduce emissions but also improves the working environment, creates
jobs, improves technical capacity, and contributes to promoting i green industry in Vietnam.
Enmergy consumption:
SAIGONTEL always puts top priority on saving and using energy efficiently. The Company has
implemented a series of solutions to reduce energy consumption and promote the use of
renewable energy in business operations.
Developing Green Industrial Parks: SAIGONTEL is currently developing industrial
parks such as Tan Tap and Nam Tan Tap with the goal of reducing carbon energy
consumption and increasing the use of solar energy, aiming to establish a sustainabie

manufacturing ecosystem.

Annual Report 2024 52



Application of smart technology: Through the Green Alliance, SAIGONTEL supports
Ho Chi Minh City in researching and developing renewable energy technologies, energy
storage technologies, as well as carbon capture and reuse, creating a sustainable low-
emission development roadmap.

Development of rooftop selar power: SAIGONTEL cooperates with partners to deploy
rooftop solar power solutions. helping customers access clean energy without initial
imvestment, while reducing energy consumption from non-renewable sources.
Encouraging a culture of enmergy saving: SAIGONTEL not only focuses om
infrastructure but also creates conditions for employees to raise awareness and practice

energy saving in their work and personal lives.

Water consuniplion:
SAIGONTEL also places strong emphasis on water protection and consumption for both
residential use and industrial park operations. Enterprises operating within the industrial parks
are encouraged to adopt efficient water-saving technologies and rense water whencver possible.
In addition, regular water quality monitoring systems will be implemented, including the
assessment of pollution levels from production activities to ensure thal water sources are not
contaminated by chemicals or heavy metals.
SAIGONTEL's water quality protection mensures also include sateguarding the sirrounding
scosystems of industrial parks to prevent adverse impacts on natural water sources. At the same
time, green zones will be established to support namral water filtration processes and reduce
pollution.
b Compliance with environmental profection linws:
The Company’s environmental management system is built and maintained 10 ensure that all
production and business activities meet environmental protection requirements in accordance
with current regulations, including 150 14001 standards on environmental management, and the
requirements for protecting air, water, and land it the Vietnam Envirenmental Protection Law.
The Company always implements strict environmental monitoring measures and regularly
evaluates and improves the environmental management system to maintain and improve
environmental protection etticiency.
e Podicies related to emplayees:

Numher of employees, average safary for employees.

Indicitor Yoar 2021 Your 2022 Yoear 2023 Yoeur 224
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Total number of
285 300 300 L1V
eniployees (people)
Average income
(VNDYperson'month)
. Labor poficy
In order to recruit talent and create long-term commitment with afl employees, SAIGONTEL

20,999 730 21,239,584 22,000,000 22158534

always aims to build attractive welfare policies and a professional, friendly, and harmonious
working environment, while ensuring fair and transparent promotion opportunities for all statf
and employees.

In addition to salary and bonus regimes, attractive remuncration regimes, full insurance and
honuses during holidays #nd Tet, the Company also focuses on the spiritual well-heing and
family of employees, through teambuilding activities, travel, giving gifts to employees' children
and other support regimes to create favorable conditions for work, These efforts of SAIGONTEL
will ensure an ideal working environment, creating motivation for employees to develop and
contribute (o the company’s Success.

e, Emplayee training activifies
In order to improve the value of the workforce and shape a clear career orientation for employees,
SAIGONTEL is committed to ereating comprehensive training and development opportunities
for all employvees. For new employees joining the company, SAIGONTEL provides an
integration training program to help them familianze themselves with the company culture, as
well as in-depth training according o their recruitment major, in order to fully equip them with
the necessary knowledge and skills for the job.

For official employees, the Company organizes ennual professional training courses to improve
trinh 45 chuvén mon, update new knowledge, and improve working skills. In addition,
emplovees also have the opportunity to participate in short-term or long-tenm training courses at
reputable educational institutions outside, helping staff develop their abilities and expand career
advancement opportunities. SAIGONTEL always creates conditions for employees to continue
leamning and improving themselves, and is committed to providing a working environment that
helps them develop comprehensively and stick with the company for a long time.

@ Report on responsibilities to the local commmumity:

In addition to developing business operations, SAIGONTEL always actively participates in
many charity activities, demonstrating social responsibility and a long-term commutment to

social and environmental development. The company continuously participates in and
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organizes meaningful social activities, giving Tet gifis to disadvantaged workers, supporting
facilities for hospitals, giving gifts to martyr's mothers, policy families and donating to people
affected by nutural disasters, coordinating with partners and bramds to bring practical gifts to
workers and the local community .

In addition, SAIGONTEL actively participates in community healthcare initintives such as
organizing free health check-ups, voluntary blood donation drives, and supporting medical
Facilities. The Company places particular emphasis on supporting underprivileged children by
taking part in the *Vietnam's Wish® program, which sims to assist children with serious illnesses
and disabilities, helping them receive greater care, support, and compassion from the community
and society.

£ Report on green capital market activities according to the guidance of the §5C;
Currently, SAIGONTEL has not implemented any activities related to the green capital market,
However, the Company is always interested in this field and will sctively participate when
receiving specific guidance from the 55C.

III.  Report and evaluation of the Board of General Director

1. Evaluation of production and business resulis

In 2024, the global economic context continues to have many fluctuations with the trend of
tightening monetary policy in many countries, although inflation has cooled down, it still remains
high in some large markets. In addition. prolonged geopolitical contlicts, continued supply chain
disruptions, and slow growth in global consumer demand have significantly mnpacted the
production and business operations of enferprises.

However, with the drastic direction of the Board of Directors and the unremitting efforts of all
officials and emplovees, Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Comporation
(SAIGONTEL) has proactively adapted to the situation and taken advantage of opportunities to
maintain growth momentum, Below are the advantages and difficulties in the process of
implementing the 2024 plan:

- Favorable conditions:

e Viemam continues to be an attractive destination for foreign direct investment (FDI)
thanks to its open investment attraction policy, strategic geographical location in the
regional supply chain, and strong recovery of manufacturing and service industries,

e The Government implements many policies to support businesses, especially tax
incentives, administrative procedure reforms and  policies to promete  digital

transformation, helping SAIGONTEL have more favorable conditions for development.
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¢ The company continues (o receive support and guidance from Saigon Investment Lroup
in its business strategy and ecosystem expansion.

s A stable staff, an increasingly solid corporate culture, and improved labor productivity
contribute to enhancing operational efficiency.

- Difficulties:

s  Although interest rates have cooled down, they remain high, increasing the pressure on
borrowing costs and affecting cash flow for investment projects.

o Industrial Park real estate shows signs of stagnation as FDI enterprises become more
cautious in expanding production, slowing down the eccupancy rate in some
SAIGONTEL Industrial Parks,

o Legal issues related 1o land and mvestment licensing procedures still face many obstacles,
affecting the progress of some projects.

s The labor market continues to Hluctuate, with a sharp increase in demand for high-quality
personnel, but the supply has not kept up, causing difficulties in recruiting and retaining
highly qualified personnel, cspecially in the fields of technology and digital
transformation.

Despite facing many challenges, SAIGONTEL persists with is sustainable development
strategy, making the most of existing advantages to overcome difficulties and ensure stable
growth in 2024.

The Company's 2024 business results:

Indicator 2024 Plan 2024 Implemented Iripslemented/

(Million YND) (Million ¥ NI} Plan
MNet revenue 4,006,000 1844055 46.10%
Profit before tax 450,000 219,657 48.81%
]j-c:;plte many efforts in implementing business and investment activities, SAIGONTEL's

2024 performance has not met expectations. Net revenve reached 1,844.06 Billion VMND,
equivalent to 46.10% of the annual plan, while pre-tax profit reached 219.66 Billion VND,
alfilling 48.81% of the target,

Tn 2024, SGT still maintains its development orientation with 03 main areas: Industrial Park
- Lrban - Services, specifically as follows:

a. Industrial Park

Industrial Park real estate plays an important role and is the pillar of SAIGONTEL's business
operations. The business and management of Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park Phase | in Tien
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Du District, Bac Ninh Province, has consistently brought the company a stable source of revenue
and profit. For Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park Phase 2, in 2024 SAIGONTEL signed a land
lease agreement and recorded revenue of 13.1ha, which helped the Industrial Park real estate
hlock achieve revenue of 8386 Billion VIND, accounting for 48% of the consolidated revenue of
the entire company.

These achievements are clear evidence of SAIGONTEL's dedication and constant ¢fforis in
developing and managing Industrial Park real estate projects, contributing to the country's
economic prosperity and sustainability.

[n the field of Industrial Park real estate, SAIGONTEL has implemented a series of strong
marketing activities, combined with the organization of investment promotion conferences with
potential investors. Al the same time, SAIGONTEL also participates in dialogue programs,
aiming to interact and shere information with businesses interested in investing in this field,

SAIGONTEL focuses particularly on the construction and completion of infrastrcture,
creating clean land areas with full amenities, in order to attract attention and investment from
investors. This is considered an important part of our strategy to develop and promote the
Industrial Park real estate industry in the current period.

b. Urban

SAIGONTEL currently owns two office buildings at Quang Trung Software Park. including:

« ICT1 Building with a scale of 08 floors, has a filling tv 18 of 100%6, revenue in 2024 reached
17.8 Billion VND,

« [CT2 Building { Tech Valley) with a scale of 12 floors has been put into operation in Quarter
V2024, initially ereating a stable source of revenue for SAIGONTEL.

For social housing projects, through cooperation with Saigen Da Nang Investment Joint
Stock Company at the Bau Tram social housing project phase |, we have completed the
construction of block B4.2 and acceplance for use, recording revenue of 736 Billion VIND and
gross profit of 8.6 Billion VIND, demonstrating the success of this business activity.

€. Services:

SAIGONTEL has recorded revenue and profit from the following services:

- Telecommunications and Information Technology

In 2024, SAIGONTEL continues to be strong in the field of Telecommunications and
Information Technology, focusing on providing transmission line infrastructure services at home
and abroad. Revenue from this activity reached 53.5 Billion VND and gross profit reached 37.3
Billion VIND.

The infrastructure and transmission line service segment in 2024 continues to focus on
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developing the frastructure system and expanding customers in Industrial Parks such as Dai
Dong Hoan Son 1, Trang Due, Quang Chau, Chue Vo. At the same time, in the international
transmission channel segment, the Company has signed major contracts to provide IPLC,
Primzen, IPTransit, private leased channel, VOID.... transmission lines.

In addition, in the telecommunications transmission line segment, SAIGONTEL has
improved the quality and ability to provide services, ensuring stability and reliability for
customers. Investing in improving infrastructure and technology helps the company increase
competitiveness and expand the market in 2024, while creating a foundation For sustainable
development in the future,

- Other services:

The business of petroleum and the development of rooftop solar power are not only
important areas in SAIGONTEL's business operations, but also contribute positively to
completing the ecosystem in the Industrial Parks that SAIGONTEL and SGI Group are
managing.

Although revenue from these services accounts for 2 small tv 18 in SAIGONTEL's total
revenue, their role cannot be denied. The petroleum business service not only provides the
necessary energy for production and operation activities in the Industrial Parks, but also ensures
continuity and stability in the operation process. At the same time, the development of reoflop
solar power not only helps reduce operating costs but also contributes positively o protecting
the environment and reducing emissions.

Thanks to these services, SAIGONTEL not only creates economic value but also demonstrates
its commitment to environmental protection and sustainable development. Along with focusing
on key areas, SAIGONTEL and SGI Group have built a diverse and sustainable ecosystem,
contributing to the overall development of the community and society,

2. Finameial situation

a4, Asgset situation
Linit; Million WD

Impleémentation

_ _ Proportion Percentage
Indicator Year 2023 Year 21H4

Implementation  in 2023 in 2024

273
Short-term assets 5061417 6,055,066 119.63% T0.81% 73.44%
Long-term assets 2,086,265 2,189,833 104.96%, 29.19%% 26.56%
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“Total assets T.147,682 8,244,899 115.35% 100% 100%,

In 2024, SAIGONTEL's total assets reached 8244.90 Billion VMND, an increage of 15.33%
compared to 2023, reflecting the strategy of promoting investment in Industral Park real estate
and social housing projects. Short-term assets continue to account for a large ty 1§ in the assel
structure, reaching 6,055.07 Billion VND {accounting for 73 44% of total assets), an increase of’
19.63% comparcd to the same period. This increase mainly comes from the increase in
inventories and cash items, short-term financtal invesiments to ensure working capital for
production and business activities and project implementation. Notably, inventones mcreased
sharply from 2,712,359 Billion VIND 10 3.524 .32 Billion YND, equivalent to an increase of nearly
%12 Billion YND (29.91%) — the item with the largest fluctustion in the asset stucture, This
increase mainly comes from the accumulation of investment costs in projects under construction
such as Mam Tan Tap Industrial Park, Dai Deng Hoan Son phase 2, Tan Phu Industrial Cluster
and social housing projects. Meanwhile, long-term assets recorded 2,189 83 Billion VNI, a
glight increase of 4.96%, accounting for 26.56% of total assets, mainly including investment
propetties, fixed assets and unfinished basic construction costs. The Company's asset struciure
clearly reflects the investment accumulation phase, preparing for the exploitation of key projects
in the coming time, When projects enter the commercialization phase, the tv 1€ of long-term

assets is likely to incrense, contributing to improving asset utilization efficiency and stabilizing

cash Mhow.

k. Liahilities status

Unitz: VNI
Proportion Pri {1
YiL 0L 1 riporiion
Indicator Year ZU2E Year T4 of vear ot vear
LH 2023 i
2023 HiZad
Short-term debt 2,396,529 3,502, 80 146.16% 45.23% 36,929
Long-term debt 2,787,233 2,650,671 a5.10% 53.77% 43.08%
Total liabilities 5,183,764 6,153,480  118.71% 100%  100%

In 2024, SAIGONTEL's total liabilitics reached 6,153.48 Billion YND, an increase of 18.71%
compared to 2023, This increase mainly came from short-term debt, while long-tenm debt
vecorded a downward trend. Specifically, short-term debt increased sharply by 46.16%, from
2.3%96.53 Billion VND to 3,502.81 Billion YD, accounting for 56.92% of total liabilities. The
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main reason is the sharp increase in the item "Other short-term payables” from 197.4 Milhon
VIND to 560.2 Million WND (up 183.8%), reflecting deposits, securily deposits and expenses
related to land lease contracts at projects such as Nam Tan Tap Industrial Park and Tan Phu
Indusirial Cluster, In addition, short-term payables and payables to sellers also increased
according to the project implementation progeess, In the opposite direction, long-term debt
decreased slightly by 4% o 2,650.67 Billion YND, mainly because a portion of long-term
loans due were transferved to short-term, and the Company did not incur any significant new
long-term loans during the year. The debt structure has shifted towards short-term, showing that
SAIGONTEL is focusing on oplimizing working capital to meet the progress of investment
prajects, while still controlling liquidity risks when most of the payables incurred are commercial
obligations and have Hexible payment terms.

3. Improvements in organizational structure, policies, management

Regarding business operations, in 2024, SAIGONTEL continued to restructure its apparatus to
locus on specialized development of Industrial Park real estate and social housing, replacing the
previous orientation of telecommunications - information technology, The Company has
consolidated the management apparatus of the Project Management Boards, strengthened
personnel with expertise in real estate, industrial investment and land law 1o accelerate the
progress of implementation and complete legal documents at large-scale projects such as Nam
Tan Tap Industrial Park, Tan Phu Industrial Cluster, and Dai Dong Hoan Son Industral Park
phasze 1.

Regarding financial policies, SAIGONTEL has shified its debt structure towards more flexible
short-term debt, instead of increasing long-term foans as in previous years. At the same time, the
Company proactively negotiates and attracts deposits from customers and investors in Industrizal
Parks to finance a portion of infrastructure development costs. This not only reduces borrowing
pressure but also contributes to increasing financial auwtonomy and balancing cash flow mare
effectively.

Regarding cash fow and asset management, SAIGONTEL has made important adjustments in
controlling inventory, clearly classifying between warchoused goods and unfinished investment
costs at projects, thereby helping to clanfy the asset structure and serve the amalysis of capital
use efficiency. The Company also inereased the proportion of cash and short-term financial
itrvestments, ensuring solvency and availability of resources for immediate deployment activities
when business opporfunities anse.

4. Development plan in 2025
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Implementation Year
Consolidated target Plan Year 2025 Growth
2024
Total revenue 1,844 Billion VIND 3,000 Billion VINT 62%
Profit before tax 219.6 Billion VND 400 Billion VND R2%

5. Report assessing the company's environmental and social responsibilities

a. Assessment related to environmental indicators (water consumption, energy, CMissioms... ).
SAIGONTEL emphasizes the importance of environmental protection in the course of business
operations, not only o contribute to sustainable development but also to protect the health and
living environment of the community. The Company implements practical measures to minimize
impacis on the environment, while disseminating policies and raising awareness of
environmental protection tor all employees. in ovder to encourage each individual to be
responsible for the surrounding environment and the community.

b. Assessment Related to Labor Tssues

At SAIGONTEL, human resources are considered the top prioeity for the company's long-term
development. To improve the quality of personnel, the company has implemented a regular
training program for new employees, ineluding courses on integration and professional skills in
each field. Employees who have signed official labor contracts are organized to participate in
training classes or short-term/long-term training courses at external organizations. To encourage
leaming and self-development, the company provides allowances for improving educational
qualifications. In addition, SAIGONTEL also organizes annual trips and teambuilding activities,
all costs of which are bome by the company. Employees are also entitled to allowances
appropriate to their chire vu and responsibilities in the company.

¢. Assessment of corporate responsibility to the local community

In addition to focusing on profitable business activities, SAIGONTEL also focuses on fulfilling
its social responsibilities by participating in many community initiatives. The company has
organized and participated in activities such as visiting martyrs' cemeteries, organizing voluntary
blood donation, visiting and giving gifis to martyrs' mothers and policy families, and donating
to support people facing difficulties due to natural disasters. SAIGONTEL is commatted Lo
continuing to expand and develop more community support programs, contributing Lo the
sugtainable development of society in the foture.

TV. Assessment of the Company's operations by the Board of Divectors
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1. Assessment by the Board of Directors of the Company's operations, including

assessments related to environmental and social responsibilities

a. Financial activities
Prioritize Balancing Funds for New [nvestment Projects: SAIGONTEL emphasizes ensuring
sufficient financial resources for expanding and developing new projects. This includes caretully
evaluating investment opportunities, prioritizing capital allocation for projects that deliver high
efficiency and contribute to the company's long-term growth.
Managing ldle Capital through Term Deposit Investments: The Company opls to invest idle
capital in term deposit aceounts to ensure both capital safety and interest income generation. This
decision helps optimize capital utilization efficiency while maintaining the necessary ligreidity
for business operation
Strengthening Risk Management to Ensure Financial Security: SAIGONTEL focuses on
building and implementing robust risk management strategies (0 minimize financial risks and
ensure the company's financial stability. This includes assessing risks tor each investment Quyét
dinh, as well as applying appropriate preventive and insurance measures.
Striet Control of Operating Costs: To optimize profits, SAIGONTEL implements strict cost
control, ensuring that all expenditures are carefully reviewed and must demonstrate real value to
the company.
Board of Management Reporis and Proposes in a Timely Manner: The Company’s Board of
Management is responsible for promptly reporting on business and financial performance, and
for submitting proposals and solutions o the Board of Directors for review and approval. This
transparency and proactive approach enable the Company o swiftly adjust its sirategies in
response 1o changes in the business environment,
Striet Implementation of Board of Directors’ Resolutions: All resolutions and decisions
issued by the Board of Directors ave strictly implemented by the Board of Management and all
emplovees, ensuring consistency and efficiency in the execution of policies and business plans..
Periodic Reporting on Business and Financial Performanee: SAIGONTEL conducts
quarterly repons on its business and financial performance to the Board of Directors to ensure
transparency and support the Board in supervising and evaluating the Company's aperational
effectiveness, thereby enabling timely and appropriate management decisions,

b, [nveshuent activities
Quickly Complete Legal Procedures: Focus on quickly completing the necessary legal

procedures for the project, including compensation and site clearance, land lease, as well as
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design and construction, in order to aceelerate the progress of investment and project exploitation
effectively.
Systematically Implement Investment Steps and Construction of New Projects: Apply an
organized investment and construction process, ensuring progress and work ovder are strictly
fallowed, At the same time, investment capital must be carefully managed to ensure balance,
avoiding capital shortages or surpluses, helping the project avoid passivity in finance and
PrOgress.
Both of the above measures emphasize the importance of strict and effective managenent in all
aspects of the project investment and construction process, from site prepacation to fnancial
managerment, in order to maximize the benefits and economie efficiency of the project.

¢.  Environmental activities
Strictly Comply With Environmental Proteetion Laws: Ensure absolute compliance with
environmental protection regulations, demonstating the company’s commitment to legal
compliance and sustainable operations.
Raise Awareness of Environmental Protection Among Employees: Lavnch widespread
propaganda campaigns within the company about the importance of environmental profection
and the impact of climate change. Encourage each employee to understand their role and
responsibility in minimizing environmental risks.
Focus on Environmental Activities, Closely Monitor Wastewater Sources: [eploy a strong
environmental management system, including closely monitoring and supervising the discharge
of water ltom the company's activities, in order to minimize negative impacts on the
Enviromment.,
Implement Energy and Resource Savings: Implement measures to save energy, water amd
electricity in all company activities, This not only helps reduce operating costs but also
contributes to conserving national resources.
Through the implementation of these strategics, SAIGONTEL aims to build a sustainable and
environmentally responsible culture, while shaping business activities in accordance with global
environmental standards, contributing to the broader goal of ecological conservation.

d. Management and administration activities
Strengthen Management and Evaluation of Cadres: Improve the process of managing and
evaluating cadres, in order to use human resources most effectively. This incledes sirict control
ot production and business costs and construction investment costs, while improving the

efficiency of using capital and human resources of the company.
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Focus on Training and Fostering Minor Cadres: Focus on training and fostering Minor
codres, ensuring they have sufficient capacity, qualities and ethics, and appropriate lifestyles

The geal is to create a high-quality source of successor cadres for the company.

Guaranteeing Rights and Legitimate Interests for Employees and Shareholders: Ensure that
all legal rights and interests of employees and shareholders are recognized and prtected, thereby
creating a fair and transparent working environment.

Dévelop a Business Plan that Closely Follows Reality: Develop a business plan based on the
company's actual situation and closely monitor the developments of the economy. This helps the
company focus on completing the set targets, while flexibly adjusting the plan o respond
prompily to the market.

The above measures not only help the Company optimize existing resources but also build a
quality teamn of afficers, ready to face challenges in the future and take advantage of sustainable
development opportunities.

2. Board of Divectors® evaluation of the company's Board of General Directors’ operations
3. Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors

@ About the business - financial plan

Continue to Supervise and Approve Business Plans: The Board of General Divectors of 5GT
and member units need 1o be closely supervised, with the approval of business plans to ensure
the stable and cffective development of the company.

Develop Financial Plans and Balance Cash Flow: Develop specific financial plans to balance
cash flow, effectively mobilize capital, and develop financial plans suitable for investment needs
and payment of debts due.

Sapervise the Implementation of Investment Projeets: There should be close supervision in
the process of implementing projects that the company is planning to invest in, including the
implementation of investment activities for projects that have been granted [nvestment
Certificates.

Implement Investment Plans for Real Estate Projects: Prepare and implement investment
plans, organizational models, implementation schedules, and financial rescurces for real estate
projects that the company plans to implement in 20224,

The above steps not only help the company manage and develop current and future projects
effectively, but also ensuve that the company has sufficient financial resources to support growth
and business expansion.

b About management
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Apply strong solutions to improve management in business operations, ensure spending is
transparent and effective, thereby optimizing profits and business growth. To implement this
idea, the leaders of SAIGONTEL have offered solutions such as:
Analyze and Adjust Processes: Inspect and analyze carrent processes in the company, identify
inadequacies, and make adjustments to optimize work efficiency.
Cost Management: Establish a strict cost management system, including controlling spending
and secking opportunities to reduce prices without affecting product or service quality.
Employee Training: Organize training courses for employees on cost management and work
efficiency, to raise their awareness and skills.
Technology and lnnovation: Invest in new technology and apply innovative initiatives to
improve business efficiency and reduce unnecessary costs,
Conduet Periodic Assessments: Organize periodic assessments of business operations and cost
management, so that business plans and financial strategies can be adjusted accordingly.
By implementing the above messures, SAIGONTEL can enhance the management of business
operations effectively, use resources reasonably and thereby improve business efficiency,
¢, Regarding fuman resources - labor
Improve and perfect the human resource organizational structure, develop a team of professional
emplovees with rich skills and experience. At the same time, improve living conditions for
workers, focus on human resource planning and development, including training and recruitment
to promptly meet the company’s human rescurce needs. Expand salary and bonus palicies,
improve welfare regimes for all employees, create a professional, safe and comlortable working
environment, and encourage creativity at work.
V. Governance model
1. Board of Directors:

a. Composition and structure of the Board of Directors
As of December 31, 2024

Mo Full name Position

I | Mr. Dang Thanh Tam Chairman of the Board of Direclors

dember of the Board of Directors cum

o General Director, Authorized Person for
2 Mg, Neguyen Thi Kim Thanh )
Information Disclosure and Head of

Representative Office in Ho Chi Minh City
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Mo Full name Position
Non-executive members of the Bowd of
3 | Mrs. Nguyen Cam Phuong )
Directors
Mon-executive members ol the Board of
i M3, Ho Thi Kim Oanh )
Directors
} . Independent Member of the Beard of
3 Mr. Nguven Thanh Thai :
Directors

b. Subcommittees of the Board of Directors:
In 2024, there are 3 subcommittees of the Board of Directors: the Finance Subcommitiee, the

Development Policy Subcommittes, and the Internal Audit Subcommittes,

¢. Activities of the Board of Directors:

o Evaluate the performance af the Board of Directors during the year.

In 2024, the Board of Directors’ supervision of the Ban Biéu hinh was carried out in accordance

with the Regulations on Corporate Governance and the operating regulations of the Board of

Directors, Supervisory activities are carried out through meetings to closely monitor the activities

of the

Ban Didu hinh, and at the same time offer timely solutions for the Company's general

development in the following tasks:

Supervise the implementation of the production and business operation plan for the year,
compare and control the actual implementation against the plan. At the same time, based
on the actual situation, the Board of Dircctors gives opinions on adjusting the business
plan in each period to suit the fluctuations in the market a5 well as the Company's business
activilies.

Inspect and supervise the implementation of the Board of Directors’ nghj quyét by the
Ban Biéu hanh.

Organize the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with current
legal regulations on Apel 19, 2024,

Promote business operations, improve the quality of services being provided to ensure
stable annual revenue sources for the Company, as well as supervise the signing of
conteacts with the Company's customers.

Closely monitor risk management in investment, business, cash flow management and
financial planning activities in accordance with each period as well as market Quctuations.
Ensure financial indicators are at a safe level, with stable cash flow to finance business

operations, reinvestment as well as debt repayment in 2024,
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Ensure a working and promotion environment, increase salaries, bonuses and allowances
tor officials and employees.

. The Board of Management has managed the Company's business operations in
accordance with its duties and suthority as preseribed by law, the Company’s Charter, and
internal management regulations, while fully implementing all resolutions of the Board of
Directors. The Board of Management has also ensured the provision of complete
information and created favorable conditions for the Board of Supervisors 1o access and

veview the Company’s financial situation and other activitics..

s Activities of the Board of Divectors’ subcommitiees

In 2024, the main activities of the subcomminees focused on advising, providing feedback,

and supervising the 2024 business plans of both member units and the parent company. The

subcommitices under the Board of Directors would like to report as follows::

¢ Finance Sub-committes

The Finance Sub-committee is a division within SGT's governance structure, established by a

guyét dinh from the Board of Directors. The Sub-committee's primary function is to advise and

consult with the Board of Directors on business plans, capital mobilization, budget management,

and other financial objectives.

Provide counsel on the development, veview, and update of the 2024 business plans for
member units, ensuring alignment with the Company’s strategic direction.

Manage and closely interact with the Company s subsidiaries and member companies o
cnsure the most effective operation, including monitoring and  evaluating - the
implementation of each company's business plan to ensure the comect implementation of
the objectives set out at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Ensure that the review of financial statements and monitoring of the financial sitisaion
of the units are carried out fully, promptly, and accurately, At the same time, preside over
the completion of the internal tinancial control system and upgrade the financial risk
management framework to enhance transparency and risk prevention capabilitics.,
Supervise and support the improvement of the operational efficiency of the Finance -
Accounting department, ensuring the practice of financial management in accordance
with standards and strict compliance with current legal regulations, as well as domestic
and intemational accounting standards,

Conduct a comprehensive assessment of the feasibility study reports for existing projects

and new development investment projects, thereby providing appropriate
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recormendations and orientations to optimize investment efficiency and minimize risks
for the business.

s Development Policy Sub-committee

The Development Policy Sub-committee is a division within SGT's govemance structure,

established by a quyét dinh from the Board of Directors. The Sub-committee’s primary function

is to advise and consult with the Board of Directors on goals related to short, medium, and long-

term development strategies.

Deploy a comprehensive digital transformation plan for the Company, including assessing
the current status of the IT system, identifying priovity areas for digitalization (hnance -
accounting, human resources, etc.), selecting appropriate technologies, and building a
controlled transformation roadmap, This process is carried out in sync with the overall
development strategy, ensuring efficiency, feasibility, and harmony between technology
- people - processes.

Complete and implement the corpotate culture framework, including defining the Vision,
Mission, Core Values, and long-term development policy goals. This helps create a
positive working environment that encourages creativity and sustainable development of
the Company.

Provide periodic advice and consultation to the Leadership Board in developing medium
and long-term strategies, assessing risks and opportunities in the context of a rapidly
changing market, especially in the Company's core areas such as technology
infrastructure, khu céng nghidp investment, digital transformation, and innovation.
Ensure synchronizetion and consistency betwesn strategic plans and functional units,
through periodic review, dialogue, and reporting mechanisms, helping the entire system
operate harmoniously and towards commen goals.

Specify the number of Board of Directors meetings.

In the 2024 financial year, the Board of Directors held 15 meetings, including both in-person

spssions and written consultations with individual members. These meetings were convened and

conducted according to a specific schedule, with complete documentation prepared in
compliance with the Company’s Charter and applicable laws. The meeting agendas were

thoroughly discussed, eritically reviewed, and carefully evaluated by the members of the Board

of Directors..

Meniher of the Board!of Position Statistics of Percentaze

Ihrectiors attendance il
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1 Mr Dang Thanh Tam Chairman of the BOD 15/15 | 0
Member of the BOD
cum General Director,
Authorized Person for
[nformation
2 Mrs. Nguyen Cam Phuong . 15715 | %4
Disclosure and Head
of Representative
Office in Ho Chi Minh
City
Mon-executive
Ms. Ho Thi Kim Qanh 15/15 100%
members of the BOD
Mon-executive
4  Ms. Neuyen Thi Kim Thanh 15/15 100%
members of the BOD
Independent Member

5 Mr. Nguyen Thanh Thai 15/15 100%
of the BOD

B

s Spate the contenis and outcomes of the meetings.

The Board of Directors held a total of |5 mectings, including 4 regular annual meetings and
11 extraordinary meetings, All meetings of the Board were conducted in compliance with the
provisions of the law and the Company’s Charter. During these meetings, the Boand of
Directors lssued decisions related to the organization of the General Meeting of Sharcholders,
share transfers, loan arrangemenis with credit institutions, capital contributions 1o establish
subsidiarics and affiliated companics, and the approval of transactions with the Company s
related parties.

All resolutions and decisions issued by the Board of Directors were unanimously agreed upon
by its members and complied with the Company’s Chavter. The detailed contents of the

resolutions and decisions are as follows:

Mecting y Approval
Decisinn number L onlenl

Date rate

Approving the final registration date to finalize
February 23, e
01/2024/0B-HROT the list of shareholders to prepare for the 2024 L00%

2024 :
Ceneral Meeting of Sharcholders
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Drecision number

ylectime

rafe

Approval

Content
rite

Approving the oipanization of the 2024
March 21, | General Meeting of Shareholders of
022024/QB-HBQT e, . | (0%
2023 SAIGONTEL, the organization time is April
19, 2024
Approving the set of documents submitted to
March 28,
04/2024/QB-HDQT S the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders of | Q0%
) SAIGONTEL
— | Approving the dismissal of the position of
il 16,
05/2024/QD-HPQT qu Secretary kiém person in charge of corporate 1 (0%
o governance for Ms. Sam Thi Huong
il 18 Approving the appointment of M. Duong
vil 16,
03A2024/QB-HBOQT Zﬂ” Thanh Long to the position of Secretary kidm L 00%
) person in charge of corporate govemance
Approving the cooperation in capital
contribution to esiablish a project company 1o
May 27, implement the investment project to build
07TAL2024/QB-HBQT . ) 100%
2024 Mgan Ha Vien Tan Thanh cemetery park in
Tan Thanh commune, Phu Binh district, Thai
MNauven province
[ Appml.-'ai of the cancellation of the r,apd'tai
contribution plan for the establishment of Phu | .
: June 03, Binh Xanh Investment and Development Joint | :
09/2024/QB-HBOT : 100% |
2024 Stock Company, and the annulment of all
| contents of Decision No, 07A2024/QD-BOD
dated May 27, 2024.
Approving the selection of an auditing unit (o
10/2024/0D-HBOT | July 08, 2024 | review the semi-annual financial statements | 00%
and audit the 2024 financial statements
Approving the dismissal of Mr. Duong Thanh
September .
112024/0B-HPOT s S Long from the Position of Secretary kiém | 0%,
o person in charge of corporate governance and
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Min,

ecizion number

Meeting

ate

Contend

the appointment of Ms. Tran Anh Thu to dim
nhi¢m the Position of Secretary ki€ém person in
charge of corporale governance

Approyal

FaLe

Approval of the adjustméﬁt? the detailed
implementation plan of the Dai Dong Hoan

' September
10 | 122024/Q0B-HPQT | € Sr%i Son Industrial Park [nvestment Project - Phase 100%
L [l {without changing the total investment
capital).
Appn:ruin? ﬂze_a:.aﬁ;;t-r-ﬂé'm of detailed
October 08, | implementation of the Tan Phu | Industrial
L1 | 13/72024/QD-HBQT gk ) 100%
2024 Cluster project in Thai Npuyen (without
changing the total investment)
. Approving the adjustment of detailed
October 08, | implementation of the Tan Phu 2 Industrial
12| 142024/0B-HBOT > - 1 _ | 00%
2024 Cluster project in Thai Nguyen (without
changing the total investment)
| Approving the implermnentation of secking
Dctober 29, :
13 | 152024/QB-HBOQT 0% investment chil tewong for the Dong Trieu | Q0%
| Industrial Park project, Quang Minh
Approving borrowing capital from VP Bank to
December | . :
14 | 16/2024/0B-HBOT 3024 | implement the Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial | 00%s
! 4 Park phase I project
- Approving the mortgage of assets being
December )
15 | 1772024/QB-HBOT 6 HiE SAIGONTEL"s stake at SAIGONTEL Long | 00
" | AnCompany Limited
| Approving the issuance of a credit limit and
I long-term borrowing to pay for legitimate,
December | valid, and reasonable expenses o implement
16 | 18/2024/QB-HDQT | : . 1004
25,2024 | the investment praject "C2 factory, C2 office
and infrastructure for lease in lot A23 in the Da
Mang High-Tech Park phase | of
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M.

Meeting Approval
B 1} |

Peciaion number Content
Ihate

SAIGONTEL High-Tech Investment and
Development Co., Ltd, at Vietam Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade

e

= Activities of independent Board members.

The Board of Directors has 01 independent member, Mr. Nguyen Thanh Thai. The independent
member of the Board of Directors has professional capacity and many years of experience in the
main areas of operation of the Company, so he has made important contributions to the policy
decisions of the Board of Directors. In 2024, the Independent Member of the Board of Directors
fully participated in decisionsfissues under the authority of the Board of Directors, especially
\rgnsactions between the Company and related parties to ensure transparency, control conflicts
of interest, and protect the interests of the Company and shareholders.

2. Board of Sapervisors

a. Members The Board of Supervisors
As of December 31, 2021

oy

Mo Full name Pasition

1 | Mr. Nguyen Duc Thuan - Head of Member of the Board of Supervisors

2 | Mrs. SuNgoc Bich Member of the Board of Supervisors

3 | Ms. Le Thi Kim Nhung Member of the Board of Supervisors

b. Activities of The Board of Supervisors
o Evaluation of the activities of The Board of Supervisors during the year.

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors of Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joint Stock

Company performed the following tasks:
Control of Amendments and Promulgation of [nternal Management Regulations: The Board
of Supervisors conducted inspections and monitoring before, during, and after the
promulgation of internal management regulations by the Board of Directovs and the Board
of Management. The Board of Supervisors also participated in providing feedback and
exercised control during the drafting and amendment stages of these regulations.

- Inspection and Monitoring of Authority Compliance in Decision-Making: The Board af
Supervisors inspected and monitored the appropriateness of the authority exercised by the
Board of Directors and the General Director in the decision-making process, as well as the

issuarice procedures of the Company's documents, ensuring compliance with legal provisions
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and the Company's Charter

- Supervising the preparation of financial statements tw ensure the uthfulness and
reasonableness of the financial figures presented,

- Inspecting and appraising the report evaluating the management and adminisiration of the
Company in 2024, Reviewing the financial staternents in 2024 issued by the Company.

- Inspecting and supervising the procedures and order in the organization of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, ensuring compliance with the provisions of law and the
Company's Charter.

s Coordination of Activities Between Members of the Board of Supervisors and the
Board af Directors, Board of Management, and Other Management Personnel.

- The Board of Supervisors regularly exchanges informyation with the Board of Directors
arl the Board of Management through various channels such as direct communication,
official documents, and emails,

- The Board of Supervisors also frequently assigns representatives to attend departmental
meetings to enhance the quality and independence of supervisory activities. In these
meetings, members of the Board of Supervisors provided feedback within the scope of
their functions and authority.

- The Board of Directors, the Board of Management, and the Company's departments have

cooperated and facilitated the Board of Supervisors in performing their functions and
duties in accordance with regulations. Reports, records, and documents are fully provided

to the Board of Supervisors upon request,

o Specify the number of Board of Supervisors meelings,

Numher of Percentage of
Members of the I
Puosition mcetings attended meeting
BOS
attendance
Head of Member aof

|  Mpguyen Dug Thuan 004 [ 0%

the BOS
2  SuNgoc Bich Member of the BOS (k0 100%:
3 Le Thi Kim Nhuhg Member of the BOS 004 100%

o State the Content and resnlis of the meetings.,
The BOS held D4 meetings. The specific Content of the meetings were 13sued as follows:
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Mumber of

=TT : nii dung
T am b

Assigning tasks to members to perform the nhigm vy of
the Member of the BOS according to the Resolution of
the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
01/2024/8GT- April 22, - Evaluating the finh hinh hoat ddng in the first 3 months
BBH-BES 2024 of 2024 of the Company, including:
- Activities of the Board of Directors, Board of Directors
- Regarding financial accounting work and business
performance resulls
Agsessment of the Company's §-month operation in 2024,
including:
D22024/5GT- July 25, Activities of the Board of Directors, Board of General
BBEH-BES 2024 Divectors

- On financial aceounting work and business performance

results
Assessment of the Company's operation in the thivd quarter
and 9 months of 2024, including:
03/2024/SGT-  October 18, - Activities of the Board of Directors, Board of General

BBH-BKS 2024 Directors
- On financial sceounting work and business performance

results
Evaluate the Company's activities in 2024 and prepare nbi
dung for the BOS' Report at the 20235 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders

0d/2024/8GT- December
BBH-BKS 26, 2024

3. Transactions, remuneration, and benefits of the Board of Directors, the General

Director, and the BOS.

#. Salaries, bonuses, remuncration, and benefits
Unit; ¥ND

Posilion fieome

Board of Directors’ members and BKS
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Mame

|  Ms. Nguyen Thi Kim Thanh

2 Mrs. Nguyen Cam Phuong

Ms. Ho Thi Kim Oanh

fad

4  Mr, Nguyen Thanh Thai

5 | Mr. Nguyen Due Thuean

&  Mrs. Su Ngoe Bich

7 Mrs. Le Thi Kim Nhung

Board of General Directors

|  Murs. Noguyen Cam Phuong

2 Mr. Le Mguyen Hoang Anh

3 bMr. Pham Van Luc

4  Mr. Nguyen Anh Tu

&  Mr. YuMNgoc Anh

Positiin

Mon-executive Board of

Directors” members
Board of Directors’ members

Non-executive Board of
Directors” mambers
[ndependent Board of

Directors” members

Head of the BOS
Member of the BOS

Member of the BOS

Baoard of Directors’ members
curm General Director
Dreputy CGeneral Director of
Finance cum Acting Chief
Accountant
Deputy CGeneral Director of
Urban
Deeputy General Divector of
Engineering cum Director of
Thai Nguyen Branch
Deputy General Director cum
Director of Bac Ninh Branch

Income

156,000,000

156,000,000

156,000,000

156,000,000

144,000,000
120,000,000

120, 000,000

349,350,151

693,321,335

706,125,000

698,515,000

386,726,130
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b. Share transactions of intérnal persons

Number of shares owned at the

: Relationship with internal
Transaction executor
Number of

sharey

|Chairman of the Board cum Legal

!Dang Thanh Tam 33,060,740
Representative

i |Mr. Dang Thanh Tam - Chairman|

TT Investment and of the Board cum Legal

Development Joint Representative of 8GT is also the i

Stock Company Legal Represeniative cum

| Director of DTT Company

¢. Contracts or transactions with internal persons

Name of NSH No*,
Relationship with Address of head
organization/ 1\ date of issue, il
the Compamy offices Address

individual place of issuc

SAIGONTEL Chng ty con 0106684254, ird Floor — 193
Real Fstate Mg, Mguyen Cam 1s5ued on Trich Sei Street,
Investment Phuong — Board of | Movember 06,  Buoi Ward, Tay
Joint Stock Dvirectors” members | 20014 in Hanoi | Ho Disirict, Hanod

heginning of the period

Momber of shares owned at the
Reasons for increase,
end of the period
decrease (buy, sell, convert,

Percentuage

Number of shares Percentage bonus...)

' ' Sold 25,000,000 shares for
| 10,060,740 6,70%

| personal financial Iy do

23.69%,

| = Purchased 25,000,000 SGT
®e | 25N} 16,89%

sharey

Time of
Deecisinnmn Wi
transaetio
_ of the Board
nwiththe
of Ihrectors 2024

Content, guantity, total

value of transaction in

COmpany

In the first | 26/2021/NQ- | Trading goods, transferring The Board of
6 months | HEQT dated internal capital, Directors’ members
of 2024 August 19, impléementing business has 8 common
2021 and cOOperation contracts decision on
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No

Name of
. Relationship with
organization :
individual the Company
Company cum Cieneral
(SGTLand) Director and Head
of Representative
Office in Ho Chi
Minh City of SGT 13
also a Board of
[Mrectors™ members
of SGTLand
Mr. Pham Van Luc
— Deputy General
Director cum Head
of Representative
Ohce in Hano of
SGT, concurrently
General Director of

SGTLand
Mr. Le Nguyen

NSH No*,
date of issue,

place of issue

City

Address of head

office’ Address

City

Time of
~ Decision No,
iransactio php=py
: of the Board
n with the
of DMrectors
e [rany

04/2023/0)D-
HBQT dated
March 28,
2023
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Content, guantity, total

value of transaction in

2024

Total transaction valus;

3.006,821,226 VNI

transactions with
frequently transacting

parties
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N

2

Name of
organization/

individual

Relationship with

the Company

Hoang Anh —
Deputy General
Director of Finance
cum Acting Chiel
Accountant of 3GT,
concurrently a

Board of Directors’

MSH No#,

date of issue,

place of issue

Address of head

office’ Address

Time of
transactio
n with the

O [ran Y

Diecmsinn Na.

of the Board

of Directors

members of
S TLand
SAIGONTEL = Affiliated company | 0313042604, 3A Floor, Mo, 12 | In the first | 26/2021/MN0-
Distribution Mr. Le Neuyen izsued on Pham Dinh Toai, | 6 months = HBPOQT dated
and Service Hoang Anh - December 06, Ward 6, Ho Chi of 2024 August 19,
loint Stock Deputy General 2014 in Ho Minh City 2021 and
Compary Director of Finance | Chi Minh Cirty 04/2023/0D-
{(SD]) cumn Acting Chiel HEBEOT dated
Accountant of SGT, March 28,
concurrently 2023
Annual Report 2024
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Content, quantity, total
value of transaction in

2024

Ansing loan inlerest:
989,736,042 VND
Loan interest payrment:
200,000,000 VKD

The Roard of
Directors” members
has a common
decision on

transactions with

frequently transacting

partics
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Name of

No  organization/

individual

Relationship with

the Company

NSH No*,
date of issue,

place of issue

Address of henad

officef Address

Time of
transaciio

n with the

Decision No.
of the Board

af Directors

Content, quantity, total
value of transaction in

2024

3 Kinh Bac
[mvestment
Joint Stock

Company

4 Sai Gon Lam

Dong
Investment
and Tourism

Joint Stock

Chairman of the
Board of Directors
members of 5D
Cdng ty con
Mr. Nguyen Anh Tu
— Deputy General
Director of SGT,
concurrently
Greneral Director of
Kinh Bac
[nvestment Joint
Stock Company
Ms. Npuyven Cam
Phuong — Board of
Directors’ members
cum General

Director and Head

0102319613
isgued by

Hanoi

Depariment of

Planning and
Investment on

July 17, 2007

SR00467579
igsued by Lam

Dong

Department of

Flanning and

3rd Floor — 193
Trich Sai Street,
Buoi Ward, Tay
Ho Dhstnict, Hanod

City

Cable Car Tourist
Area, Robin Hill,
Ward 3, Da Lat
City, Lam Dong

Province

COMPany

In the first
O months
of 2024

In the first
6 months
of 2024

26/2021/NQ-
HBQT dated
August 19,
2021 and
04/2023/05)-
HBQT dated
March 28,
2023

2602021 /NQ-
HEQT dated
August 19,
2021 and
04/ 2023/QD-
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Receivables and payables
for goods and service
supply
Towsl transaction value:

31,082.370 VND

SGT collects money for
providing services i
SGLD: 4 730,000 VND
Interest arising from SGT's

loan w SGLE: 36,290,718

The Board of
Directors™ members
has 4 common
decision on
iransactions with
frequently transacting

parties

The Board of
Directors™ membears
has a common
deciston on

transactions with
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Time of

Name of o i NSH No*, ~ Decision Mo. Content, guantity, toral
Relationship with Address of head  transactio
No  organization/ date of issue, o of the Board  value of transaction in
the Company office/ Address  n with the
individuzsl place of issue of Directors 2024
company
Company of Representative | Investment on HDOT dated VHD frequently transacting
(SGLE) Office in Ho Chi February 03, March 28, SGT collects principal and parties
Minh City of SGT, 20005 2023 interest for loans to SGLD:
concurrently a 2,322, 719,533 VND

Board of Directors’
members of SGLE

5 Robin Hill Ms. Nguyen Cam 5800893824 Mo, 4923 Pham In the first | 265202 1L/NO- 50T collected service The Board of
Tourist Area | Phuong —Board of | issued by Lam | Hong Thai Street, & months HBOT dated provision lees for Robin Directors has a
Company Directors’ members Dong Ward 10, Da Lat of 2024 August 19, Hiil: 2,304,750,005 VND  common resolution on
[ imited cum General Department of | City, Lam Dong 2021 and Collection of loan principal: fransactions with
[¥rector and Head | Planning and Province O 2023/05)- 53,216, 800,000 VND frequently transacting
of Representative [nvestment on HBEOT dated | Collection of loan interest: parties
Oftice in Ho Chi April 08, March 28, 19, 717,081,349 YND
Minh City of SGT, 2000 2023 Interest ansing from SGT's
concurrently Ipan 1w Robin:
Director cum Legal 1,201,537.972 VD

| Representative of
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Time of _ -
Name of NSH No*, Diccision No.  Content, quantity, total
Relationship with Address of head rransactio
No  organization/ date of issue, of the Board value of transaction in

the Company office/ Address  n with the _
individual place of issue of Directors 2024
COMPany

Robin Hill

[ Saigon - Hai Mr. Dang Thanh 0200681370 Trang Due Khu I the first Loan repayment: At the time the loan
Phong Khu Tam - Chaimman of | issued by Hai = ¢ong nghiép, Le & months 3, 200,000,000 VYND was incurred in 2013,
cdng nghiép SGT's Board of Phong Loi Commune, An = of 2024 Interest incurred: SHP wasnot veta
Corporation | Direclors is also the | Department of  Duong Distriet, 264,805,481 VND related party, so there

{SHP) Chairman of SH's | Planning and = Hai Phong City. was no information
Board of Directors | Investment on disclosure related 1o
July 20, 2006 this transaction. In the

tirst & months of 20235,
only loan inlersst was
recorded according to
this loan contract and
loan repayment, no
new transactions
occurred, sono
decision was issued on

accounting for interast

Annual Report 2024 &1




No

Mame of

organization’

individual

NSH No*,

Relationship with

r date of i5se,
the Company
place of issue

Address of head

office! Address

Time of

transact

0

n with the

£ [y

Decision Mo,
of the Board

of Directors

Long An Associated company | 1101977259 Lot éA, Street 3, | Inthe first | 267202 1/M0)-
Investment Mr. Dang Thanh 1ssued by Tan Due Khu cing | 6 months | HBOQT dated
Development  Tam - Chairman of Long An nghiép, Duc Hoa of 2024 Aupust 19,
Joint Stock SGT's Board of Provinee Ha Commune, 2021 and
Company Diirectors is also the | Deparniment of | Due Hoa Distriey, 04/ 2023/00D-
(LADIC) Chairman of Planning and = Long An Province HBOT dated
LADIC's Board of = Investment on March 28,
Dhrectors February 18, 2023
Ms. Mguven Cam 2021
Phuong - Member
of the Board of
Directors cum
Ceneral Director
and Head of
Representative
Office in Ho Chi
Annual Report 2024
al -4 D o

Content, quantity, total
value of transaction in

2024

and repayment
SGT borrows from LADIC: The Board of
12,000,000,000 VD Diréctors has a
SGT repays loan principal
to LA 98 300,000,000

WML

common resalution on
transactions with

frequently transacting

Interest incurred:

10,168,210,155 VND

partics

Revenue from providing
services to LADIC:
2,834 065,210 VND

Payable for services that

LADIC provides to SGT;

322,108,800 VND

82



Time of
_ Decision Mo, Content, guantity, toral
transactio
of the Board value of transaction in

MNEH Mo*,
Address of head
224

Mame of
Relationship with
date of issue.
affice’ Address n with the
of INrectars
company

No  erganization! =
e the Company 3
individual place of issoe

hink City of SGT is
also the General
Director of LADIC
] Saigon Urban Cong ty con 0109049028 | 2nd floor, Buillding  In the first  26/2021/MN0Q- | 5GT Collects loan principal: The Board of
Investment Ms. Nguyen Cam issued by 24T3, No. 6 Le 6 months | HROQT dated 2,315,208,333 VND Directors has a
ancd Phuong - Member Hanoi Van Thiem, Thanh | of 2024 August 1%, Accrued interest receivable: | common resolution on
Development of the Board of Department of | Xuvan Trung Ward, 2] and 47,241 4539 VND transaciions with
Joint Stock Directors cum Planning and Thanh Xuan 4 2023/0D- frequently transacting
Company General Director | Investment on | District, Hanoi HDOT dated parties
(SGLU) and Head of December 31, Ciry March 28,
Representative 2019 2023

CHifice in Ho Chi
Minh City of 3GT 15
also the Chairman

of the Board of
Directors of SGU
9 SAIGONTEL Cong ty con 0402079923 | 61A Nguyen Van | Inthe first | 26/22021/NQ-  SGT borrows money from The Board of
Annual Report 2024 83
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Time of

Content, quantity, total

value of transaetion in

2024

Name of ; e NSH No*., _ Decision No.
N fergntatian Relationship with ke Address of head  transactio e
mdividual SIS oy place of issue Ofttees Mldres e of Directors
Company
High-Tech issued by Da | Cu, Hoa Hiep Bac | 6 months = HDOT dated
Investment Many Ward, Lien Chiey = of 2024 August 19,
and Department of | District, Da Nang 2021 and
Development PMlanning and City 042023/QD-
Co., Lid Investment on HEOT dared
{SGTHi-1ech) January 24, March 28,
2021 2023
110 Saigon Vien  Affiliate Company = 0306192669 300 A-B Nguyen | Inthe first | 26/2021/N0Q-
Thong Textile  Ms. MNpuyen Cam issued by the  Tat Thanh, Ward | 6 months | HDQT dated
pnd Garment  Phuong — Member | Department of 13, District 4, ol 2024 August 19,
Joint Stock of the Board of Planning and HCMC 2021 and
Company Vi Directors, Investment of 04/2023/0D-
Ma (SGVN) concurrently Ho Chi Minh HDOT dated
General Director City on March 28,
and Head of the December 03, 2023
Representative M2
Offics in Ho Chi
Annual Report 2024
B &5

SliTHi-tech: 8,000,000,00:0

YD
Accrued loan interest:
21,041,009 VND
SGT collects service
provision fees: 4 840 000
VN
SGT provides services Lo
SGVHN Company:
SO0, 000,000 VWD
ST lends SGVN:
4,500,000,000 YND
Accrued loan interest:
80,438,356 VND

Directors has a joint
decision on
ransaclions with
frequently transacting

paarties

I'he Board of
Directors has a joint
decision on
transactions with
frequently transacting

partics



Name of

Relationship with

Mo organization/ i
o the Company
individual

Minh City of SGT,
also serves as a
Member of the

Board of Directors,

Legal

Representative, and

Director of SGVN,
Mr. Le Nguyen

Hoang Anh -
Acting Chief
Accountant eurm
Deputy Finance
Drirector of 50T,
concurrently holds
the position of Chief
Accountant of

SGWVN,

NSH No=,
dare of issue;

place of iz5ue

Addeess of head

office’ Address

1'ime of
Decision Mo
Lramsachin |
of the Board
n with the
ol Directors
COmpany

Annual Report 2024

Content, quantity, total
value of ransaction in
2024
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Mame of

No organization’

imdiviczal

MNEH No®,

Relationship with Address of head
date of 155ue,

affice’ Address

the Company

place of issue

Time of i
Diecision Mo,

of the Board

; (Content, quaniity, total
tramsactio
value of tTransaction in
n with the

of Directaors ol |
{:nmpar;:.'

11 SAIGONTEL Subsidiaries | 101977241 Lot 6A, Road No. | Inthe first | 26/2021/MN0- Receivables from SGT's
Long An Mr. Dang Thanh | issued by the 3, Tan Due 6 months | HDOQT dated  sale of goods and provision
Company Tam - Chairman of | Department of |  Industrial Park, of 2024 August 19, of services to SLA:

Limited the Board of Planning and Due Hoa Ha 2021 and 243 126 400 VD
(SLA) Directors of 8GT is | Investment of | Commune, Duc 042023/QD- Pavables from SG7T for
also Chairman of Long An Hoa District, Long HDQT dated services and products
the Members' Provines on An Province March 28, provided by SLA:
Council of LADIC, | February 18, 2023 76,051,905 VNI
Ms. Mguyen Cam 2021
Phuong — Member
of the Board of
Directors cum
Cieneral Director
and Head of the
Representative
OfMice in Ho Chi
Minh City of 5GT
Annual Report 2024

S8 A

The Board of
Directors has a joint
decision on
transactions with
frequently transacting

parties
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Name of

No  organizafion/

imdividuwsl

Relationship with

the Com pany

MNSH MNo*,
date of issue,

place of issue

Address of head

office! Address

Time of e
Decision Mo,

of the Board

fransactio

n with the SR
of DHrectors
company

Content, quantity, total
value of transaction m

2024

alsn serves as a
Member of the

hembers’ Council

cumn Director of |

SLA.

12 Hung Yen Mr. Dang Thanh 0901095293 | No, SETIngyun In the first | 26/2021/NQ-
Investment Tam — Chaimman of | issued by the Van Linh Street, 6 momhs | HDOQT dated
and the Board of Department of Le Loi Ward, of 2024 August 19,
Development | Directors of SGT is | Planning and Hung Yen City, 2021
Giroup J5C also the Legal Investment of Hung Yen
Representative of Hung Yen Province
Hung Yen province on
Investment and February 03,
Development Group 2021
Joint Stock
Company.
Annual Report 2024

Accrued loan interast:

1,634,464.977 VND

The Board of
Directors has Decision
26/2021/NQ-HDOT
duted August 19, 2021
on borrowing, in the
first 6 months of 2024,
only loan interest
aross from this loan,
and no additional
Decisions werd issued
on accounting for loan

interest
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Name of
No  organization/

imdividual

L MNESH No®,
Relationship with A
date of 155ue,
the Company
place of issue

Time of
Address of head  fransactio
office’ Address n with the

COPany

Decision Mo,
of the Board

of Directors

Content, gquantity, total

value of transaction in

2024

13 Trang Cat Mr. Dang Thanh D201 250666 Bai Trieu Area, | Inthe frst | 26B/2021/0) Accrued loan interest:
Urhan Tam = Chairman of | issued by the | belonging to Dinh = & months D-HDQT 14,240, 000,000 VND
Development the Board of Department of Vu - Cat Hai of 2024 dared Adjustment 1o reduce loan
One Member | Directors of SGT is | Planning and | Economic Zone, Seplember interest payable:
Company the Chatrman cum | Investment of | Trang Cat Ward, 19, 2021 1,873.972.603 VND
Limited General Director of | Hai Phong Hai An District,
Trang Cat Urban | provinee on Hai Phong City,
Development One March 22, Viemam
Member Company 2012
Limited
14 T™ Global Mr. Le Nouyen 0313269288 | No. 12 Pham Dxinh = In the first | 26/2021/NQ- SGT pays TNG for
Joint Stock Hoang Anh - issued by the Toai, Ward 6, 6 months | HPOQT dated providing office rental
Company Acting Chiel Department of | District 3, Ho Chi | of 2024 August 19, services and other services;
Accountant cum Planning and Minh City 2021 and 3.430,350,000 VND
Deputy Financial  Investment of 04/2023/0D- SGT collects money for
Director is the Téng = Ho Chi Minh HBOQT dated | services provided to TNG:
Giam B of TN City on May March 28, 11,438,061 YND
Annual Report 2024

Loan interest incurred
from the loan under
Decision No.
268202 1/0B-HPQT
ngay September 19,
2021, no Decision was
1ssued for loan mterest

accounting

The Board of
Directors has a peneral
Decision on
transactions with
frequently transacting

parties

28



Time of

Name of =l NSH No*#, ; Decision No. Cantent, quantity, total
: o Relationship with i, Address of head  transactio ]
No  organization/ ) date of issue, of the Board value of transaction in
the Compamy office’ Address n with the :
mdividual place of issue of Directors 2024
cCOmpany
Global Joint Stock 25, 2015 2023
Company
15 Saigon - Ham  Ms. Nguyen Cam 0302607577 | Lot B5-38 Nguyen | Inthe first | 28/2021/NQ-  SGT provides services to The Board of
Tan Tourism ~ Phuong - Member | issued by the = Tri Phuong, Tan | 6 months = HBQT dated  SHTC and collects money:  Directors has a general
Joint Stock of the Board of Department-of = Ly 2 hamlet, Tan af 2024 August 19, 54,115,800, 737 VND Decision on
Company Directors kigm ']‘ﬁng Planning and Binh commune, 2021 and SGT pays for services transactions with
(SHTC) Giam Pocand Head | Investment of | Lagi town, Binh (4 2023/Q0- provided by SHTC: frequently transacting
of Representatve Binh Thuan Thuan provinece HBPOT dated 20,617,177 VND parties
Office in Ho Chi Provinge on March 28,
Minh City of SGT is March 23, 2023
also the Standing 2002

Deputy General
Dirvector of SHTC

16 | TanPho Mr. Dang Thanh L1a19taltl MNo. 133, 835 In the first | 22ASHX2I0) Accrued loan interest; [nformation
Trung Long | Tam - Chairman of | issued by the | Street, Can Giuoe 6 months D-HBOT 33,936,287 VND Diisclosure has been
An Industrial the Board of Department of | Town, Can Giuog of 2024 dated June made according to
Park One Directors of SGT s | Planning and | District, Long An 30,2022 Official Dispatch Na.
Annual Report 2024 a8
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Time of

Decision No.  Content, quantity, total

MNSH No&,

Name of :
_ : Relationship with Address af head  trapsactio
{1} organalion’ § date of issue, ] of the Board value of fransaction in
iR the Company g office/ Address  n with the .
individual place of issue of DMrectors 2024
Cikm ]'I-H I'I:|.'

Member also the Chairman Investment of | Province, Vielmam

Lumited of the Company of Long An

Company Tan Phu Trung Provinee on

(TPT - LA) Long An Industrial April 26,
Park One Member 2019
Limited Company

0318097177 3rd tloor, No. 12 | Inthe first 18/2023/QD- Contributing capital 1o

17 | SAIGONTEL | Associated company
Pham Dinh Toai, | 6 months | HDOT dated establish a company:

STS Vietnam M3z, MNguyen Cam 1ssued by the

Limited Phueong - Member | Department of | Vo Thi Sau ward, of 2024 August 15, 11,515, 000,000 VWD
Company al the RBoard af Planning and District 3, Ho Chi 2033
Directors cum Investment of Minh City
General Director He Chi Minh
Annual Report 2024
AT

1452022/CV-5GT
ngdy July 13, 2022
and explanation for
late Information
Daselosure on the
SAme ngay regarding
the loan from TPT-
LA, Mo Board of
Directors Decision
was issued for the
incurred loan interest.
Information
Disclosure has been
made regarding the
capital confribution to
establish the Company

according to Official

a0



5 Time af :
Name of AP NSH No=. Decision No. Content, qurantity, total
Relationship with Address of head  transachio

No  orranization/ ; date of issue, : of the Board value of transaction in
g the Company office/ Address  n with the :
individual place of issue of Directors 2024
COMpany

and Headof | Cityon | Dispatch No.
Representative Ocwober 12, 143/2023/CV-3GT
Office in Ho Chi 2023 ngdy August 13, 2024,
Minh City of 5GT is in the first & months of
also the Legal 2024, the capital
Representative kigm contribution was
Chairman of the transferred according
Member Council of tey the issued Decision

SAIGONTEL 8TS

Vietnam Limited

Company
15 Saigon Wr. Dang Thanh 0303007752 | QL 22, Tram Bom | Inthe first | 04/2023/QD-  SGT borrows from SCD: The Board of
MNorthwest Tam - Chairman of | issued by the | Hamlet, Tan Phu =~ émomths  HDOQT dated 22.500,000,000 VND Directors has a
Lirban the Board of Depariment of | Trung Commune, of 2024 Mlareh 28, Accrued loan interest: common resolution on
Development | Directors of SGTis | Planning and | Cu Chi District, 2023 667,945,206 VND transactions with
Joint Stock also the General Investment of | Ho Chi Minh City frequently trangacting
Company Director of SCD Ho Chi Minh parties.
Annual Report 2024 91
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: _ Time of :
wWame of NSH MNo™, Derision Moo Content, quﬂulitj', total

Address of head  transactio
af the Board valoe of transaction in

Relationship with
MNo organization/ A date of 1ssue,

the Company office! Address 0 with the 1 -
place of issue of Directors 2024

individual Foat
company
(8CD) City on
November (4,
. 2003

19 Salgon - Hai Mr. Dang Thanh 200681370 Trang Due Khu | Inthe first | 042023/01- | Offset of debr: 359,748,205 The Board of

Phong Khu Tam - Chairman of | issued by Hai = cdng nghiép, Le 6 months | HDOQT dated VND Directors has a
common resolution on

Lot Commune, An of 2024 March 28,
Joint Stock Directors 15 also Department of | Duong District, 2023 transactions with
Chairman of SHP's | Planning and | Hai Phong City, frequently transacting

cong nghiép SGT's Board of Phomng

Company
{(SHP) Board of Directors | [nvestment on parties.
July 20, 2006
20 Kumba Jaint Ms, Nguyen Cam 00815606 342 Vo Van Kiet, | Inthe first  04/2023/0D- | SGT borrows money from The Board of
Stock Phuong - Board issued by Ho Co Giang Ward, 6 months | HDOQT dated Kumba: 5,300,000,000 Directors has a
Company Member cum Chi Minh City = District 1, HCMC | of 2024 harch 28, YHND common resolution on
General Director | Department of 2023 SGT repays the principal of transactions with
and Head of Planning and the loan: 10,460,432,.963 trequently transagting
Representative [nvestment on | VND parties.
Office in Ho Chi July 07, 20049 Accrued loan interest:
Annual Report 2024 92
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Time of i ! ;
MName of . NSH No*, . s _ Decision No. Content, quantity, total
Relationship with Address of head  fransactio

No  organization/ date of issue, ik of the Board value of transaction in Note
the Company _ office/ Address  n with the
individual place of issue of Directors 2024
CLW ALY

Minh City of SGT is ' 02,322 465 VND
also General
Director of Kumba
d. Assessment of the impl-tm.entatinn of the regulations on corporate governande:

Saipon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation has focused on corporate governance in accordance with the principles and regulations
of the listed Company. SAIGONTEL has conducted the General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with the process and always complies
with the regulations of law and internal regulations related 1o corporate governance. S8GT always considers and implements corporate governance
practices 1o appropriately meet the internal needs of the business and bring operational efficiency. The Company's Charter and the Regulations on
Corporate Governance have been issued and adjusted in accordance with current legal regulations, approaching pood governance practices. The
activities of the Board of Directors, Ban Kiém soat, the General Director, and other management levels are fully reported and comply with the
Company’s Charter, the Enterprise Law, the Securities Law, ete., with the goal of ensuring faimess, transparency, and respect for the legitimate

rights and interests of shareholders.
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V1. Financial statements
1. Audit opinion
In vur opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation and
its Company’s subsidiaries as of December 31, 2024, as well as its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the

celevant legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial

statements.
2. Audited financial statements
The audited 2074 financial statements of Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies
Corporation have been disclosed in accordance with regulations and posted on the Company's
website at the following link:
Separate [inancial statements: http://saigontel viv'vifquan-he-co-dong/bao-cao-tai-
chinh/2906-bete-rieng-le-da-kiem-toan-nam- 2024 . htm|

. Consolidated financial statements: hitp:/saigontel vn/vi/quan-he-co-dong/bao-cao-tai-
chinhy2900-bete-hop-nhat-da-kiem-toan-nam-2024-va-cong-van-giai-trinh-chenh-lech-
truoc-va-sau-kiem-toan, html

Ho Chi Minh City, April 18, 2025
General Director 1
Under anthorization No. 29/2015/UQ-SGT duted
December 02, 2015

Annual Report 2024 a4
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SALGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS
Fow the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

The Board of Gererad Directors has the honor of submitting this veport and the andited consolidated finoncial

sictemends of Swigon Telecowmpmication & Technologles Corporation for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2024

Business highlights
Establishment

Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation is incorporsted and operates under Business
Repistration Certificate No, 0302615063 dated May 14, 2002 {the 17th amendment dated September 30,
20247 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City, updating legal documents
according the legal representative.

Structure of ownership

Joint Stock Company,

The Cumpu.nfs principal business activities

The Company's principal activities inclode:;

- Whaolesaling electronic, telecom equipment and spare parts, in particular: Trading electric-electranic
couipment; Trading materials, transmission equipment, terminator, protection equipment for 1T, Trading
telephone card, internet card;

The Company's ragular activities include:

- Wholesaling computers, peripheral equipment and software, in particulsr: Trading computers, software;

- Repairing computers and peripheral equipment, in particalar: Installing, repairing, maintaining computers
{except for mechanics, waste recycling, electropiating);

- Rendering [T service and other services velated to computers, in particular: Technelogical constancy on
informaties; Designing, installing metwork inlrastroctores;

- Oiher telccom activitics, in particular: Providing with valoe added services on internet: data and information
access service on internet, duly handling service, electronic data exchanging service (except for internct access
service at the head office} (without mternet infrastructures), Acting as intemet seevice agent (not at the head
affice) (without internel infrastructurcs), Acting as telegem postal scrvice agent {without interiet
infrastnactures); )

- Tracding real estates, right to use land which belongs to ewner, user or leased, in particular: Trading real
estutes (except for brokerage, valuation, real estates transaction center), Trading infrastructures in indusirial
parks; Trading industrial park, urban residential area, informatics technological zone;

- Building other civil technological works, in particular: Building industrial, civil, traflic works, road and
bridge, irrigational and electrical works wp to 35KV, Investing in infrastructures of industrial parks; Buibcling
indusirial park, urban residential area, informaties technological zone;

- Wholesaling machinery, equipment and other spare parts, in particular: Trading machinery and equipment
for telecom,

- Exploiting, treating nmd providing will water (not at the head UIII::E]-

- Producing, transmitting and distributing power, in particular: Produeing, transmitting power (not at the lead
officed;

- Information gate; Details: Setting up consalidated electronic information page;

- Repairing electrical equipment {t:'ﬁ.-ﬁpt Tow m::uhum-:a] processing, wastes repyeling, electroplating at the
head office);

Firye



SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS
For the fiscol year ended December 31, 2024

- Tnstalling electricity system (except for mechanical processing, wastes recycling, electroplating at the head
office];

- Organizing introduction and trading promotion, in particular: Crganizing mde infreduction end promotion;
organizing events, fairs, exhibitions, conferences, seminars, fastivals {do not perform fire or explosion effects;
do not use explosives, [ammable substances, chemicals as props or toals to perform the art shows, events,
movies).

- Advertisement;
- Doing market research and public opinion poll;

Emglish mame: SAIGON TELECOMMUNMICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION

Short name: SATGOMN H-_'l. CORP

Listing code: SGT (Listed and traded at HOSE - Ho Chi Minh Stock Exehange)

Head office: Lot 46, Quang Trung Software Parl, Tan Chanh Hiep Ward, Dist. 12, HCMC, Viet Nam.

2. Finaneinl position and results of operation

The Company's financial position and results of operation during the year are presented in the attached
consolidated financial statements,

3, Board of Management, Board of Supervisors, Board of General Direciors and Chiel Aceountant

Board of Management, Board of Supervisors, Doard of General Directors and Chief Accountant holding
office during the year and at fhe veporting date include:

Board of Management
M, Dang Thanh Tam Chaimman
Mz, Mguyen Thi Kim Thanh Mlember
iz, Nguyen Cam Phuong Member
s, Ho Thi Kim Oanh Member
Mr. Mguven Thanh Thai Indeperdent membear
Board of Supervisors
M. Meuwyen Duc Thuan Chief Supervizor
s Le Thi Kim MNhung Member
Ms. Su Mgoc Bich Member
Board of General Divectors and Chief Accountant
Ms. Mgnyen Cam Phuong General Direclor
M. Le Nguyen Hoang Anh Dieputy General Director and Acting Chief Accountant
Mr, Vi Ngoc Anh Dieputy General Direcior and Director of Bac Ninh Branch
hdr. Pham Van Luc Dreputy General Director - Urban sector
Mr. Nguyen Anh Tu Deputy General Director - Engineering sector
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SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS
Fow the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024

4.

#*

The lepal representafive of the Company during the year and up to the date of preparing the
consolidated financial statements is as follows:

M. Dang Thanh Tam Chairmsan

According to Decision Mo, 20/2015/0D-8GT dated December 02, 2015 aboul issuing regolations on rights
and duties of the General Manager of Saigontel, Mr. Dang Thanh Tam has authorized Ms. ng:p:u Cam
Phuong (General Manager) to sign docaments, dossiers, egonamic contracts, financial statements, transaction

paners of the Company on his behalf. Term of authorization is from signing date to the date of terminating the
Cieneral Manager®s term of office.

Auditor

Moore AISC Auditing and Informatic Services Company Limited (Moore AISC) has been appointed as an
independent auditor for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024,

Statement of the Board of General Directors

The Board of General Directors of the Company is responzible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as of Decenber
31, 2024 as well as its results of operation and cash flows for the fiscal year ended Decomber 31, 2024, In
order to prepare these financial statements, the Board of General Directors has considered and complied with
the following matters:

- Relected the approprizte accounting policies and applied them consistently;

- Made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- The consolidated Financial statements of the Company are prepared on a going concern basis unless it

iz inapprogpriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.

The Roard of General Directiors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which
disclose, with reasomable seeuracy at smy time, the financial position of the Company and that the

consolidated financial statements arc propared in compliance with the registered accounting pulicies stated in
the Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements, The Board of General Directors is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and thus taking ressonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

Approval

In the Board of General Directors' opinion, the consolidated financial statements consisting of consolidated
Balance Sheet as ot Decembar 31, 2024, congolidated Income Statement, conenlidated Cash Flow Statement
and Notes to the eonsolidated Financial Statements enclosed with this report give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as well as its operating results and cash flows for the fiscal year ended
Pecemnber 31, 2024.

The consolidated financial statements are propared in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and

the Mistpajnese Accounting Systam.
ﬂ_-,h':’f-'f -fﬂﬁ"'
g, 2023

‘ol the Roavd of General Directors

Meuyen Cam Phoong
General Director

Fape 3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

T SHAREHOLDERS, THE ROARD OF MANAGEMENT AND THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS
SATGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation
and ils subsidiaries (“the Company™) comsisling of consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2024,
cansolidated Tnoome Statemenl, cousolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then cnded and Notes to the
consolidated Financial Statements as set ont oa page 06 to page 68, which were prepared on March 28, 2025,

Responsibility of the Board of General Directors

The Board of General Diructors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietninese Corporate Accounling System and
stlver statutony reguirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial stntements and
alser Tor the internal control that the Board of General Directors considers necessary for the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatersent, whether due to fraud or

S0,

Hesponsihility of the Anditor

Clur respanzibility is to express gn opinion on the consolidated financial starements based on our andit. We conducted
aur audit in accordance with Vietnamese Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
reguicements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance whether the consolidated fmancial
slatements are fiee from materizl misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain sudit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the suditor’s judgmeat, including the

azspssment of the msks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 1o frawd or
error. In making those risk assessments, the audilor considers internal control relevant ta the Company's preparation
and fair presentation of the consclidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are sppropriate
in the circumstanees, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the Company’s inteenal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropristensss of sceounting policies used and the reasonablencss of
accounting estitnates made by the Board of General Tirectors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial stalements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obluined is sufficient and sppropriate (o provide a basis for our audit
CPEIGL

Hesmch in Ha Nl BinTaes, 36 i Bleh 4 Sir, Wik Bhsl Waed B Be Trang Disl., His Mee City o8 74 37 B2 D043 r : s
i e : 21 ITHEDHE E:hanciflaiso com.am
Bravch in Da Nang: 0 12l Phing Sk, Chind Cisn Wind, Taarh he il Os Nang Cly TEA236) 3T THE  F (MG AN TEN E: deppgeglaso oo

RAL Y



b MOORE AISC

Anditer's opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
nosition of Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2024
as well a5 the results of its operation and its cash flows for the yeor then onded, The gonsolidated financial statements
are prepared [n compliance with the prevailing Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System
and other statutory requirements relevant 10 the preparation and presentation of the conzclidated financial stetements.

HCMC, March 28, 2025

g

Rl o i =

Pham Van Ha Nguyen Hoang Nhan

General Director Anditor

Certificate of Audit Practice Registration Certificate of Audit Practice Registration
No. 0112-2023-005-1 Nex., §905-2023-005-1

Poge 3



Form B 01 - TVNTHMN

SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Ar wt December 31, 2024 Cimfi: WD
ASSETS Code MNotes Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024
A. CURHRENT ASSETS 100 6,055,060,024,225 B0l A16,7T87,417
1. Cash and cash equivalents 110 V.l 123,604,255,065 98,754,259,915
1. Cash 111 110,950,447,831 52,494 822,995
2. Cash cquivaloniz 112 12,653.867,232 46,2.55,436,920

IL.  Shorl-term financial investments {i1] 187 387,209,350 40,180,301,371
|. Trading securities F21 - =
2. Provision for devaluation of trading securities 122 - -

3. Held-to-malurity investments 123 V.1a 187,387,200 350 o0, 30,301,371

1L Short-term necounts recelvable L3 1,312, 780,906,598 2122601687947
I, 5119_:1:—1:0:'111 lrnrlv.‘.lr:p:iml:l'll:s 131 W 1, 150,444,753 046 O2R.612,543 K38
2, Bhort-tenm prepayments to suppliers 132 Vi 44i666,777,127 450.299,043,613
3. Bhert-term inercompany receivables 133 i s
4, Constraciion conlract-in-progress recsivahlas 134 - -

5. Raceivables from shorl-term loans 135 W5 147,703, 200,000 140,799 833,333
G. -Oiler shot-lterm recaivables 136 V.ba 682550, 0451 14 045, 882,338,008
7. Provision for short-term doubtfl debts 137 W (58,584,872,685) (42,992,070,935)
8. Shorfage of assets awaiting resolution 139 - .

IV. Inveniories 40 V.8 3385302 651,661  2,712,588.520,670
1. Invenipries - L4l 3,185,302,651,661 I, 712,588,520,670
2. Provision for-decling in value of inventories 119 -

%, Oiber current asscis 150 35,0040,001,551 3T, 202011 7,514
I, Short-lecm prepaid cxpenses 151  ¥.9a 1,256,534,764 2,051,761,386
2, Deductible value added tax 152 29322653 483 32,108 350,625
3. Taxes and oflver receivalsles from the Stats

Budger 53 V.17 3,076,315,304 1,717,872 503
4. Repurchase and sale of Government's boneds 154 - ’
5, Cither current assots 155 V.10 2,245 308,000 [ A1, 533 000

The noees fo. the consodidared Fiescinl slakeaesmis e oot inig ol part of s repore fage &



Foorm B §1 - DNHN

SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Ar af Decerher 14, 20434 Ui PND
ASSETS Code Notes Dhee, 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 2,180,832 624316  2,086,264,595,000
. Long-term receivabies 210 74,823 455, 400 18,574,918, 860
|, Long-term trade receivables 211 5 '
2. Long-term prepayments to suppliers 212 -
1. Working capital from sub-umits 213 : =
4. Long-term intercompany recelvables 214 - -
5. Receivables from long-term loans 215 : R
&, (her long-term receivahles 214 W.Ehb 02323 4554040 IR 374,91 8,860
7. Provision for lang-term doubtful debts 21%  V.ib (17,500,000,000) -
I, Fized assets 110 52,455,891, 200 63,156,911,628
1. Tangible fixed assets 22 ¥.11 £2.429,291,950 63,116,471,622
- ot 2322 156,386,847, 212 154,768,557 930
- Aceumulmed depreciotion 223 (103,957, 555,365) {U1,652,056,308)
2. Financs lense assets 124 - -
- Lot 22¥ - -
- Aecumuiated depreciation 226 * -
1. Intangible fixed assels 227 v.12 26,600,010 0,440,006
- Cost 228 492,872,900 492872000 W
- Acenmulated amoritzafion 229 (466, 272,890 (452,432,894)
1. Investment properties 130 V.3 15415265415 33,367.614,008
- Cost 231 55318702788 Bo, 267,373,247
- Accumulated depreciation 232 (39,903 437,173) (53,509,759,282)
IV. Non-current assets in progress 240 66:2,395,920,500 £74.827,261,741
I, Long-term works in progress 241 - -
2. Construcbe i progress 242 .14 GAH2 145,920,500 £74,527,261,742
V. Lung-lerm financial invesiments 250 V.lb 1,372,207 454,398 1,37, 148,689,652
l. Investments in subsidisries 251 - .
2, Investments in assooiates, joint-wenturas 152 A2B, 174,513,445 810,548,517,141
3. [nvestments in equity of other enlilies 253 700.026,372,585 T00,023,372,585
4. Provision for decline in the value of long-term
investments 254 (155.997.431,632)  (140,423,220,074)
5. Held-to-maturity nvesiments 755 - =
V1, Other non-current asssts 160 12,534,636,643 16,480, 499,113
|. Long-term prepaid expenses 16l WS 4,1 85,047,263 &,139.000, 733
. Deferred tax assets 261 40 580 3E0 B9, SR0 RN
3. Eguipment, malerials, spare pars 263 - -
q. Oher non=current assets 258 . -
5. Good-will 260 7,500,000 000 9, 500,000,000
TOTAL ASSETES 1Th 8244 K08, 648,541 T147,681,682417
i ——)
The mafes fo Mo comsalidaned finmackal statements fe o integrnl poaed of ther report Page 7
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Form B 01 = TINTIN

SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
A5 ol DNecermber 3.i'I 20124

Unit: FND

i
L.

il kS —

o B

RESOURCES

LIARILITIES

Current liabililies

Short-term trade payahles

Short-term advances from customers

Tarnes and ofher payables to the State Budger
Payables o employess

Short-term scerived expenses

Short-term intercompany payahlas
Constrection contract-in-progress pavebles
Showt-term unrealised revenue

Cither shoet-temm payalbles

10, Shori-term borrowings and financial lease

I
12
13,

14
I,

1

2

3.
4

3.

10
11
1,
13.

lizhilities

Provigion for short-term payables

Baonus and welfare find

Price stabilization fund

Repurchase and sale of Government's bond

Mon=ctrrent liabilities

. Long-term trade payables

Long-term advances from cistomers
Long-1term aocrucd cxpenses

. Inter-company paynbles for oparuting capital

received,
Long-term intercompany payables
Laong-term unrealised revenue
Other long-terin payables
Long-ferm borrowings and financial leasze
lisbilitics
Convertible bond
Preferred shares
Diefirred tax labilities
Provision fos long-term lishilitise
Fund for aciznce and techaology development

Conlle

30n

30
311
312
313
314
315

3l6

317
ENE ]
19

Ty
311
122
123
24

330
i
332
333

334
3313
336
337

338
339
340
341
342
343

Mobes

W.l5
V.lo
¥.17a

V.18

W.l%a
V.20

V.2l

Y.18b

V. 1%
V.20h

Vilb

Va2

T notes fo the comraidatad francial semenene fivm on fnegral part of 1175 reparn,

Dec. 31, 2024

6,1 53,479,0685,343

3,502,808,670,456
504,837,852,618
12,568,844,851
282.075.863,124
5.382,310,497
A40,032,938,730

38,368,676.080
809.434,683,573

Jam, 01, 2024

5,183, 764,157,755

2,396,528,666,761
432 66,431 808
13,471,860,869
113,544,817,660
2,197,959,157
181,447,088,479

39,944 227 804
192,334,034,872

1,395,029.679.595 1,411,116,123,235
11.026,8241,37% 10006, 122,777
2,650.671,014 587 2, TR, 235,490,594
Bl&, 30X 464 03 B2 610,661
0345271778 A0, 306,252
432,611,745,959 484,730,007 322
2177295 506,711 1,962 807,097,033
30,602,087.975 25444 36%9,706
Py 8§

=". = 1 8 L s



Form B 01 - TNHMN

ZAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARLES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Ar ar December 31, 2024 Linit: PND
RESOURCES Code Notes Drec. 31,2024 Jan. 01, 2024
D, OWHNERS' EQUITY 400 2,001,418,963,198  1,963,917.524 64l
I Owners' equity 410 VI3 2091418963,198  1,%63,017,524,661

1. Puid-in capital 411 ' 1.4B0,035,180,000  1,480,035,180,000
- Orddirary sheres with vorlng rights 4rla I 480,035 180, (KMF 480035, 130 008
- i“rﬂ_.l'é'.rr?d shares 411D - -

T. Shave premium 412 (465,119,800 (463,119800)

3. Tond conversion option 413 - -

4. Ownere' other capital 414 - =

5. Trocasury shares 413 (3, 1 O, 006 A(3,100,000)

fi. Difference upon assels revaluation 416 = -

7. Fogeign exchange differences 417 - -

8. Tnvestment and development fund 118 - a

9. Fund for support of arrangement of enterprises 419 - -

10, Other funds 420 £ -

11, Undistributed eamings #21 141,004,860, 726 Z11,044,863,258
- Undiistributed earnings accwmulated fo the
endd of priar periods d2la 271 044 B3 I5R 175 135 580,497
- Undizivibuled carnings of the current perfod  421h [ 30,050,006,467 39,909,276, 742

12, Tnvestment reserve for baswe eonstruction 422 & =

13, Mone-controlling interests 420 170,757,133,272 273,305,701,203

I, Hudgetsources and sther Munds 430 = -

|. Budget sources 431 - -

2. Pund 1o fonn Nxed assets 432 - -
TOTAL RESODURCES Al B.244,898,645,541 T.lii'lr,ﬁﬁléﬂigi'?
Preparcd by

o
.-'* | "-._,f i ':-.-_
T ”

=
Pham T|:I1 Cam Yon

The waras i the eorwn lidmfed francial Siodemints e on fmieprel part af Wis reparl,




Form I3 02 - DN/HN

SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORFORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the fiseal year sndad Dacember 31, 2024 7 A
I'TEMS Code  Motes Vear 2024 Year 2023
1, Bevenue fram sales and services rendered ]| WI.1 1,644,054 837,663 1,309.759.343,058
2. Revenue deduoctions 0z - .
3. Met revenue from sales and services randered I w11 | Bdd 054 837,683 1,309,759,343,058
4. Cost of goods gold 11 V12 1,336,052,905.933  1,050,759,212.897
5. G3ross profif from sales and sorvicos renidered 1] 508,001,931, 750 250,000, 130,161
(20 =10 -11)
6. Financial incame 21 W13 54,363,045,037 23,555,005,251
7. Fimancial expenses 22 V14 174,990,844 916 01,861,265,3060
I which: Inferest expenses 23 159, 204,600,513 B, 457 685,310
2. Share of profitfloss from joint ventures and associates 24 6,110,976,304 6,825,153,529
9. Relling expenses 23 L0 (k5,280,112 4,382,262 485
1, General & administration expenses 20 VLS 159,473,217, 701 116,511,363,375
L1, Operating profit 30 223,961,610,362 T6,625,399,720
(30= 20+ (21 - 22) - (25+ 26))
1 2. Other indome 31 3.261,389,454 2,728,599.407
13, Other expenses 32 7,586,823,585 1,328, 579439
14, Oiher profits (40 = 31 - 32) Al {4,305 434,131) 1,400,019,968
15. Net accounting profit before tax 0 219,657,176,231 TE.025419,688
(50 = 30 -+ 40
16, Current corporale income 1ax cxpenses 51 W16 BE.908.219.425 35,524 483,3%1
17. Deferred corporate inconie tax expensesAncome 52 WI1.T 5, 157,518,268 (30%,109,953)
18. Net profit after corporaie incone tax o 127,500,438,536 42,8310,046,248
(6l = 501 - 51 -52)
19, Profit afler tax of the parent company il 130,050,006 467 39,009,2746,762
20, Prufit afier fax of the nen-controlling interests 62 (2.546,567.931)  2,900,769,486
21, Basic carmings per share T VLE B0 2T
22, Diluted earnings per share T Y14 ==H'ﬂ F—.—”“
- (MO, March 28, 2025
Prepared by S Geral Divector
_ coNa TY
o (. coman
At W * i N 1\_,—/'/’
s i O )
Pham Thi Cam ¥an 1 *:ilw

The nodes I (e ennsalicased finamela) sianewments, fovm an miegral poe of s repart
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Farm B 0% - DINHN
SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBRSIDTARIES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{Under indirect method)
For rhﬁﬁsm!}'eur gindlpd Phecember 31 2034 Uhir: FIND
ITEMS Code  MNotes Year 2024 Year 2023
I, CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Met profit before tax il 2i9657,176,231 TRN25419,688
4. Adjustments For
= Depreciation of fixed assels and investiment B2 WAlLLY 17, 148,915,420 23,144,837.501
properiics 13
- Provisions i3 40.683,.711,210 0§37 783,050
- Gainfiosses from foreipn oxchanpe differences wpon
revaluation of monetary assets denominated in forcign
CurrEnCies 04 (09,230,344} (32,038,140}
- China/lnsses from invesling activities 05 (46,605,534 5,65) 5,485,373,342
- Interest expenses N Vig 1 5% 20, 6060, 513 End51,685.310
Onther adjustments iy . i,
3, Profit from operating activities before changes in
workilng capital s 398,989 628,044 102,013,060,551
. Tnerease (<) decrease () in receivables 09 [276.971,156,1%3)  (360.042.810,74 %ﬁ
- Increase {-) decrease (#) in inventories ) (676,640,327 810 (1,342,712,129,286) O
- Increase (+) decresse () in payables (exclusive of ' 3 :.
interest payables, income tax payables) i 1,052,284 208,023 (9,413,827, T83F
- Increase (<) decrease (+) in prepaid expenses 12 2,750,089,002 893,405,115
= Increase (=Y decreese (+) in trading securilies 13 - -
- Interest paid 14 (512,085425,824)  (16,111,789,329)
- Corporate income tas pakd 15 V.17 (21,7316,462,261) (20,549 643 450)
- Other receipts from operating activities 16 - -
- Other puyments on operating activities 17 (%4,157,328) (270,855,000)
Mot cash inflows! (ouiflows) from operating activities 20 (34,093,603.362) (1,546,196, 589, 94H)
I1. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVLTIES -
. Purchases of fixed assets and other long-term assels 21 (127,518,938 263)  (134,057,068,557)
2. Proceeds from disposals of fined azscts and other long- 22 - =
Lermn pesels .
3, Loans granted, purchases of debt instnuments of other
entitics ) 23 {461,8%7,352,575)  (103,580,301371)
4, Collection of loans, proceeds froen sales of debt 24
instrurmenis of other entities 177, 234,882,753 26| 486,211 683
5. Imveatimenss i other entities 15 (11,518,000,000) (3,000,000%
f. Proceeds from divestment in other ehtities 25 = g
7. Dividends and inteyest received 2T 62,563,996,230 5.507.323,143
MNet cash inflows/{outflows) feom investing activities 30 {161,143,411,845) 29,353,164,900
The s fo i corwalickatéed fingcial statemenis e an deiagral pard of this reporL Page 11



Form T 0% - DNHMN
SAICON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORFORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Under indirect method)

Faor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 ' Umie: ¥ND

TTEMS Code  Motes Year 2024 Year 2023

UL CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIAL ACTTIVITIES

I. Proceeds from issue of shares and capital contribution 31 - A2, 500,000,000
Z. Payments for shares returns and reparchascs 32 - -
3. Procecds from borrowings 13 123 1653,678,382.951 1610682105411
4. Repiyments of borrowings 34 X4 (2433,591,525,266) (1,142.,250,779,3956)
5. Peayments for financa lease Habilities 33 " -
5. Dividends paid 36 .
Mei cash inflows{ouilows) from figancial aclivities 40 220,086,857,685  1,530.031316,015
Net cash inflows/{outflows) (50 = 20+ 30 + 40} 50 24,849 841,478 14,087, 900,967
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year i 08,754,150.915 &4, 606,171,561
Effect of foreign exchange differences 51 151,671 187,387
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ¥l
{70 = S0+604+61) T 123,604,355,065 08,754,259,915
March 28, 2025
Prepared by I Dircetar
|
1
» Lk
{ L.._ ] [} L, ]

Tire mestes -t the corsoiaeed fnmaciol statemends fes oo bafegral gl af This Fpod P 11
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Forn B 4 - TIN/HR
SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fircal year ended December 31, 2024 Clag; FND

L BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

. Establishment

Saipon Teleconmunication & Technologies Cowporation is incerporated and operates under Businoss Registration
Certificate Mo, 0102615063 dated May 14, 2002 (the 17th amendment dated September 34, 2024) issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City, updating legal documents acconding the Leszal
representative.

Structure of ownership

foint Stock Company.

English name: SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION
Short name: SAIGONTEL CORP

Listing ende: SGT [Listed and traded at HOSE - Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange)
Hend offices Lot 46, Quang Trung Software Park, Tan Chanh Hiep Ward, Dist, 12, HCMC, Viet Nam.

1. Hisiness secior
Business seetor includes trade, services, construction, and busivess in many different fickds,

3. The Company's principal business activities

The Campany's principal activithes inchede:

- Whol=zaling electranic, telectn equipment and epare parts, in particular: Trading clectric-electronic equipment; Trading
materials, transmission equipment, terminator, protection squipment for IT; Trading telephone card, internet cavd;

The Company's regular activities inclode:

- Wholesaling computers, peripheral equipment and software, in particular: Trading compters, softwan;

- Repairing computers and peripheral equipment, in particular: Instafling, repairing, maintaining computers {scep! fog
mechantes, waste resyeling, eloctroplnting);

- Rendering IT service and other services related to computers, in parfienlar Technological constancy on informatics;
Dresigning, installing network infrastroctmes;

- Other telecom activities, in particular: Providing with value added services on internet: data and information access
service on internet, data handling service, elecironlc data cxchanging sarvice (except for intemet necess service at the head
affice] (withoul internet infrastractures), Acting as internet service agent (not at the head office) (without inteme
infrastrictures) Acting as telecom postal service agent (without infemet infrastructures ;

- Trading real estaies, right io use land which belongs to owner, user or leased, in particular: Trading real estates {except
for brokerage, valsation, real estates transaction center); Trading infrastructures in industrial parks; T'rading industrial
park, urbon residential anea, informaties techaological zone;

- Building other sivil technolagieal works, in particular: Building industrial, eivil, wraffic works, roed and bridge,
irrigational and electrical works wp to 35KV, Tnvesting in infrastrietures of industrial parks; Building industrial park,
urhan residentisl area, infommatics technolegical zone;

- Whelesaling ruachinery, equlpiment and other spare parts, in particular: Trading machinery and equipment for telecom;
- Explolting, treating and providing with water (not at the head office);

- Producing, iransmitting and distributing power, in particular: Producing, transmitting, power (not at the head office);

- Information gate; Details; Setting up consalidated electronic information page:;

- Regmiting electrical equipment {exeept for mechanical processing, wastes recycling, clectroplating at the head office);
- Tnstalling eleciricity system (except for mechanical processing, wastes recycling, electropiating ul the head office];

There moled g @ slegral part aff the comradishaed finreaol sialeinduls Pagr I3
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SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far iﬁeﬁr:n!_yaﬂl' anded Desembes 11, 1024

Fiom B 09 - DMNHNM

Uit PND

- Organizing intradustion ard trading promotien, o particular Crganizing frade introduction and promotion, organizing
events, Eairs, exhibitions, conforences, seminnrs, festivals {do not perform fire or explosion elfects; do not use explosives,

flammable substances, chemicals as props or tooks 1o perform the ant shows, evenis, movies).
= Addvartisement;

- Dning market research and public opinion pell;

4, Normul operafing cycle

Hormal operating cycle of the Company lests 12 months of the normal fiseal year beginning from farary 01 and ending

ot Decamber 31,
For project business activities, the business cycle lasts over 12 months.

5. Operations in the fiseal yesr affecting the consolidated financial statements
Mot applicable.

6. Totnl employees to Dec. 31, 2024: 227 employees. (Dec. 31, 2023 218 employess).
7. Enterprize stracture
7.1 Mumber of sultwsidiarics
- Mumber of subsidiaries under consolidation: seven [07) subsidiaries,

= Mumber of subsidiaries not under corgolidation: Mone.
As at December 31, 2024, the Company hiad seven (U7) owned subsidiaries consalidated:

Mewrve. of Compamy : Principal activities Pavigi-in capifo % of ownership

o vating right

1. Suigoniel Real Estates Wholasaling  and 35,000,000,000 T0.0%
Invesiment JSC imanuficturing

plecironic ond

telecomn equipment

and eomponents;

Tradimy reql gstates,

right bo use land

being owned, used

or Leased

2. Kinh Buc Investmenl JSC  Trading electronke, 46,243, 000,000 100.0%e

fclezem machinery

and  equipment;

Giving consaltancy

on  constreciion

inyestmenl project

ol building

Wb,

There modes form o dite gl povd of the consmlidend fimmciol meleints

Tl
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Nawe af Comparry Princioal activities Pafd-in capitol % af omeriiip ¥ of viring right
3.  Saigon  Urban Building  houses, | 20,000,006,000 0. 0% 0,05
Development and Investment tailways, roads,
JEC electricity works,

water supply and
drainage; Inzelling
lectrical svatems;
Functioning  as
brokermps agent;
Wholesaling
materials;  Real
eatate  business:
Adverisemenl;
Construetion
BUpervision...

4. Saipontel - Thal Npuyen Tding real estates, 1,583,000,000 1 00.0% 100.0%
Industrial One Member LLC  right 0 use land
being owned, used

or leasod
5, Salgentel Long An Co..Ltd Trading roal estales,  §25,000,000,000 75.0% 75.0% i'.':

right to wse land

being owned, wsed 'E'

it leamed -
f. Saolgontel  Hi-Tech Trading real sstales, | 25,000,800 000 100.0% 100 0%
Development and Invest  rght o use land
Co.,Ltd haing owned, used

or leazed
7. Quang Yei Electronic M anufmatiring - 100.0% | Ol
Components Co,, Lid (*) glectranic

I,'..{I-I'I'.FEII"IH'I'E-

L — e

(*y Salgon Telecommunication & Tedhnclogics Corporation has not made capital conteibution yet and the subsidiary has

not generated data.

Thepe notes foven mi fefegen ped of the conmelideed franotol sianenients. Page 1§
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Cindt; ¥

7.2, List of joint-venture compaciias, associates
As at Degember 11, 2024, the Company hiad 2ix (06] associalas:

Mewne of Company

Principal activities

Parid-in cnlail'n:.n'

55 af enwiership

s af voting right

I. SkyX Saipontel JSC

2. Bpigon Viea Telecom
Corment Texillos 150

3. Long An Development
Invest JSC

4, Salgomtel Service and
Dzt butdon J5C

5. Baigonte] ST5 Victnam
Co Ll

Thage moles fHeaw g toeegral pert of e compolidaea Anarrcand sfmismmants

Manufacturing solar
power, Remailing
machinery  amd
elecironic
wjupwTIEnt;
Manpgement
consuliing
activilias;
Architectural
activitics  nnd
refated  technical
consuliancy;, Rental
of  machinery,
equipment  and
pther tangible goods

Real eanabe
brislness,  Real
eslnte  brokerage
congulting.
Comstruction  of
honzes ol all kinds.
Construction  of
rad ks,
Manufacturing
yarm, Taw textile
Mahrics amd
finishing ftextile
producis; Sewing of
clothing {except fur
clothing).

Constrection of
other civil
engineering works
Hesl eglata
husi ness.
Warchouse leasing,
Trading in houses
Business

AL, errant
conselting services,
technical  design
services o complcte
t:ll:ln!tl'i.l.l:.'lil.:'ll wiarks

3, 480,000,000

| 39, 368,680,000

00,000, 000,000

29,400, (00, 00

11,515.000,000

30.0%

48.9%

A%

36.8%

49.0%

J0.0%

#5.9%

40.0%

J6.8%

A9.0%0

Pepe Ih
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Neme o Compary Principal activitics Poid-in capital B4 of ovemeryhip % of voling right
§. Ban Lac Spirituality Park  Funeral  sesvice 30,000,000, 000 0% 30.0%
JSC activities

_— —

8. Disclosure on comparability of information in (he consolidated Financial Statements

The selection of figurss and information needed to be presented in the conselidated financial statements has been
implemented on the principles of comparability among corresponding accounting periods.

I ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND REPORTING CURRENCY

1. Fiscal year
The fiscal year is begun on January 01 and ended December 31 arnasally.

1, Reporting currency

Vietnam Deng (WMD) is used ag a curvency unit for accounting records,

. ADOFTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND POLICIES

1. Applicable Accoanting Sysiem

The Company applies Vietnamese Corporatc Acoounting System in accardance with the guldance of Circulac 'E'vlr';.:-"-‘
AMN20 14T T-BTC dated December 22, 2014 and amended, supplemented circutars and Circular Mo, 2002014/ TT-BT !
fssuel by Vietmam Ministry of Finunce on the same date on guiding the method of preparing, ond presenting thes
consolidaied financial statements,

2, Diselosure of compliance with Vietnamese Accaunting Stondards and the Vielnamese Accounting System

We conducted eur accomnting, preparation ansl presentation of the consclidated financial stalements in accordamce with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Corporste Accounting System and ather pelevant statutory regulations, The
consolidated financial ststements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the results of its
operations as well as ils cash thows.

The selection of figures and information presented in the notes to the financial statements & complied with the material
principles in Viesamese Accounting Standard MoZl - Presentation of the finencial statements and Vietnamese
Aceounting Standard Mo 25 "Consolidated financisl statements and accounting for investnent in subsidinries",

IV. APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Basis of conselidation
The consolidatad financial staterments are prepared on the hasis of acorual accounting {except tor infarmation related 1o
cash flows},
The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statements of Saigon Telecommunication & Technolopies
Corporation ind its subsidiaries ("the Company™] for the fizcal yeur ended December 31, 2024,

'he financiul statements of the subsidiales are consolidated from the purchase date when the Company staris contral (0
the date it ceases the control.

The subsidiaries’ financial statements are prepared for the same accounting period as Suigon Telecommunication &
Technologies Corporation's under the accounting policies in consistency with Saigan Telecommunication & Techneleglies
Corporation's. The adjustments for any different accnmting polizies are implemented 1o ensurs the consistency Tetween
the Subsidiaries and Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation.

Tivere Soies JErar v dniegral gt of e comsalidatd fimoncin e Page 17



Form 1809 - NN
SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the fiscal year ended Dacember 31, 2024 Unfe: ¥ND

All inter-compamys balonces  and revenue, meome, expenses incurred from - transactions of the Group, including
unrealized gains incurred from inter-company transactions In the assefs value are completely eliminated,

Unrealized loss incurred from intea-group transactions recocded in the assets’ value are ellminsted when the expemsss
regulting in the Inss are unrecoverable.

Tibereat of non-contralling shaveholders represents the portion in gain or loss and net asseis of the subsidiarics that are mot
held by the Company and presented separately in the consolidated Income Stalement and fror sharchalders' equity of the
Company in the owners' equity in the consnliduled Balance Sheet,

2. Transactions in forelgn currency

‘Trameaclions ariging in foreign currencies are converted at the crchange infe al the date of the fransaction. The balancs of
manetary items denominated in foreign currencies ut the end of the fiscal year is converted al the exchange rafe on that
ciabe,

Exchange rate differences arising during the year froim transacticns in foreign currencies are recorded in financial incomea
or fnancial expenses. Fxchange rate differences due to the revalustion of monetary jtems denominated in forcign
currencies al the pad of the lseal yoar after offsetling the increase and decrease differense are recorded in financial
income of financinl expenses

Principles for determining cxchange rates for arising transactions
The exchange rate used! to convent transuclions arising in foreign currency ‘is the actual exchange rate ol the time the

transaction ocoured. Actval exchange rates for trunsacticns in Joreign currencies are determined as follows:

Aciual exchange rate when forelgn currency trading (spot fovelgn cwrency’ ConTrects, forwird contracts, fulures contracts,
options contracts, swap contracts): the exchange rate signed in the forign currency purchase'sale contract between the
Company and the bank.

Fir receivables: the baying rate of the commercial bank where the Compeny designafes the customer to make payment il
the tirne the bansaction oeoEr. :

For payahles; the selfing rate of the commercial bank whese the Company plos 1o transact at the tlme the transaction
DEEUIE.

For pssel puschases or expenses transactions paid immediately in foreign currency (not Buough accounts payahlc): the
buying rate of he commercial bank where the Company makes the payment. '

Principles for determining exchange vates ot the end of the fiscal year

The ending balance of monetary items {cash, cash equivalents, reczivables umil piyables, except for (tems of prepayments
to suppliers, advances from customers, prepaid expenses, deposits and prepaid revenucs) denominated in foreign
currencles are revalued @ the sctual tremsaction exchange mbe anneunced al the time of preparing The finacial stalements:

Actual transsetion exchange rate when revaluing foreign cumency ilems elassified a5 assels: applisd according to the
fiecipn currency buying rate of Military Commereial Joint Stock Bank. Conversion buying rate as at December 31, 2024:
VKD 25,3 10/USD.

Actual transaction exchange rate when revalusting foreign currency items clussified ag Liabilities: applied aceording to the
fabeign cumrency selling rate of Military Commercial Joint Stock Bark. Converted sclling rale as &t December 31, 2024
VNI 25,55 11USD -

Principles for determining accounting exchange rafes

When collecting receivables, deposits, collateral or paying payables in foreign currency, the Company uses the actual
ook exchangs rate,

When making peyments in foreign currencies, the Company uses the moving weighted averge book exchunge rate.

These niies i o integred par of ihe consolidaied fraancial sanent Fage I8
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3, Principle of determining the real interest rate (effective interest rate) nsed to disconnt cish fows

The mctusl interest raie (effective inferest reic) used o discount cash flows for ftems rocorded ol present value,
amortization value, recovery valee, etc. is the interest rate of commercial banks that ave commenly spplied in the market
at the time of the transaction/thal the Company €an borow in the form of issuing debt instruments without the fight te
conver! inle shares under nomial operating and business condilions.

4, Principles of vecording ensh and cush equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand, term and non-tenn bank deposits, money in transit, and monetary gold.
Cash equivalents sre shart-torm investments with a maturity of three manths or less from the date of purchase, which arc
reatiily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in valve.
=, Principhés of aceounding for financial ivvestments
Trading securithes '

An investment is classified &5 trading scourity when it is held for the purpose of tnding Eor peofil.

Trading securities ave recorded in the accounting books at cost. The cost of trading securities is determined based on the
[air value of the payments af the time (e transsction oecurs plus the costs related to the purchass of trading securities,

The time of rniu::.::url:hn-,gI lmﬂmg securities is the time whea the investor hag ownership, specifically as fallows:
£ I'_Jnli!-'.t:d securities are recorded at the time of official ownership as proseribed by law,

1n1-:rm|, dividends and profits of periods prior to the prrchase of trading sscurities are recorded as a reduction in the value
of the trading securifies themselves. Interest, dividends and profils of periods subsequent o the purchass of trading
secirifies nre recorded as reveie. Dividends received in shares are only tracked by the number of shares increased, not
recorded ws:the value of shares receivedireconded at par valug (except for state-owned enterprises in acconfance with
current mgu]nﬂum of Livw - only for updating with state-owned enterprises).

Pravvislon for devaluation of irading securlties is mede for each type of securities traded on the markel and whose
market piice is lower than the original price. When determining the fair va]u»: of trading securities listed on the slock
imarket or traded on tho UPCOM, the falr value of the scourities is the -J{:E-mg price at the end of the fiscal your. Ifi case
the siock market or UPCOM is not trading &t the end of the fiscal year, the f&ir value of the sscuritics is the closing price
ol the previous frading session adjscent to the end of the fiscal year,

Incremse or decrease in the provision for devaluation of trading secunities n'.-qumad to be sel up at he end of the fiscal year
{e recorded in financial expenses,

Held-in-maturity Investmenis E

An investment 15 classified as held-to-maturity when the Company has the ivtention and ability to hold it witl maturity.

Held-io-maturity invesuments include: term bank deposits (including tressury bills and promissory noées), hands and other
held-to-masrity investments,

Held-to-maturity investments are initizily recognised at cost, which fncludes the purchase price and any coats assnciated
with the transaction. Afer initial recognition, these investments are recognised at their recoverable amount. Interes!
incame from investrents Teld 1o maturity after the scquisition date s recognised in the Income Statement on an sesmal
hasis, Tnterest camed before the Company holds the investment is deduciad from the cost at the acquisition date.

When thers i strong evidence tat part or.all of an investment may not be recovered and the amount of loss can be
relinbly determined, the-boss is recorded in financial expenses in the period and the invesiment value is dirsctly deducted.

T.adimg

Loans are measuved at cost Jess allowance for dowbtfal debsts, Provision for doubtful debts on lpans Is made based on the
expected level of loas that may oecur.

T medes e o dnlegrad port of e corfaditkaieg’ faancial vl s Page 15
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T

Investeents in ussocinies

lnvestments in sssociates are recorded when the Company holds from 20% to less than 50% of the voting rights of the
investes companles, has significant influence, but does not cantrol, in the Financial and operating policy decizions of these
companics, lovestments in associates sre reflected in the consolidated fnancial stuements under the eyuity method.

Under the equity method, capital contributions are initially recorded ol cost and then adjusied for post-acquisition change:
in the contributor's share of the associate's net assets. The sonsolidated incomne statement reflects the Company's share of
the sesneinle's post-acguisition results of operations as a separate Tem.

Goodwill arising from investments in associates is inciuded in the carrying amount of the investmeit. The Company does
ot amoriize this goodwill but assesses it annualby for impainnent.

The finaneial stetements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting year 2s the Company and wsing consistent
aveounting policies. Where necessary, consolidation adjustnents have been made bo ensure conzisteney with the
Company's aceounting policies.

Invistments in equity of other entities

An investment in other entity i an investment by the Company in the equity {nstruments of snother antity bt does not
have cantral or Jeint control, and dees not have significant influece over the investes.

Inwestments e recorded et cost, inaludibg purchase price and casts directly attribntable to the nvestment. In the case af
investments in non-monetary assets, the cost of the investment is reconded at the fair value of the noh-monetary 855615 ol
ihe time of acquisiiiod, .

For irivestments that the Company holds for u long term (not classified as trading securities) and doss nol have significanl
inMuence over the investes, the provision for losses is made as follows:

b Investment n Tisted shares or fair value of investment iz reliably determined, the provision is made based on mrarket
value of sharas.

LTy

E I

t For lnvestments whose fiir value cannot be determined at the reporiing date, the provision is made based on the lss of -

the investee. The basls for setting up the provision for decline in the value of investments i other entities is the financial
statement of the invested company.

Principles for recording trade receivables and other receivables
Recelvahles are presented at book value less provisions for doubtiul debts.

The classification of receivables i3 done accarding to 1he following principles:

- Receivables from customers reflect commercial receivables arising from buying and selling iransactions betwean the
Company and the buyer who is an independent unit of the Company, including receivables from sales of export goods
entrusted to other units,

- Intercompany receivables reflect reccivables from affiliated units withoul legal status and dependent accounting.

- Other receivables reflect non-commercial receivables, not related to purchase and sale imnssctions.

Provision for deubtful debits iz made for ench dowbtiul debt based on the overdie age of the debls oo the expected Level
of lmss that may oceur, specifically as follows:

- For overdue receivables: The Company estimates te koss in vatoe and is inherently difficult to recover, and mikes 4
provisien aceording to prevailing repuiations,

- For reeeivables thal are noi overdee but are unlikely to be recovered: base on the expested lovel of joss o set up
provisions,

Incroases and decreases in provistons for doubiful debis. balances that nead to be macde 2t the end of the fscel year are
reconded in peneral & administration expences.

Principles Tor recording imvenbories
Inventories are stated ot the Lower of cost and et realisable valee ol inveniorles,

Phese wodkes farar oo infegel por of fre comsaiilited faore o Sofeneis. Fapge 20
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1.

Original ensts are determined as follows:

- Merchandises: consists of costs of perchase and adher costs mewred in bringing the inventories ko thelr peesent location
and condition,

- Work in progress: costs of land uss, direct sogks and general costs ineurred in the duration of building industral park.
Methad of caleulating inventories’ value: weighted average.

Method of acecanting for ihe inventovies: perpetual method

Method of making provision for decline in value of inventories: Provision for decline in walue of inventories is mads
for each inventory with the cost grester than the net realisable valuz. Net relisable value is estimated selling price of
inventories in the ordinary course of business less (-} estimated costs of completion and estimated cngls necessary 1o 5ell
them. (For servives provided in progress, provision for decling it value of inventories is calculated nocording to sach type
ol service with a separate price. )

Increases and decresses of provision for docline in value of inventories balances that need o he made al the end of the
fiscal year are recorded mn the cost of goods sold,

. Princlples for recording fixed asseiz

Principles for recording tangible frved assels

Tangible fixed azsets-are recorded at cost bess {-] accumulated depreciation. Historical cost is all the costs that a business
must spend 1o sequire a fixed ageet up 1o the time the asset is put inta a ready-lo-use siste as expected. The costs incurred
after the nitial recopnition of tengible fixed ssssts shall be recorded as-increase in theit historical cost If these costs are
cermly to angreent fulure economic benefits obtained from the use of these assets, Thess incurred costs which fail to meer
this requirement must be recognised as production and business expenses in the period.

When the asssts are =old or disposed, their original costs and the accumulated deprecintinn which have been writtan off
anl uny gain o loss from disposal of assets are recarded in e income stalement,

Dretermination of historical coat on a cose-by-case basis

Prooeieed fangible fived arsels

The historical enst of 8 procured tangible fixed asset consists of the buying price (mims (<) trade discounts and price
reductions), taxes {excluding reimbursed fax amounts) and expenses directly related to the putting of the assets into the
ready-For-use stite, such as nstaltation and trin] opeeation experse; expert cost und other directly-related experises.

Where procured tongible fixed assets are houses, architectural objects assaciated with the land use right, the land nse right
valuz must be separaiely determined and recognised s intangible fised asscl.

Self-canstructed or selfmads tangible fisa aizelts

The histarical cost of a selEconstricted or self-made tangible fixed assef is iz actual cost plus () the installaticn and 1rkal
aperafion cost. Where the enterprises tumn the producss made by themselveés fite fixed nssets, the historical costs shall be
the production costs of such produsts plus {+] the gxpenses directly related 1o the putting of ihe fixed assets into the ready-
for-use state, In these cases, o) internal profits must not be included in the historical cost of these assets.

Principles for recording intangilile fixed assets

lutangihle fived assets are-recorded at cosl less (-} sccumulated depeociation. The historical cost of infangible fixed

nssets includes all costs that the Company niust spend to scquire the fixed asset up to when the asset i put info d ready-to-
use state, Costs related 1o intangible fixed assels thot arise after initisl recognition are recorded as production and busincss
custs in the period unless these costs are asspeiated with a specific intangible fixed msset and increase the economic

benefils from thesc asscls.

Tiewe ok £ farme a0 fnfegeon’ part oftfvd cargg Ve finovsciol shideivents 5 Fape 2T .
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When intangible fixed assets are sold or liquidsted, their original cost and sccumuliated depreciation are written ofl and
profits and losses arising from disposal sre recorded in income or expenses during the year. '

Detarmination of historical cost on a case-hy-case hasis

Comprider softwars

Costs related to computer soltware programs that are nol an inkegral part of the related hardwere are capitalisd. The
original price of computer software is all expenses that the Company has spenl up o the time the software is put info wse.
Fixed asset depreciation method

Depreciation is charged Lo write off the enst of fixed assets on a stealght line basis over their cstimated uzeful lives, Uselul
fifie means the duration o which the tangible fived assets produce their elfect on production and business,

e estimaied waefinl life for aeseis is as follows:

Buildimgs amd stractiorel 05 - 25 pears
Maehinary and eganpanend 0¥ pears
Transportation and fooilifies 03 - I5 years
{}ffice equipment {4 - 05 years
Other tangitle fived ossels (0F yeecars
Cewmputer soffunrs - (35 years

. Prineiples for recording construction in progress

Comstruction in progress reflects directly related costs (including intorest expenses) related in accordance with the

Company's accounting policy 1o assels under comstroction, machinery and equipment being installed for production,
leasing and manigement purposes a5 well & costs related to repairs of fixed assets in progress. These assets are roeneded
at original cost and are not depreciated.

This cest is transferred to increase assets when the project is completed, the overall sceeptance is completed, the assets are -

hanided over and pul inio ready-io-use state,

Principles for recordiag and depreciating investment propertics

Principles far recording investment property: livestment property iz the right 1o use land, a hovse, a part of a house or
infrastruciuse owned by the Company or finencial lesing is vsed to enn profit from leasing o waiting foxr price increases
Investiment property is stated al cost less accumulated depreciation.

The historical cost of investment property: is all expenses that the Company hes to spend o ihe fair valne of the
amounls given in cxchange for acquiring mvestmen! propary up o the time of purchase or completion of construction of
that investment property.

Expenditures incurred afler the initial recognition are recorded as expenses in the period, except for the case where it can
be clenrly demonsrated that the expenditures hove resufted in [uture economic benelits In cxcess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing investment property, the enpenditures are capitalised as an additional
cost of invesiment propoety.

When investment properties are sobd, the eriginal cost aml accumulaed depreciation are written off and any gain or loss
resuilting from the sales of these properties will he recorded fino the income stitement in the period.

This eomversion from owner-occupicd property o inventory o investment property is only when the owner stops using the
assel and begins leasing it to another party or at the end of the constraction perind. The transfier from investment properly
e swner-geeupied property or inventory ocours only when the owner begins to use the proparty or beging ta develop it for
sale. The transfer from investment property to ownes-oceupled property or inventary does not chimge the original cost af
residual value of the property at the date of conversion.

Tiase s Jnrar g kgl part o e cons okl fnancial nl freads, Fope 22
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11.

I 1,1

1.3,

11.3.

Investment property used for rental; depreciation is recorded using the straight-line method over the eetimated wseful
lifie of the invesbment property,

Estinnrted psefild Hfe af tnvesinuent properties:
Foclorfes T4 vy
Lewnd wse rights i ywcars

The investment properties awaiting price increases do not make depreciation. [ casa where there 15 reliahle evidence
showing that the investiment properties have devaloed in comparison with the murket valve and the devaluated amount has
been reliably determined, then the Company will cvaluate the decrease of the investment prapertys oripinal cost and
resend the lnss in cnst of poods sold.

Principles of accounting for business cooperation contract (BCC) :
The Compeny initially records amounts contributed to BOC at the original cost and refloots them as ofher reesivubles,
The Company records receipt to BOC at historical cost and reflects as other labilities, not in OWNErs' Squity.

BOCC in torm of jointly contralled asscts

Jointly controlled assets of the joint venture parties are assets purchased, consteucted, used fer the joint venture pirposes
by the joint venture parties and bringing benefits 1o the joine venture partics according to the provisions of the Jeml
Venlurs Contract. The joint venture parties recsive products! {or revenue) from the use and exploitation of the jointly
controlled assets nnd bear a part of the costs incurred sccording to the agreement in the conlrac.

The Company records its share of the value of jointly controlied assets as assebs on the Financial Statements. o

For fixed ssscts snd investment properties when eoniributed as capital to BCC and swnership is not iransfered from ﬂa;w
capital contributor fe: the joint ownership of the parties, the Company does nol recond & decrense in wsseds on the ﬁﬂ.EITIE,I:III I'ﬂ_‘-I

statements but only monitoss in detail the location, position, and place where the asseis are located. 2
b

BCC in foem of jeintly controlled operations

A buginess cooperation contract In the form of & jeindly controlled operation is a joint venturs that dess niot eatablish a
new business entity. The joint venbure partics have obligations and enjoy benefits according to the agreement in the
confract The activities of the joint venture contract are carried out by the capital contributars togetber with other nonmal
business activitles of cach party.

Whan receiving money or assels conttibuted by other parties to BCC activities, the Company records thens &s lizhilities
and doss not record them in equity. The difference between the fair value of the returned assets and the value ol the
contributions received from the parties i3 reflacted a5 other income or other expenses.

The principles of revenue, cost and product division of the contract are based on the agrecments in the joint venturc
contract on the allocstion of commuon costs and product division regulations confirmed by the joint venture parties.

If receiving capital contribution in the form of fived assets or investment real estate without transferring ownership, the
Company only manitors the detalls on the mansgement systent and explains as assets held m truss,

B profit shaving

If e BEC stipulates that other parfies participating in the BOC are entitied to o fixed profit, the Company shall recognize
the entire revente, expenses, and profit after tax of the BOC on the Income Stalement; Recognize the entire profit after tox
of the BCC in the "Retained Earnings” item oo (he Balance Shoet

I the BCC stipulates that other parties within the BCC are only entitied to peofit distribution if the BCC's operations
resull in & profil, and they also bear loxses, the Company shall apply the reveme-sharing BOC socpunting method 10
recopize revenie, expenses, and business resulte corresponding to the partion allocated according to the BCC sireement,

Tlstan mower form e integred perd af the cansolichesd flnaocial sialensels, X Puge 1
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12. Principles of recording prepaid expenses

I3

14

15

Prepuid expenses at the Company include nctunl expenses that have been incurred ud are related to the busincrs
performanea of many accounting periods, Method of allocating prepaid expenses: Caloulating and allocating prepaid
expenses inte business operaling expens=s For each period is done using the straight-line methed.

The company's prapaid expenses include the following:

Tack and sepplies: Tools and supplies that have been put Into use are allocated fo expenscs using the straiphi-line basis
with an allocation period net exeeeding 36 months.

Insuramee costs: (fire and explosion insurance, vehicle owner civil liability insurance, vehicle body insurance, property
inaurance, ...) and other fees that The Company buy and pay once Tor many accounting periods

Fixed nsset pepatr costs: One-time asset repuir costs of great value arc allocated to expenses using the straight-line basis
walh an lﬂnl:.ali:nn |‘.u":|'i|:||:| during 36 mimithe,

xhesr pn:]:mu:l gxpenscs serve business operations Fn{ msany necounting paricds,

Principles for recording Iﬂ-thltIEﬂ

Liahilities are recopnised-for annonts 3 be paid in the l'uuue for goods and services received. Liabilities are lmgmsnd
based on reasonable estimates of the amownt payable.

“The classification of payables as trade payables, inter-company payables and other payables is based on the following
principles:

- Trade pavables reflect trade payables arising from purchases of goods, services, assets and the vendor is an independent
unit of the Company, including payables when impotted through consignes.

- Inter-company payables rellect payalles between superior units and subordinate units without legal status und depanden
Accounting,

- Oher peyables reflcet non-commerclal payahles, nat related 1o transactions of buying, selling or providing geeds and
BETVICES,

]"rlut.hale.-. far recording borrowings anid lnance lease Habilities

Borsowings are total amounts the Company swes to banks, institutions, finuncial companics and ather ﬁb}-‘-ﬂlﬁ {encluding
borowings under the form of bond or preferved stock issuance which require the Bsuer to repurchase at 3 certain time in
the future].

Firancial lease liabilities are recorded o= total payable amount alevlated by present value of iminimum lease payment
amoiunts or Cair valee of leased assets. '

Borrowings and Bnanclal lease liabilities are monitored in detail according to creditor, agreement and borrowed asset.

Principles for recording and capilalising borrowing costs

Principles for recording borrowing costs: Borrowing costs include loan interest and other costs incurred directhy related o
loans. Borrowing costs arc recorded es mopenses when incurred,

Iy cases whare herrowing costs ans directly tefased 1o construction investment or production of unfinished assets that need
a long ¢nough period (over |2 manths) fo be put ints use for the intended purpose or sald, then these bormowing costs are
copitalised. Foe separale borowings serving the-comstruction of fixed assets or investment properties, interest s

capitalised even if the construction period is less than |2 months, Ingome arising from the temparary investment of loans
ie recorded as a decrease in the cost of the relevan! nssets.

For general horrowings eapital, which is used for construction invesiment fUrposes o production of unfinished assets,
capitalised horrowing costs are determined pecording to the capitalisation rte for the weighted EuErage aocumulated cosls
incurred for capital construction ivestment or production of that asset. The capitalisation rate is calculated &Wﬂrdmg to
the weighted averape inferest rate of outstanding borrowings during the year, excluding separate: loans sarving the: purpose
of crealing a specific assel.

hese Rotes fornt an indgral pord of the comsalidnted finanoial S, Pape &4
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1b.

17.

19,

Prineiples for vecording scerued expenses

Accrued expenses reflect amounts payable for goods and services received from the seller ar provided to the buyer but not
vel paid due to lack of invoices or insafficient recerds, accounting docwnents and other relevant decuments, payables to
employess in terms of vecalion wages, production snd basiiess cxpooss that st be poomued in advanaé,

Land leage: Accrued expenses are recorded on Lhe basls of the fair estimates on amounts piyahle to poods, services which
liave becn used and the fair estimates on the costs of land leasing activity in the year. The coats of land leasing activity are
caloulatad based on the Eifr estimutes on the amounts payable 1o goods, services for the purpose of this activity in the year:

Costs of land lensing  _ Leasesreain the . Cosls 1m2 of lease land as per investmant

actlviry preriod egtimates

Principles for recoding unrealised revenue

Unreatised revenue is the revenue which will be recorded in conespondence with the obligations that the Company must
perform in one cr more following accounting periods.

Unrealised revenue includes (he prepaid amount from customers for one or many sccounting periods concerning the lease
of property @t Saigontel Tower, Lot 46 Ouang Trung Saftware Pack, Tan Chanh Hiep Ward, Tist. 12, HUMC and the
lease of plant at Dai Dong Hoan Son [P, Bec Ninh Provinee.

Method of alloceting unrealised reverue 35 on the principle o feonformity with nbligations that the Company w ill perform
in next one or several accounting periods.

. Principles for recording owner's equity

Paid-in capital
Pald-In capitl is recognised according to the achunl eontributed capital of sharcholders,

Share premium: Share premium is recognised necording to the difference between the ssue price and the par value of
shares at initial isswnce, additional issuance, the diffcrence between e reissue price and the ook widws of treasury
shares and the capital compoeest of convertible hands at matarity. Direct costs refated to the additional issuance of shares
and the reissue of treasury shares are cedited to the share capital surphs.

Principles for recording undistributed earnings

Prafit after corporale ineome tax shall be dictributed to shareholdors aftor selfing asids funcls in accordance with the
Charter of the Company as well as the provisions of law and approved by the Ceneral Meeting of Sharchalders' Council.

The distribution of profits to shareholders taking into consideration noo-monctary tems included in undistributed after
corperate income tax may affect cash flow and the ability w poy dividends such as inlerest doe to revalistion of assels
contributed o capital, interest due to revaluation of monetary itams, financial instrzmerts and other non-monetary items.,

Dividends are recognised as Liabllities when approved by the General Mecting of Bherehokiers Coungil.

Principles for recording treasury shares

Upon redemption of shares issued by the Company, the amouni paid including transaction-related expenses 1s pecorded as
treasury shaves and reflected sx a deduction in equity. When reissped, the difference between the reissue price and the
ook price of weasury shares is recorded in the item "Share premium'.

Therd mortes v daregenl part af the corelidoved finarctol sforemends, T 23
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20. Principbes for recording revenues and other income

Revenue from the frgnsfer of land, leaging of land with developed infrastructure, and leasing of office buildings
and factorics

The Company applies the method of recording revenue ance for all advanced amounts before the following cowditions are
el simullanesusty: 1. The lessee is not entitled Lo cancel the leass contract and the kessor has no obligation to repay e
amount Teceived in sdvance in all cases and in all fanms; 2. The amount reecived in sdvancs from the lease is not less than
90% of the totel lease amaunt expected to get under the contrack during the leuse term and the legsee must pay the entire
amount of ledse within 12 months from the beginping of the lease; 3. Almost all the rlsks and benefits associated with
ownership of the leased asset are imnsferred 10 the lease; 4, The lessor must estimate relutively the full cost of the lease,

Revenne from goddls sold

Reveniie fram the sale of goods should be recopnised when all the five {5) following conditions lave heen satisfied: |
T enterprise has transfecred to buyer the significant risks and rewsrids of awnership of the goods; 2. The enterprise
retaing nelther continuing managerial involvement ns an owner nor effective control over the goads seld; 3. The amouht
of revenue can be measured reliably; Wihen the contract spacifies that buyers are entitled to refurn produgts, goods they
have bought under specific conditions, the enterprise will secord the revenue enly when those conditiong no longer exisl
and ths buyers do not have eight to return products, goods (except for changing ie other goods, services) 4. The soonamic
benefits assnciated with the ransaction as flown or will flow to the enterprise; 3, The casts incurred or ta be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured reliably, ' '

Revenne from service rendered

Revenué of a wansaction lri.wl-.'ing, the rendering of services is recognized when the outcome of that transaction can he ©
determined reliably. In case the service is performed in many pericds, the revenus recargnized in the period is based on the
results of the work completed at the end of the accounting period.

Tie results from transaction involving the rendering of services are determined when all four (4] conditions are satished:

. Revenee can be determined with relative certainty, When the contract stipulates that the buyer is ontitled to return the
purchased sorvices under specific conditions, revenue is recogniscd only when those specific conditions no longer exist
and the buyer is not enfitled to retum the purchased services; 2, Economic henefiis from the transaction providing that
sorvice can be obtnined: 3. The work complered at the end of the accomting period can be determined; 4. The costs
kncurred for the iransaction and the costs to complste the transaction invelving, the rendering of services can be
dieterimined.

Financial income
Revenue from financial activities i recoznised when all the two (2} follewing conditions have beon satisfied: 15 It is
possible 10 obisin connomic benefits flom the concermed iransactions; 2. Incame is determined with relatlve certainty.

Revenue from financial activities includes: interest, dividends, shared prufits and revenue from other financial activities of
the Company {invesimen in stook trading, invesment in affiliated eompanies, subsidiaries, inveshments it other capital
inveatment; exchange rate intarest)... -

Inferests recognised on an scorual basis, determined on the balance of doposit ascounts and and interest rates in éach periol

Disiri buted dividends and prafits shall be recognised when sharcholdess are entitled to receive dividends or profits from
the capital contribution. Dividends received in shares are only wcked by the number of additional shares, the value of
shares receivedireconded at par value i= not recovded,

When an omount which has been racorded 8s an income becomes irccovernble, such irnccoverable of nnoertunly
recoverahle amaunt must be accoufted a5 expense incurred in the period, but not recorded a3 income decraise.

These aoies forur on fondgnn pard of e sonolifeted faancinl sremputs. Poge 246
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zl.

12

Frinciples and method of recording cost of geods sold

Cost of poods sald ane the cost of products, goods, services, production cozls and other expenses recorded in the cost of
goods sold or recorded a deerease in the cost of gonds zold in teporting period. The cost of goods sold is recorded &l the
date the transaction incursor Tikely to incur in the future regerdless payment has been made or not. The cosl if ponds sold
and revenie shall be recorded simuftancously on conformity principles. Expenses excecding pormel consumption level
are recarded immediately to the cost of goods sold on prodent prineiple.

Principles and method of recording financial ¢xpenses

Financial expenses include expenses or loss related 0 the financial investmcnt, borrowing cost and capital borrowing,
cost of capltal contribution Lo joint ventures and associabions, short-term sscurities transfer losses, transaction costs for
selling securities.; Provision for devaluation of financial mvestrnents, losses incurred when selling foreign cumrengics,
exchanpe tate |osses and other Minancial expenses.

Financial expenses are recorded in details by their confent and determined reliably when there ars sufficient evidences an
these expenses,

Principles and methods of recording current and deferved corporate income tax expenses

Carperate Income tax includes current carporate income tax and deferved corporate income tax incurred in the year and
sets the basis for determining operating result after 1ax in the current fiscal year.

Ciurrent incomse tax is a fax calculmted based on taxable income, Taxable income differs from accountmg profit due to
adjustment of temporary differences between Lax and sccounting, non-deductible cxpenses as well as adjustment of non-
mxable income and loss carnied forward.

Teforred Income tax is the corporate fncome tax that will b payable or refunded due to the fempory difference
hetween the book value of assets and liabilities 1o prepare financlal sintements and the basis for calculating income tax.
Defernsd tax fiabilities are recognised for ail taxable temporary differences. Deferred tox asscts are recognised only when
it is probeble that taxable profits will be available in the future apalnst which these deductible temporary differences can
be utilized.

The biok value of deferred tax assets i reconsiderad af the end al the financlal year ond is redisced to the extent that it
s no longer probable thar sulficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of part or the entire deferned mx
dssed 10 be used, Previously unreeepgnised defemed corporale income tax assels arc reesseased of the end of the finaneeal
year and are recognised Lo the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be aveilable against which the
inoeme tax assets can be utilized.

Tax rates of deferved income tox assetd and deferred ineome tax liabilities are determined at the tax rates expecled to
apply In the year the asset [ realized or the Eability 1= poid based on the wax rates in effect al the end of the fiscal year.
Deferred income tax is recorded in the income statement and recorded directly in equity only when fhe tax relates to iems
pecorded directly in coguity,

The Company offsets deferred tax zssets and deferred tox labilities when il has & legally enforceable right 1o set off
ourrent tax assets against current lax liahifitias; and the deferred tox assets and defemed tax [bilities relate to Income
mwes levied by the same tax authority: on the same taxable entity; or the Compamy mtends o setile 18 clrment 1ax
Habilitles and curent tax assets on & net basis or to realise the assets and seille the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of the deferred tax Tinbilitics or deferred tax asscts are expected to be seftled or
recovered.

Taxes and other payahies to the State Budgs: will be finalized with (he tax ofTice. Differences hetween the tax amonts
payahle specified In the book and the tax amounts under fimalization will be adjusted when the tax Analization has bean
issued by the tax office.

Thern noies e o dnndgeal port of fre cuieelidmed fveectel safenical. Foge 2T



Farm T 09 = DNV

SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORFORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the j']':c‘..:'if_ﬁ"ﬂ'?‘ ared December 35, 2004 Lhait: FND

4.

5,

Tax policies the Company should comply with are as follows:

Bac Minh Branch

The hranch has chasen the method of determining revenus as the total amount of money the lessec has prtidl in advance for
many years, 5o according to the provisions of Stction b, Point 3, Section II, Part B of Cirealar Ma, 13472007/ TT-BIT
dated Movember 23, 2007, the taxable income exempted from tax or seduced is equal to (=) the total taxeble ineome
divided () by the number of years the lessee his paid in advance multiplied ) by the masnber of years exempted from tax
or reduced, .

For infrastructure bosiness activities, fn previous years, the Branch colculated corporate income tax based on tozl faable
imeome recarded by the methad of determining revenue s the tatal amount of money paid in advance by the kessee for
many years. From 2012, based on the Tax Finalization Mimies at the Branch signed on December 14, 2012, the Branch
calculated current corparate income fax bassd on taxable inceme allocated the pumber-of years of prepeyment.

- Corporate income tax expense of the remaining years fthe difference betwesn the current year's COFPOrAts income X
gxpense and the tux expense calculated on the total taxable income recorded under the revenue determination method is
the total ameunt paid by the lesses in sdvance for many yoars) is pocouribed for in the curront year's defarred corporate
iNCome lax expense,

- Cogporate income tay. paysble for infrastruciure business aetivitics From 2009 to 2011 i also calculaied based on taxable
income allocated 1o the number of years of prepayment and iz recorded In the deferred corpornie income tax payable
account,

Principles for recording earnings per share

Basic samings per share is caloulated by dividing net income available 1o comman sharcholders after appropriating to the !

Bonus and Wellane Fund by the weighted-average number of common shares outstunding during the year,

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing nel fncome available to common sharcholders (afier adjusting
dividends of prelered convertible shares) by the weighted-average number of common shares cutstanding and the
weighied-nverage number 10 be issued in case where all dilutive potentinl common shares are converted info commos
shnres.

Financial il'l.'zfl"'l]'l';u'l'lhi
Initial recognition
Finuncinl assels

According to Circular Wo. 2LE2045/TT-BTC dated Movember 06, 2009 (Circular Mo, 2100, financlal asscls are classified
properly, for the purpose of presentation in the financial statzments, into the francial assels which are smated ot fair valoe
through the Income Statement, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sle financial assets.
Thie Compaiy decides to classify these assets ol the dite of nitial recognition.

At the date of initia] recognition, the fihancial assets are recopnised at cost plus transsction costs thal are directly
attribatable 1o the acquisition of the tizancial asscts.

Financial assets of the Company comprise ¢ash, shorl-term deposils, trade secounts recelvabics and other receivables,
lpams,
Fimnmeial Habilities

According to Circular 210, financial assets are classificd properly, Bor the purpose of presentation in the fnancial
eratements, inte the financial linbilitics which are stated ot [uir value through the Income Qqatement, financial ligbilities
determined un smortised cost basis, The Company decides to cladsify these linbilitics at the date of initinl recognition.

Al the date of initisl recognition, the financlal liabilities are recognised &t cost plus transaction cosls that are directly
astributable 1o the acquisition of the nancial Tiabilities.

Financial ligbilities of the Campany comprise trade payables, other payables, accrued expenses, debts and bomowings,

Pivese nbies forur o iwegral por of e consolidied foancin flatemerls. Poge 28
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Te-measurements after initial recegnition

Currenily, there are no requirements for the re-measurement ¢f the financial insiruments after initial recopnition.
Cifsetting

Fimanchal gssets and financial Tabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the report on financial position if, and
only if, there is a corrently enforcenble logal right to offset the financial assets agninst financial linbilities or vice-versa
and there is an intertion to seitks ona fet basis or te realize the assets and settle the Habillty simultanecusly.

26, Related parthes - Pz

{i) Enterprises that coniral, or are controlled directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, oo are under
commaon control with the reporting enterprise (including parent companies, subsidaries, subsidianes of the same group;

(it} Associase companies (stipulatzd in Accounting Btandard Mo, 07 = Aceounting for invesiments in associales™),

(it Tndividuals with direct or indirect voting rights in reporiing enterprises that lead to significant influence over ihese
enterprizen, including close family members of these individuals. Close family members of an individual are those who
can contral or be controdled by that person when dealing with a business such @s: Father, mother, wifie, husband, children,
brothers, end sisters,

(Iv} Key managemen! employeas have the rights and respansibilities for plenning, managing and controlling the activities
af the reporting enterpiise, including leaders and managerment s1afT of the company and close family members of these
i pepclun sy

i
(v) Enterprises where the individuals mentioned In case {iif) or case (iv) directly or indirecily hald an important part of il
voting rights or through this, that persen hes can have a sigalficant impact on the business, This includes businesscs thh
are owned by the divectors or major sharcholders of the reporting enterprise and businesses that share a key member of
management with the reporting enlerprise. L
In eonsidering each relationship betwesn related pariies, it ia necessery o pay gitemtion ta the nature of the mlationship,
not just the legal form of those refationships.

27. Principles for presenting asscts, revenue and operating resulis by yegment
A repartable segment inclisdes a business segment of 4 peographical segment.

A business segaent is a distinguishabsle component of an enterprisc that s engiged in providing an individual produoct or
service or ‘@ proup of relabed products or services and that is sulject to risks and retuens that are different from those ol
other business segments

A seopraphical segmeiit s o distinguishabie companent of an enterprise that is engaged in providing products o services
within: 3 particular economie environment - and thet'is subject to rigks and rewrns that are differcnl from wose of
components operating in sther ecanomic environments.

For the purpose of maragement, the Campany operties in 2 large scale of the courry, <0 it presents major segment
reporting by biusiness sector, the minar segment teporting by geographical segment.

Thess moldy jorm an inregeal pord of tre consgplifotae Anmcan’ SRiess, . Page 27
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V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

1. Cash and eazh equoivalents Dee, 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024
Cash 110,950,437 833 52 A% 822,995
Cash-on hind 468,053,551 - 550,718,014
Cas in bank . [ O ABT 434,282 1,935, 104,581
Cash equivaleniz 12,653.0867,232 44,150 436,910
Deposit with the term of less than 3 monthe (*) 12653, 867,232 46,258 435 920
Tatal I 25,604,355,065 93;1’51.159.9‘1 5
=1 In whick, the bark dopesits are being wsed as colflateral for the Toan discloged in Notes V.21 an December 31, 2024 iy
FND J0,653,867,232,

1. Finanmeinl invesiments

it H_l.:ld-m—ﬂaiurity mvestments

Dec, 31, 2034 Jan. 01, 2024
__ Original cost Book value Ovriginal cost Book valoe

Shovt-term ISTART 200350 157,387.209,350 90,180,301,371 91,180,301 371

Bonds L 00 000,000 L e, CHEREH, N0 1, 063, Q0 004 1,0, 000000

Deposits with terms over 3

months (*] 156.357.204,350 186,387 200 150 #9,180,301,371 a0, 180,301,371

Tustal 187,347 204 550 187,387, 209,350 90,180,301,371 o0, 180,341,371

— —

{*) I which, the bank deposity with o terme of less than 12 months with o botanee as ai December 31, 2024 of FND
X3 387200350 iy baing ured ar collateral for the loan discluved in Notes V.21,

b. Long-term financlal investments (pape S8-61)

3. Trade receivables Dec. 31, 2024 dan, 01, 2024
Amount ___ Frovision _ Amount Provision

5. Shorl-term 1,150,444,753,046 (4,126259.453)  628,612,543,535 (4,126,259,453)
Local customers 150,444,753, 046 (4,126,259,453)  G2B612,543,.838 (4,126,255,453)
SLP Park Tien Do Co., Ltd :
(*) 6.202,081,325 - : .
S Cron - Da Mang
[nvestment Corporation 368,154, 430,007 - 400,285,772 060 -
Vinh Cal Company Limited - . B0, TR0, R84, 557 -
CHhers [35088,241,714 (4,126,259 453) 141,531 R87 121 {4,126,259.453)
Tatal 1,150,444,753,046 [4126259453) 628612543438 (4,126,259 453)

) Recefvables from customers sibleasing Jand wse rights at Dei Dong Hoan Som Irduarrial Park Phose 15 Bac Nink
Provimes, At the time of preparing the repori, the receivables huve been coflected by cash equivaleni to 0% of the foial
rental walve (including the depoxdl exploined in Notes V200

Thans pdiel foves an ingrod part o s consiiidorad Aokl sifesewis, Page 30
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiar the fzcal vear ended December 31, 2024 Linit: PO
A, Trade receivables Dec, 31, 2024 Jam, 01, 2074
Aot Frovision Aot Frovision
b, Belated parties
Bal Cron - Da Mang
Investment Corporation 69, 154,430,007 = G006, 2B0. 772060 -
Sal Cion - Hai Phong ' :
Industrial Perk Corporation TUI0 418,073 - £,989,5246,183 -
Haigon = Lam Plong :
Investrent and Tourist -
{orparation 1,3%37.457,331 - 3,337,457 331 -
Sky X Saigontel 1SC i), (400,000 - 220,000,000 -
T Global JSC 48,301 Bai “ 332619311 -
Saipontel 8T8 Viemam
Co, Lid . a 3,310,000, 000 R
Robin Hill Tourism Ares
Co, Lid - 2,304, 730,005 -
Sarpon=Hom Tan Tourist
ISC = 1,03 7.405,000 -
Saigon Vina Telecom
Crarment Textiles Y50 500, 0, 00 -
Hung Yen Invesiment and
Development Corporation = = 226,220 -
Long An Development
Invest IS0 - - |.|:|,'[ ES,_UEHJ‘__' -
Tatnl ETD,Tlﬂlﬁﬂ".',IS'I - 426,951,921,121 -
===
4. Prepsyments to smppliers Dec, 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Amoont Provision _ Amouant Provision
Shirt-term 440,606,777,127 (2,515.267,154) 450,200, 043,613 (2,515,267, 154)
= Logal 5||p|:||i:_r5 439,225 301 377 [1,073,851.604) 448 B57.62H,063 (1,073, 851,604
Phigy Yen Town Land Furd
Dievelonment Center (1) 20,181,504 420 : 69,681,594,420
Can Giuoe District
Invesiment Project
Management Ll 16,130,068 435 55.95—'3,?1'3,!_}21 . -
Vinh Hung Long An J5C :
{2} 224, 173,354,454 2000, (00, D0, ()
Kim Ha Consulbiam and
Inwestiment JSC{3) 504340 648 007 - 4, 565,000,000
Binh Meyen Transport J8C 10,331,205, 199 . 47.567,029,051 -.
Dihers 2B.965 490,072 {1,073,851,604] 20,471,284 591 (1,073,551 ,604)
- Foreign supplicrs 1, 441,415,550 (1,441,415,550) 1,441.415,550 (1,441,415,5500
Tatal 440, 666,777,127 (RSIS267,154) _ 450.299.043,613 (2515267154
Thirse noies FAFar on miegral port of fie consolidwed Fomrin sireniits, Foge 3



Forns B 09 - DMEM
SAICON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal year ended Decamber 31, 2024 . Linie FO

{1} Prepayment to the Land Fund Development Center of Fhio Yen Towm for the purpose of compensation, suppor, and
funding for the implementation of the Tan Phao | uni Tan Phu 2 Industrial Cluster projects, in Tan Pha ard Dong Cao
communes, Pho Yen town, Thai Npuyen province.

(%) The advence to Vinh Hung Long An JSC undey the Technical Infrastructure Constrection Contracts for the Investment
Project in Construction and Buasiness of Tnfrastrcturs of Nam Tan Tap [ndustrial Perk and Reselilerment Area,

(3} Prepayment te Kim Ha Consulting and hivestment JSC for the purpose of site clearance and technical infrastrugturs
construction 2t Dai Dong - Hoan Son Industrial Park Phase 11, Tien Du District, Bac MNinh Provinee. The project is heing
implemented on schedule,

Mofes for loane

5 Receivables from loans Do, 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
- Amiouni Pravizkon Amaunt Provision

4, Bhori-term 107, 703, 200,000 (L0 HE2 000, (0} 140,700 855,333 -
BHE Heal Estate JRC (1) TT, 060, 2040, 000 32.500,000,000 -
Salgon - Lam Dang,
[nvestment and Tourist
Corparation {2) 12,230,000,000 12,23 0,000,000 =
Vien Dong Viemnam Land
15C (3 10, 662,000,000 {10,662, M D00 110,6562,000,000 -
Foodmin Hill Tourism Aréa
iy Ltd = £3,216,800,000 -
Oithers 7,770.000,000 32.191.033,313 -
Total __ 107703200000 (10.662,000000)  140,799,833,333 = i

b. Related parties
BHS Real Estate JSC 77,041 200,00 . 32,500,000,00 -
Baipon - Lam Dong
Invvestment andd Tourist
Corporition 12, 230,000,000 = 12,230,000,000 =
Baigon Postel Corporation 1, AD0, 00000 - 1,000 00 G0
Saigon Vina Telecam
Crarment Textiles 150 6, 370,000,000 . -
Tabin Hill Tourism Area
Co., Litd - - 53,216, 804, 000 -
Total T 0 1,200 MDD - H.Edﬁ.ﬁuﬂﬂ -

(i} Unsecrred lomrs wnder logn contrack with terms from & o 12 monihs, interest rates as of December 31, 2024

Jrmm 8% - F%aqwar,

{2) Unsecwred loan under Loan Agreement No. 20 THD=SG LI Hitech signed an November 20, 2002, Loan tern

(s 12 manths from the date of firs looe disburse
any orier adiustrrends o additions, this Loan Agretment wi

na Timit oot the mpmber of renewaly, with a loan intereat rate of 8Hedjear.

Thene mides forar o infepeal pord af dae consolfdabed feoncial slefiW e,

meend, When ihe repapmrent ferm explees, if the Pariles e mof e
i emtcinatically renew for 00 year each time and there (5

Page 37



Farm B 0 = DN
SAICON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fisend year ended Derember 31, 2024 Unle: WND

{3) Lingscured Inae under contract No. 11 I14TT-30T. 15 dated November 10, 2006, Appendix 0 dated Map 8, 2017,
Appeadiz 12 dated May 9, 2018, Appendix U3 dated May 5, 2049, camount of ¥ND 10,662, 000,000, loan ierm of DI
pear (awomatizally ranewed if there are no other adfusiments or additions), loan Inferest rate bafore Jul OF, 2024 i
{10, 3% vear, from Jul 0F, 2024 s 0%,

(36,350,344, 32%)

G, (MEer recelvables D, 31, 2024 Jam, @1, F024
Amount Frovision Amonnt Proviglon
4. Short-term GH1.551,049,110  (41,281346,078)  945,552,335,098 (36,350,544,318)

+ Deposits i, 942 DGR D66 : 304,503,1 10,279 -
Mr. Ngawen San - - J00. i), 00, NN 7
Oikera 4,042 DX N - 4443110279 -
+ Advances 259,279,825,871 - 255.913.802,006 -
Mr, Ngwyen Khae Tai (1) o0, 763,632,700 - 93, 709,848,033 =
M. Ngwoen Daey Phong (1) &1 816,00, 00 - G2, 747,004, 400 =
(Mhets I3 006,098,771 - 0g, 360 8 67 =
+ Lean interest 382,145,232 (4,930,801,750) 35,510.600,983 -
Fien Dovng Vietnam Lond

JsC & 830808 750 (4020800, 73 4. 364,837,270 -
Robin ST Towriser Area

Cia, L - I8 €23.543, 377 -
{hers 5,451,343, 482 12 740 204 358 -

Thase imdes fhre my beiepra pare o she consolidared Enaraiol srafeniens,

+ Oither receivables 411,946, 109,041 349,925,754 28 (36,350,544 328)
Fat Cran - [ Nang

frvestment Corporation (2) 172,000, 000,000 - J 35, 0000, 00, (X s
Drvesiment enirutted to

individuale (3) JA5 QR2 140,460 - ~

FIC Mltimndic

Cerparation (i) 30,600 M) o0 (31, 00, R, GO0 30680, 003, 000 {31, o0 D00
Mirh Sop Coasfeuction

J5C (50 20, 130,000,000 . . -
Ngwyer Thi Thi . - 141,501, 081,000) -
hhers 17.433.968,381 {4, 660, 544,328} 41 734,677,828 {d, 660, 544, 328)

b, Long-term 02,323,455, 40 {177 S0, D1, EEMNy 1% 574,918,860

F Deposgita 14,492,037 860 - 3,574,318, 860 %

+ Other recalvables TTA31,417,540 (17,500,000,000) 25,000, 00, (e -
frriesiment entrisied fo

inctivicleesls (3) F2E31 417540 -
Seaipon Pestel Corporation y

i) 2R 000,000 00 {7, 500 NN 000 285, 600, 000, (i o
Total T74,574,504,510 (58,781,346,07H) 971.45‘]'«.256!955 Eﬂ-ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ}ﬂg!
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SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fizeal year ended December 31, 3024 Liwit; FND

. Oither receivahbes 2 Dee. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

Amounl o Provisien Amoumnt Frovision

¢ Belated parties
Sai Con - Da Hang

[nvestment Corporation [ 722, o G0, e - 135, 000,000,000

Saigon Postel Corporation 25,006,273,972 {177, 500,000, HHY) 25,000, 004,000

Saigon Vina Telesom

Crarment Textiles JSC ALED 117808 . . 3,900,060,000 -
TH Global JEC BUE,TI5,000 - 1,231,344 311 -

Haigon - Lam Dong,
Imvestment aned Towrist

Corporation 22,578,085 - - 1485903430 -
Mr. Higuyen Son - T 306,060, 000,000 -
Robin Hill Tourizm Arca

T, LA . = |8.425,543,371 -
Tatul __200,186.694.866 (17,500,000,000) 485,102,791, 18 .

{17 The advance papment io Mr. Npuwyen Khac Tad and Mr. Mguven Duy Phong according to Declsion Mo
B CANINOD-HDOT dated March 20, 2020 and Decision No. 10A/2020/0T-HDOT duted Ssptember 10, 2020 on
compensation payment for site clearance of the Dai Dong - Hoan Son 11 Tndustrial Park Infrastructure Investment and
Busiress Project in Lueny Village, Tri Phuoag Commune, Tien Du District, Bnc Hinh Province.

{2} The capital contribution is related w the investment cooperafion coniract Mo, NGOT 2020 HOHT DT EDN-SGL
stgmeil on July 9, 2020 between Saigon - Da Mang Invesiment 15C (SDN) and Saigon Urban Development and -
Investment JSC (SGLY on cooperation in Investing in Bau Tram Social Hewging Project. [n which, SDN will "._f
contribute the land use rights of the project in Floa Hiep MNam Ward, Lien Chien District, Da Nang City with an area of
40,587 m2 camesponding to the contributed capital of VD 86 billion, and SOLU will confribute all the capital In cash
necessary b limplement the project but not Jess than VND 172 billion. Accordingly, the profit afier tax that SGU will
enjoy 18 the remaining smount afer paying SDN 30% of the prafit after corporate incame tax of the project bt not
iess than VD 86 billicn, A

(3} Investment entrusted to individugls under the followisg entrustinent contrects;

- Jrvestmont entrustment contract No. 19032024HDUTBAT-NTA dated March 19, 2024 for Mr. Ngeyen Thai'Anh
with & contract value of VNI 160,000,000,000, the purpese of investment entrustment is fo coperate with individuals
and srgani stions to implement production and business projects, receive capital contributions, and purehase shares of
other companics. The entrustment contract has 2 berm Of 1 yanr from the date of signing, the balance of the entrusted

as it Drecemiber 31, 2024 js VD 155,992, 140,460, As at the date of praparing the financial statements, the imveshment
entrustmeut contract has been liquidated and is in the process of bring recovered.

- luvestment enfrustment coniract Mo, 2606/2024TIDUTDTYSAT dated June 26, 2024 for Mr. Bui Xuan Cuynh with o
contract value of VNI 52,831,417,540. The purpose of entrusfing real esiate investment in various forms. The profit
frain the use of amets formed from the entrusied capital will be divided according 1o the Tatio: Saigon
Telecommmmication & Technologies Corporation receives 95%, Mr. Bui Xuan Quynh reccives 5%, The entrushent
contriuct haz a term of | yeor from the dote of signing and can be mutended sccording 1o the progress of the project. As
al the daic of preparing the financial statements, the Doaed of Ceteral Directsrs has msessed that this entrust fund is
nel impired and still being carried out.

{41 Addvance payment to Muhimedia Corperation {VTC) to purchase technical equipment to establish a subsidiary
under {he Cooperation Contract to ealablish VTC-SaigonTel Communications JSC Mo, 10/HD-SGT dated Movember
e

Tiser notes o on it oo o Ure eowpolidited feancial SETement. Mage 34



Form & 09 - DNTHN
SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 - . Einir: FIND)

(51 Deposit for the principle contract Mo, 012024/ HBNT/ME-SGU signed on October 29, 2024 between Mish Son
Congtrietion 1SC [“Minh Son Company™) and Saigon Urban Development and Tnvestmeal JSC ("8GU Company®) on
cooperation in investing in the Residential Housing Censtruction Investment Praject in Dien Ban Town, Quang Nam
Provines with an area of 50,237 m2 invested by Minh Son Company. SGU Company has the right to choose to
purchase the Project to beoome a customer of Minh Son Company or transfer the purchase aplion 0 4 legel entity or
individual designated by SGU Compeny. Minh Son Company will sign a Project transfer contract with SGU Company
to ensure compliance with the provisions of law after the Project is eligible to sign » sales contral,

{5} Dthes receivables related to the deposit contract for the future purchase of shares of (he project enterprise of Saigon
Pt and Telecommunications JSC signed on Ocleber 5, 2018, and the attached appendices, The deposit perfod 1s from
the clate of signing the confract wntil October 5, 2024, and the contract is currcntly overdue,

7 Daoubtful debts - Provision for doubtful debts (ze page 62)

. Tmventories Dec. 31, 2024 Jun. 1, 2024
Amiunk Provision Amount Provision

Wik in progress 3,385,306,379,661 - 2,707,048,754,921 =
Tan Phu 1 Industrial Clusier
Project cogt ; 404,551,834, 100 - 323,195,471, 74 -
Tin Phy 2 Industrial Chaster .
Project enet 383 654,125,023 : 331,331,207, 988 .
Mam Tan Tap Indusirial Pack ) ) s
Propect |,563,922,029,297 - 1,216,885,622 451 - |
Luong Son Industrel Cluster
Project 84, K77 806, 704 . §1,029,491,284 =
T3ai Trong Hean Son 2 .
Industrial Park Project cosl TOE.225,544. 771 . 5E2 KB1.5 15,633 -
Twm Linh Long Chau Project 54,554, 778,131 - 40 276,981,700
Bau Trem Social Housing Projec 35,267,154,752 - 26,994,052 443
Cost of building general
infrasuucturs in Dal Dong
Hoan Son 2 Indusirial Park 30,373,605,361 . 30,203 605,361 -
Oiher woeks in progress 103,070,501,522 - &4,260,306,298
Merchandise B, 272,000 v £ 834,765,749

Tatal 3,185.392,651,0601 - 2,712,588, 510,670

- Value of deteriorated, degraded, slowly circulated inventories: Not applicable.

- Vulue of nventeey nsad as worpage, pledge to sccure payebles af December 31, 2024 VHND 3,176,872,672,527. In
which, the value of Dai Dong Hoan Son 2 Industrial Park project iz VND 684,799,722.651, Tan Phu 1, 2 Industrial
Cluster Projest is VHD 788,005,959,123, Luang Son Industrial Cluster Project is VI &4,877,806,704 arsd Mam Tan Tap
Industrial Park Project is VND 1,563,922,028. 207 which is used as cellateral lo secure the loan of banks are detailed in
Wides V.21

- Tn which, interest expenses are capitalised undil December 31, 2024 inte the nfinished construction project of Dat Dhong
Hoan Son 2 Induserial Park, Tan Phu 1 Industrial Park Project, Tan Phu 2 Industrial Park Project, Nam Tan Tap Industrial
Park and Tam Linh Long Chou respectively is YIND 72,221,608, 160; YD 55,892.015,509; VND 39,883,017,889; veiD
175,075,709, 759; VMO 833,735,794 and VND 30,386,393 263,

Tiexe nodes forar o imdegreed pard of e consolidald foancial stareisands Foye 3§



NOTES 1O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Form [ 0% - TINGIN
SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

For the fivcal pear ended December 31, 2024 Chudt: VNLY
0, Prepaid expenses Dec. 3, 2024 Jam. 01, 2024
a. Shori-term prepaid expenses 1,256,534,764 2,051,761,3846
Tools and supplics 252 440,700 281,BLE. 733
Oither expenses [, 00,094,055 1,769,942,5653
b Long-lerm prepail expenses 4, 185,047,263 6,1 39,900,733
Prepaid expenses for leasing assels 1,207,933,161 2.483,354,301
Repair of plants 2312199118 2.863,167,317
Tools and supplies 112,225,966 185,723,054
Other expenses 552,689,018 607,663,061
Taotal 8441582027 ;{M
16, Oiher asscts IS4 010172024
Short-term 2,245, 304,000 1,413,533,000
Gold, preciong metals, precious stones 2,745,300, 000 1, 413,533,000
Total 2,245,308, (HH) 1,413,533,000
11, Tangible fixed assets (sec page 63)
1L, Iniangible fixed assels
ltems Computer soflwire Total
Ohriginal cost
Cipening balance 402 872400 492 BT2.900
Closing balance 492,872,500 492,872,590
Accd muls ted amaortization
Opening balance 452 432,894 452 432,894
Cherrge for fhe wear 13, 830995 13,830,900
Closing halance 40, 272, B dii, 2 T80
H_r:t bools value
Opening balance 40,440,006 A0,400, 006
Closing balance 20,600,010 26,600,011
[ .IE-"H-[I-“H' m""’,ﬁ'rlrﬂg value qunfﬂpgjb{g}l‘:ﬁ'ﬂ Arets Ffﬂ'ﬂ'ﬁf’fﬂﬂi’fj‘ﬂgﬁi s foam Jﬁ'ﬁl’ﬁiﬁ-‘- 0l ¥ND,
* Ending ariginal corts af intangible fived assets—fully depreciated Bt still in wse; VND 423,672, 900,
¥ Commiftitents on langible flead ossaty segquivitions, sates of lavge vale fn the fiture: Not applicable.
Thess il 1 G T ede i T o Wee corro elaiedd fetivdal STismERis, Fape 36
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SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOQGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiscal pear ended Decembar 31, 2024

Lhdt: FND

13

15

Investment propertics

Liems Land use right Buildings Total

Chriginal cost

Oipening balance |3,756,652, 368 73,210, 720,919 B6, 267 373,28T
Tramyfer 5087 130,000 (26, 561, 540, 499 (31,648,670, 400,

Closing balance 5069, 500 368 4,647 180,420 55,318,701,78R

Accumulated amortizalion

Opening balance 3255064, 348 50,344,.294.934 53,500 T80, 287
Charge for the year 320,00, 485 508, 508990 4 K206 4Th
Tremgfer (E50, 03,720 (17,675,835,293; (18,525,928,385)

Closing balance 3,726 467 741 37,176,969 632 39,903 437373

Met boold valoe

Cpening balance 10,501,135,020 21,866,025 983 33,367,614,045

Closing balance 5,043,054 627 9.472,210,7TR8 15415265415

* Nit book value of investment ptuperhm pledaed as security for the borrowing: YN (.

* According 1o the provisions of Vicmamese Accounting Standard No. 05 "Tnvestmont properties’, the fai value of
investment properties af the end of the fiscal year should be presented. However, the fair value of investment properties
have not been officially evaluated and determined as #l December 31, 2024 The Company’s Board of Gueneril Directors
believes that the fair value of investment propertics is greater Man the book value af this date.

; Mop-current works in progress Dee. 30, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
1T 2 Building Projest {*) 242,614,134,140  150,868,381.619
Projects in Ba Ria Yung Tau province 120,206,820, 586 122 444,926,602
Projects in Hai Dueng peovines 50, 720,742,137 67.670,794,364
Projectz in Long An province 67, 443,975,001 71,015,925 921
Oher projects 172 A0, 248,636 162 427,233,236
Totul ’ 662,305 920,500 574,517,161,742

{*} The 1CT 2 Office Bullding Project, Quang Trung Software Park, Ho Chi Minh City has completed comstruction and is
awaiting woceptancs, Gnal settlement and audit of the completed project setiiement to transfer asscls.

Other projects Inglude consulting costs, legal procedures and other costs related to the initial stages of project
implementation, These costs arc part of the tetal investment structure of the project thal will be formed in the future,

Trade payables Dhec, 21, 2024 Jan, 0, 2024
PRI Debi service TR Debi service
cuyerage EnVerage
&, Shert-term 508,857 832 618 506,857 851,618 432,066,451,808 432.006,431,308
Loeal suppliers 508.857,852,618 508,857 852,618 424,332,023, 446 424,132,023 446
Licopi 13 - Foundation Const 91,522.273,191 01,520,273, 191 107, 381,740,724 107, 181,740,724
Consbructivn and i
Imvesiment JSC 72,9249 488,736 2029 488,730 0B I93, 288,365 08,192,288 365
GDC Group Corporation 52,832,859,712 52 832,859,712 37,535,061, 151 37,535,061,15]
. (ihers 291,573,230,97% 291.573.250.97% | 81,022,933,206 181,022,933 2k
Foreign suppliers . - - 7,734,408, 362 7,734,408 562
Total S08,857,852,618  SO8,B5TKSLEIR  432,066.431.808- 432066431808

Thuse notes fatm i feegeel pac af the connodiakaied laaucial siafemenls,

Foge 17



SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TEC HNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Form B o9 - TN

For the fiscal yeor ended December 31, 2024 Uhnit: PND
15, Trade payahles Irec, 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
p—— Drebi service Jr—— Debi service
cuverage COVErAge
b, Related pariics
TH Global JSC 90,347,000 Do, 387,000 - -
Laong An Developomen|
Invest JSC = - 50, B2, G 10, RO, 00
Baigon - Ham Tan Taurist
IsC - - 66,351,177 66,351,177
Turtal Wﬂﬂ“,ﬂﬂﬂ i O, AR T 000 176,153,177 176,153,177
li. Prepayments from customers Dec. 31, 2024 Jum, 01, Z0Z4
a. short-term 12,598 944,851 13,471 860 5oy
Loesl cuttamers 12,508 844,851 13,471 364,859
Ban Lac Spirituality Park
I5C 10,718,545,612 10,720,946,785
Others 1,879,806.235 2.750,914,084
Tuotal 11..5'93.544135!- 13,471, 360,869
bi. Relnted parties D, 31, 2024 Jani, 01, 2024
Ran Lac Spirluality Park
150 10,718,945 612 10,720,946, 783
Long An Development
Inwest B0 = 1,263 884,000
Tatal ID,TIEH&EH i EE.‘EJIHH
17, Taxes amd payahles to the State .
a, Payables Jdam, 01,2024 Payalile amount ErplAFmc L Dec. 31, 1024
ootk
VAT 6,B67,356,739 | 70,012,449,905 63,460,452 356 113,410.514,288
Comporale income tax 103,152,810,143 g6 p01,532,538 21,736, 462,262 168,217 880,459
Personal income tax TOR, 750230 2.902,190,254 3,332,322,478 H6R,606_615
Maiural resources 1% 64,01 2484 Ofe, 157 624 97| LR, B 80,061,762
Land and heusing tex, lind
rentals 3, 150,999,015 B 724,749 284 12,875,748,29% -
Other taxes 2.623,672,3135 2,623.672,313 -
Totul 113,544 817,660 275, 140,751,920 105,008, T, 456 IELDTEEHE.IH
h. Heewivables
VAT [, 452323 463 452,309,195 1,076,088, 860 977,003,128
Corporate insomes (ax 265,540 40 196, 086, 808 68,862,152
Land and housing tex, |srid
rentals - - 30.450,004 30,4 5,024
Total 1,717, 872,503 648,996,083 2,007,438 884 3 076,515,304
Thase naler form o integral part of the carroldbied financin nigtwests. Page 2§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Form B 00 - N
SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

For the fiscal pear ended December 31, 2024 Unit: VNI
18. Acerned expenses Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024
a. Shari=term 440,037 938,739 181,447 088,479
[nterest experses 206, TE6, 490,932 122,431,346,732
Accrued expenses according to D Dong Hoan
Son Phase 11 project cost estimate {*) TO.007,549 054 -
Canstruction cxpenses B, 181,206, 600 35,877.078,655
Brokerage fee T2 803,720,280 -
Cither aceruals 1,353,271 813 3,138,663,092
. Lasng-term B0 500 d6d 303,362, 610,661
Interest expenses B16 500 464 3035 852 610641
Tadal 440 849,241,203 s A5 300 600 141
. Related parties Pec, 31,2024 dom, 00, 2024
Trang Cat Urban Davelopmant Ona Member LLC 63,713 424,657 39,04 095 B0
Morthwest Sal gon City Development Corporation. 37745, TR 687 A1,073.3243, 609
Sakgon Mhon Hol Industrial Pask J8C F2HET, 123,249 22 BAT. 123,289
Seizon Pestel Corporation 23.617,740,351 23,627,740,351
Hung ¥en Investment and Development Cerporation [ 9,235,457 644 16,320,305,405
L An Development bavest J5C 157,433,392 -
Tan Phu Trung - Long An Industrial Park One Member LLC fdd2 354 564 6,335,889 253
Winatex-Tan Tao Investment J5C - 1,601 682,192
Saignniel Service and Distribution JSC 1,152,750,736 Sk, TRE, 1T
Bao Lac Spirtuality Park JSC BOB, 737,257 626,138,357
KumBa J53C 174,795,614 -
Baigon - Fai Phone Industrial Park J5C - 3,057,050,795
Tatal 175,047 6000, 191 145,700,053 439

(*} Estimated based on the estimated it price (cost price) spproved by Ue Geneeal Meeting of Sharcholders sccording to
Resolution Mo, 02MNQ-DHCD dated Awgust 14, 2019 and Decision Mo, 3B202000-8GT deted January 22, 2020

19, Unrenlised revenue

i, Short-lerm
Revenue from office rental and servics rendered
Ravenue frapm office renral, factory rental, and infrastrocture fees
Others
b. Lomg-term
Revenue Mrom office réntal and servics rendered
Totsl

There ey By an iphegeal part o e ooesodiooie Fooncial furesssn

D, 31, 2004 Jan. 01, 2074
2B 308.670,000 39 0ud 227 B4
2.566.902,875 3.506,491,214
1,851,958,997 T AR, 92 407
33,949,514,273 33,949,814,.273
9,345,271,778 400,306,252
0,345,271,77% 400,306,252
47,713,947 858 40,344,534, 146
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{1] Deposits peceived for Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park project phase [1 inelude:

- Agreement in prirciple on sublessing land with infrastrocture Mo, 1212 TTNITLD-BGT2024 signed on Decembar
12, 2024 and Mo, 21 TTNTTLE-SGT/ 2024 signed on December 2, 2024 ensures the implémentation of the contract
for beasing land with infrastructure at Dai Dong Hoan Son Incustr al Park Phese 10

- The deposit amount sccording to the Deposit Agreements Mo, 1I3CNI-1-1/TTRC-SGTR2020, 41 ZCNG-LTTHC-
SGTI2020, SOACNI-3TTDC-S3GTI2020, S01/CNG-LTTRC-SGT2021, 115 CH4-1TTHC-HGT2020, T703/0N2-

| ITTRC-SGTA02, ... and the sttached appendices to ensure the right 10 re-lexse the Land Lots at Dai Dong-Hoan
Son Industrisl Parle Phese 11, Tien Du Distrlet, Bac Ninh Province as soon #s (e Land Lots meet the business
conditions according to the provisions of law. The depesit value depends on ench coniract {usually fluchumtes around
20 to 30% of the total land rental value excluding value added tax). The deposit torm s expécted to be until March 1,
2023, with 1 correspending self-cxtension clause for the extension petiod dus to objestive reasons or force majenrs

ayeniy.

These anfex fiuan ow Ininpred par of the consodifinked okl pafenseas,

For the fiscal pear ended December 31, 2024 Uit PND
20, Uther panyables . Dee, 31, M4 Jom, 01, 2OZ4
a. Short-term Bl 434,683,573 192,334 034,872
Fecaipt of short-ierm deposits TX2276,258,275 126,673 785,114
+ Chistomers rjcp-cmif. far ]m'njm:li in Thaa NHIJ}'EI:'I Penvince 'I:'IT",H I I.I"l'ﬂz T&.ﬂﬂ-l.]éﬂ.ﬂiﬂ
+ Customers deposit for Dai Dong Hoan Son 11 projects (1) 625,757,543, 488 -
+ Epigan Vina Telecom Garment Textibes JSC(2) 27,669, 000,000 47 569,000,000
+ Orthers 1.038,440,875 3,860,524 256
Other payables B7,158,425,298 65, 710,249,756
+ Buigon - Da Mang Investment JEC (3) A0, 81 5,000, 0 =
+ Others 46,343,425,298 &5,710,249,756
h. Long-term 432,61 1,745,950 dtd, TRO0T A2
Receipt of loag-term deposits 323 988,770,950 303, 752,510,822
t Customeées deposit foe Dai Dong Hoan Son [1 prajects (1) 311,926,714,6T4d 288,928, 120,146
+ Receipt of deposits for leasing land 5.616,215,R88 13,155,545,.839
+ Oihers 5,45, 540,397 I 668 851 R37
Other payables 109,622,075,000 | B0.G68, 187,500
<+ Saipon - [a Nang [nvestment J5C (3] 109,622,975,000 130437973000 =
+ Marthwest Saigon Cily Development Corporation - 40,000,000.000
+ Olbiers : 530,412,500 ’L ¥
|
Toral 1,242, 040,429,531 687,054,942,194 "
o Helnted partics |
Saigon - Da Mang [nvestment J15C 150,437,975.000 150,437,975 000 j&“
Haorthwest Saigpon City Development Corporation = 40,000,000,000
Saigon - Fal Phong Industrial Park JSC ZR07. 226,373 BE, 750,000
Salpon Vina Telecom Garment Textiles JRC 27,6068 000,000 AT 650 (0,000
Long An Development Invest 130 E573011,153 18 B5R, 541 416
Saigontel Servies and Distriladion JSC 1,51 5,890,407 893,150,683
TN Cilobal ISC L ES 040,000 115,040,000
hr. Diang Thanh Tam 1500000000 [ 500,000,000
Mis. Mguyen Thi Kim Thanh 1,5000,000,000 1, 500,000,000
Trotal 194,122,142 935 160056 457,099
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SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fiveal year ended Decermber 34, 2024 Lleoit: FND

{7} The deposit to ensure the performance of serviee contract Mo, 0S032020VHDDVISGT-80GVN slgned on March 3,
3020 related to the project 30A-B Mguyen Tat Thanh, District 4, Tlo Chi Minh City between Saigan Vina Textile
Garment J8C and Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporatien in the amount of VNI 27,668,000,000.

(¥} Pryables related to Saigon - D Nang Investment JSC include the following contracts:

The amount of capital contribution related to the business eooperation contrmet Mo, 2005201 SHDHTRDSDN-SGT
signed on September 20, 2018 and Appendix Mo 0120092018 HDHTRINIDMN-SGT dated September X[, 2023
betwesn Saigon - Da Mang Investment JSC and Saigon Telecommumication & Tochnologies Corporafion on
investment cooperation snd business explodtation at the Pham Hung Commercial - Offree Building project ot Ma. 5-B7,
Can Gidy, Hanoi. As ot December 31, 2024, the capital contribution of Saigon - Da Nang [nvestment JBC is VHD
41,8 15,000,(HH, The profit ratio of SBaigon - Da Nang Tavestment J8C is equal to (the actual amount iramslerred
divided by the total settled project investment cost) mualtiplied by the settled project profit, Contract perind umtil March
- The amount of eapital contribution related 1o the husincss cooperation contract Mo, 0101201 #¥HEPHTED/SDN-8GT
signed on Jamuary |, 2018 and the attached appendices between Saigon - Da Mang Investment JSC and Salgoh
Telecommunication & Technobogizs Corporation on Sooperation in investment, construction and busi.u:;g exploitation
of the praject 300A-B Mguyen Tat Thanh, Ward 13, District 4, Ho Chi Minh Gity. as @t Decamber 31, 2024, tha
capital contribation of Saigon - Da Mang Investment JSC is VHD 109,622 575,040, The profit sharing relie will be
canfirmed by both parties in the Appendix attached to the Contract at the time the project ends to match (he metual
peofit of the project, The contract term is until December 31, 2026

e, 31, 202
Thelst service
COVET e

a. Shori-term 1,395029.679.5095  1,395,029.679.595 1 ALL 116,023,235
Related parties {21.1) 725,083, 111,000 TOSOEL111,000 GO, 456,598,853 _
Long An Development J.ﬁ:
Tnvest 1SC (1) 204,723,703,957  204,723,703,957  S05,643,703,957.  508,643,701.057
Trang Cat Urban
Development One Member
LLC (D
Hung ¥en Invesiment and
Development Corporation
ey} i 132, 6 /2,042,803
Marthwest Saipon City
Development Corporation
(4) 86,013,952, 708
Saigontal Service And
Hateibution J3C (3)
Suipon Hi-tech
Imfrastritiures
Developrient and
Investment J5C (&)
Bao Lae Spirfluality P
IBC -
Tan Pha Trusg - Long An
Indusirial Park One

Jun. 01, 2024
Debt service

Borvewings ond financial
" leaye liabilities

11

Amouit Amouni

320, 000,000,000 320,000,000, 000 -

132,682,042 BET 329,505 497 674 129,593,997 674

86,013,952, 708 63,315,952, 708 63,515,952, 708

4,186.400,000 A,186,400,000 3416400000  34,186,400,000

28,812,000,000 28,%12,000,000 78 812,000,000 28,4 172,000,000

18,210,000,000 18,210, 00, D 18,210,000,000 18,210,000,060

Member LELO
Soigon - Hs Investment
Camearation

[ambg 50

L334 111,551

Thase mores form v iregral povi af the consodidbied e i Sranedis.

1,352,111,551

1,354,111,331

| 0,000, (00,000
3.140,432,5903

1,352,111,551

1 0, 010, 0N, D)
8, 140,432,963
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SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the flveal year ended December 31, 2024 Linis: VNI
21, Borrowings and financial Dee. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
lease liabilities (cond) Treht service : Dobt service
Amount ; Amgun _ PR
Bank borrowings {21.2) 406, TROZG0.ELG A0, TR ASD, K16 125,759 524, 382 125,759,524, 382
Wistnaim Joint Stock
Commercin] Bank For
Indusiry And Trade {7} 2609, 134583 721 269134, 585,721 TEE6YELE 00 78,261,215,0:0
Banl: for Investmyent and
Development of Yicinam
(4) 77,556,991,223 71.556,991,223 £5,941,956,302 45,841,056,302
Wietpam Fxpor Impuort
Commarcial Joint Stock
Bank (4] T30, 200,000 730,200, 000 730,200,000 730,200,000
" Wietnam Prosperity Joint
Stock Comimercial Bank
(14 59, 178,585,872 39,178,5083,872 - "
Others 180,000,000 LB, 000,000 R24,1 53,060 826,153,060
Personal borrowings (21.3) 50,446, 207 680 60,446,207 RO 55,A00,000,000 55,400,000,000
Mgnyen Thi Khuyen (11) 35, 300,000,000 35.500,000,000 - "
Meguyen Thanh Tung (12} L 2,000, 000, B0 12,000, 004,000 = i
Others 12,946,207 680 12,946,207 680 55, 400,000,000 55,400,000,000
Company borrewings (21.4) 131, 520,000,000 131 A20,000.000¢ 195, 5000, 000, 000 195,500,000,000
[ Hoa Infrastmcione
[nvestmant and )
Development JSC (13) 57,820,000,4K 57,520,000,040 187,500.000,000 187, 500,000,000
Kim Ha Consulfing and
Investmant BSC {14 A, 000, 000,000 54,0040, 050,000 - .
Cholimes Meachanlcs
Electromics gl Informatics
180 B (0 OO0, G4 8, 000,000,000 £.000, 000 0D & OO0k 000, GO0
Cithers 10,000,000, HH 0, 006, D00, - C
Orrdimnry b - - 35,000,000,000 35, 004, 000,600
h. Long-term 2,177,205,606,711  2,177,205,606,711  1,062,507,097,053  1,962,807,007,053
Relntexd portios (21.1) 32,480,000,000 33,480 000,000 439 000,000,000 435,000,000, 00
Trang Caf Urban
Developmenl Cine Member
LLC (2} i . 439 ,000,000,000 439.000,000,000
Saigonted Servics and
Distribution JSC () S0 W, 0, 0000 0, 00, 004,000 - -
KumBa ISC 2 A8, 00,000 2 AR, C00 000 - -
Thene notex it on integead pant o the conbalidatad finamsinl slafensels Fape 47
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SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AN AUBSITMARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the fircal year ended December 31, 2024 Uit PND
1. Borrowings and fimancial Dec. 31, 2024 Jam. 01, 2024
lease linhilities (eant) Dbt service Dieht service
Ampuni Amount
COVEFATE coverage -
Bank botrowings (21.2) 2144,815,606,711  2,144,815606711  1,470,810,132,053  1,4T0.810,122,053

Wietmn Joial Stock
Commercial Benk Far

Industry And Trade {7) ,568,245,817,983  1,568,245817,983  1,427.862,166,948  1427.861,166,948
Ipint Stock Commersial

Rank for Investment and

Dvelapment of Vietnam

[#) - - 35,68 1,00, (0 39,68 1,00, 0D

YWictoam Expert bmpirt

Commezrcial Joint Stack

Bank {9) 1,246,041, 000 1,246,000,000 1,976.,200,000 1,%76,200,000
Vietnam Prosperity Joint -
Stock Commercial Bank

(103 574 621,585,728 §74.621,584, 728 - -
Others 702,200,000 02,200,000 1,2%0,755,105 1,294, 755,103
Personal borrowings (21.3) . . 52,996,975, 000 52,906 C75,000
Meiyen Thi Khuyen (11) - - 35,500,000,000 35,500, 000,000
Wguyen Thash Tung (12) . < 17,496.975,000 17,496,975,000
Total 3,572,325,266,306 jﬁuﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁ 3,373,023, 220,288 3,373,023,170, 238

21.1. Details of relatesd partics borrowings

{17 The borrowings from Long An Developmest Invest JSC s morigaged by investments in equity of other entifics
owned by Saigon Telecommunicntion & Technologies Carporation {explained in Notes V.2), delails are as follows:

(1.1} Contract No. 02202 /HDCVI/LADIC-SGT dated Movember 1, 2021 and attnched appendices Ho. PLI-
U202 JHBCTYILADIC-SGT,  PL2-022021VHDCVTLADIC-SGT, PL3 02202 W HBCVT/LADIC-8GT, PLd-
20 HBCYTILADIC-SGT, balance as of Decamber 31, 2024 is VND 74,723,703,957, purpose: serving business
petivities, The interest rate 5,08 vear, term; until November 23, 2025,

(1) Contract No. 0601/2023HDCVIAADICSGT dated Jumuary 6, 2023 ond attached appendin Mo,
01 A6 202 VHBOVTLADIC-SGT dated Jonuary |1, 2024, balance as al December 31, 2024 is VNI 40, D00, OO, D0,
purpose; serving business activities. The interest mie is £.0%/year, term; until Janumary 12, 2025,

{17} Contract Mo, 18082023HDCVLATICSGT daled  August 18, 2023 and attached appendix Mo

O R0E 2023 HB CVT/LADIC-SGT dated Febroary 07, 2024, balance as at December 31, 2024 = VHD 40,000,000 000,
purpose: investien | and business activilies. The inlcrest rate is 5.0%year, torm: unti] February .”' 2025,

{1.4) Contract Mo, 01, 2024/HDCV/LADIC-SLA dated December 23, 2024, the outstanding loan halance as at December
31, 2024 is VND 50,000,000,000, for the purpose of serving investment and business activitics. Interest rate 5%fyrear,
cxpiry date December 24, 2023,

(2) The bosrowings from Trang Cat Urban Development One Member LLE, details as ook by

(2.1} Loan Agreement Mo, DL/202 L/ TTV/TRC-SGT duted September 20, 2011 and Appendix Mo, 01 dated January 02,
2023, Appendix Mo DHAOZVTTVITRC-8GT dated Oegober 28, 2023, balance as af Decembar 31, 2024 15 VHID
34,000,000,000, purpose: supplement working capital, Interest rate: 5%uyear, |oan term of 24 months from Cotober 29,
3023, This borrewing is secured by investments in other unlts owned by Salgon Telecommunicaticn & Technologhes
Caorporation (Node in V.2) '

There metes e qu ftepra part o e consolldaied fEaawcin! slafdmienes, FPape 43
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fiseal vear ended December 31, 2024 Lhwir: PN

{2.2) Loun coniract Mo, 311072023/ HDV/TCC-3GT dated October 31, 2023, balance as at December 31, 2024 is YND
285,000,000,000, porpose: supplement working capital, Interest rale 6%vear, loan term 24 months from disbursement
date, This is an unsegured bomrowing.

{1} The borrewings of Hung Yen Investment and Development Corporation is secured by investments in ather units
ownzd by Saigon Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation (Note in V.2), details as follows:

{3.1) Lean contract MNo. 01202 VHDVV/HY-S0T dated October 2%, 2021 and Appendix Mo, 0372021/PLHEYV/HY -
SGT duted Jannary 2, 23, Appendix Mo, 032023/ PLHOVYY HY-8GT, Appendix Mo, 04/2004/PLHOVVY HY-8GT o
October 28, 2024, Lalance as at December 31, 2024 is VND 131632 MJEE purpase: supplement working capital.
Interest-rate: | eyear, expicy date: QOctober 28 ‘2{!15 ‘ i

{4} The borrowings without collatcral from Northwest Saigon E1l;r Dﬂfelﬂnmﬂﬂi Cowporation arc specifically as
Follows:

i4.1) Loan l:urm'm:-t (FLANZAT/BCD-3GT dated Pebouary 1, 2024, balance as at Dﬁwmbﬁr 3, 2024 iz WND

| D,000,004, 000, Loan purpose: supplement capital for production and husiness activities. [nterest rale: 8%/ vear, tenm unti]
January 31, 20025,

(4.2} Loan contract 07/2024/AT/SCD-8GT dated Februaey 29, 2024, Appendix No, 0TAZDIAT/ECD- SGT dated April
1, 2028, and Appendix Mo, 0TB/024/ AT/SCD-SOT dated Octoher 1, 2024, the balance as at December 31, 2024 is VND

12,500,000,000. Lean purpose: supplementary capital for prodiction amd business netivities, lnterest vate: E¥4/year, expiry
chate: ﬂ:pt:mh.r 10, 2025, '

{4.3) Contract No. 0BZHFATSCD-SGVN dated Augnst 27, 2019 and Appendis No, OR202H/AT/PLEDSCD-SCTL, 1
OBASIDEVAT/PLHB/SCD-SGTL, DERSITY A T/ FLHENSCI-BGTTL, ORC20ZMATPLHERCD-R0TL, -
DRDI0ZATIPLHBSCD-SGTL,: 0RE/ 02 WA T/PLEBYSCD-SGTL and 08F/2024/A T/PLHESCD-SGTL dated October o
01, 2024, Lonn purpese: to implensert the project with an intereet rate s al December 31, 2024 of 8% fyear, expiry date: 7
Chotosher 01, 2025, '

(5 Unsecined baermiings o Saigontel Serviee and Distribution JSC, details as follows: |

{5.13 Loan Contmct 15082022/HBCVISDI-SGT dated September 15, 2022 and Appendix No. 04 AJI022PLHEVEDI-
SOT dated Augast 25, 2022, Appendix Mo, (4A2023/PLHEVSDI-SGT dated August 13, 2023, balasee a5 al Diecember
31, 2024 is VIND 4, 186,400,000, purpose: business activities. Interest rile B4/ycar, ferm expires August 13, 2025,

(52) Losn egreement Mo, 010420227 TTMV/ST-SGT dated  April 1, 2022 snd Appendix No. TTI-
01047202 2 TTMYVSDI-SGT dated Aupnst 25, 2022, balance as al Docember 31, 2024 {5 VND 30,000,000, 000, purpese:
business wctivities, Interest rate is 3.5%yenr, expiry dates Aprl 1, 2026

{61 Unsecured borrewings from Saigon Hi-Tech Park Infrastructure Development Lnvest ..E-SC tnder Loan Conlrad
M., D7-20FHDVY dated March 01, 201 | and Appendix No. 06,6807-201 | /HDV Y with an interest vaic of 0.01¥/'month,
loan tenm until December 31, 2019, Currently, Saigan Hi-Tech Park Infrastrecture Development and Tnvestment JSC has
ceased operatians and cloged ifs x code. The Company is completing procedures to offset this loan with the investment
capital contribution (Mote in V.2).

21.2, Dhetmils of banli borrowings ;
(7} Borowings from Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade, deiails os follows:
{7.1) Investaent Project Loan Contract Mo, 01/2022HDCVDADTLMNHCTIR2-SGT signed on Octaber 18, 2022 and the
Debt Bapayment Schodule Appendices, 10 invest in the construction of icohnical infrastructure of Tan Phu 1 and Tan Phu
2 Industrial Clusters, Pho Yen Town, Thai Nguyen Provines, with inferest rates accargling to each debt receipt, loan term
of § (Five) years from e next day of the first dishursement date, [n which the principal grace period is 06 (six) months,
term acoerding to cach debt receipl. This Yoan is scoured by mssets aftached to the Land Plot with an area of 74.5 haat Tan
Phu | [ndustrial Claster Project emd 56.5 ha ot Tan Phu 2 Industrial Cluster Project ingluding a.ﬂ rights arising E'r-:ml
compensation costs, site clearance compensution, leveling costs, other costs paid related to the land under the Praject +all
rights and benefits attached to or arising from the Project. The hu.1:-mr.':¢ as at Dncr:mb:r 31, 2024 53 WND 492502, 176,621,
(Mote V.5)

Thitre mares foe ot eyl part o the crvnafiamed ol sieeme Huge 44
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{72 Loan conirrct No. 0032024-HDOVHMMNHCTI02-SAIGONTEL, signed on Febroary 29, 2004 to supplement
working capitsl for production and business activities, loan term according to each debt receipt but not excecding & {six)
months, nterest rate according to ench debt receipt. This foan is secured by Deposit contract Me. D02/2024/51597
(explained in section ¥.2) of Saigen Telecommunication & Technologies Corporation. The balance a8 at December 31,
2024 is WHD 27,534, 048,968,

(7.3) Loan contract Mo, 017/20F3-HDOYHMNHCTH2-SAIGONTEL signed on June 28, 2023 wnd and amendsd
supplermented document o supplement working capital for praject development and managemenl conculling sctivities,
interest rate acoarding to each debt note, loan term according to each debt note but not exceeding 11 months, This loan is
secured by Deposit Agreement No, 902/2023/21901 of Saigontel Hi-Tech Development and Invest Co, Lul . The balance
as at December 31, 2024 15 VKT 29,548,541 811,

[7.4) Loan contract Me. 01 1/2024-HDOVHMMNHCTO0Z-SAIGONTEL, signed on May 14, 2024 1o supplement working
capital for production and business aciivities, Ioan term sccovding to each debt vecsipt but ot cxcoeding 6 (six) months,
inberest rate accoeding to each debt recsipt, This loan is seeured by Deposit Agreement No. S02/2022/62495 of Salgentel
Hi-Tech Development and Invest Ca. Ltd - The balance a5 at December 31, 2024 is VND #,7600,992,942.

(7.5} Single loan contract Mo, 01/2024-HDCVTL/NHCTR0B-SGT signed on May 24, 2074 1o supplement or compemsare
for working capital for production and business aclivitles, with Interest rates according 0 euch debt note, lzan term
aceording to each debt pole bul not cxeceding & (sl¥) months. This loen is secyred by Deposit Contract Mo,
Q0RZ023/ 10637 of Saigontel Hi-Tech Development and Tivest Co.Lad . The bafance as af December 31, 2024 is VNI
10,000,000,600, '

(7.6) Loan contract Mo, 024/2024-HDCVDADT/NHCTI02-SGT signed on September 19, 2024 to invest in the
eomstruction of ICT2 building. This loan is secured by the asset of ICT1 building and the asset formed in the futwre, ICT2
office building at Lot 46, Ouang Trung Software Park, District 12. The loan mterest rate is 1D%fycar, The balance as at
December 31, 324 is VD 133,897, 835,805,

(7.7} Investment Project Lean Contract No. 012023/ HDCVDADTL/NHCTZE2-SGT-LE signed on December 14, 2023 o
imvest in the Luong Son Industrial Cluster Investment Project, Song Cang City, Thal Nguyen Provines, with imeras| ralcs
pccording to each debt receipt, loan term of 51 ([ifiy-one} months from the next day of the First Dishursement Dhate, in
which the peincipal grace period is 24 (twenty-four) months, This loan is secured by assets atteched to the Land Flol with
an arca of 34.53 hectares a1 the Luong Son Industrinl Cluster Project, including all rights avising from coniracis for
compensation, site clearnce, leveling and other works related to land under the Project + all property rights arising from
conteacis for purchase and sale, capital contribution, business cooperalion, lease, and lease-purchase of real estate of the
Praject; Contracts for construction, servica provision, equipmen! procurement of the Project and other Conlracts reiated (o
the Praject; Income From business, exploitation of the value of land use righty and assets attached 1o the land ol ths
Project (Mote V.8). Balance s at December 31, 2024 is VND 8,184,872,650.

(7.8} Lean from Vietnum Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade under Invesiment Project Loan Coniract
Mo, 017202 3-HRCVDADT/NECT I68-30TLA dated March 31, 2023 to pay for logal investment costs of the Nam Tan
Tap Industrial Park Tnfrastructure Construction and Business Investment Project in Tan Tap Commune, Can Givoo
District, Lossg An Province with interest rates determined according to each debt receipt and scoording 1o interest rate
adjustment natices during the period, the loan Interest rale as at December 31, 2024 is 9.50%/ vear, boan crm 13 i meonths
from the next day of the first disbursement date. The burrewer docs not hove to repay the principal within 12 months from
thee next duy of the first disbursement date. After the grace period, the loan amount is repaid on a 3-merith term basis on
the day coinciding with the comesponding inferest payment date. The balance & at December 31, 2024 iy VND
1,125,551 932,907, This loan is secured by morignging the following collaterals; (Note V.3}

- All property rights arsing from compensation, indemnity, support, site clearunce, site leveling and other costs paid
related 1o land beloaging to the Nam Tan Tap Industrial Park Infrastructure lnvestment and Constroction Praject in ‘L
Tap Commune, Can Giuse District, Long An Province, invested by Saigentel Long An Compeany Limitexd

Fhese noker v an fsegre part af e cousofidafed fisancin! SneEsient, Page 43
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- All rights and Interests associated with or arising from the Nam Tan Tap Industrial Park Infrastiucturs Investment
Project in Ton Tap Comimune, Can Giuoe District, Long An Provines imvested by Salgontel Long An Company Limitzd
{including bt not limited 10 the rights to own, use, operate, exploit and benefit from the operation and exploitation of the
Industrial Park, receivablo rights, dghts to beneflt from transfer and lease contracts, rights o benefit from insurande
contracts arud athor rights arising from the Project)

- The assets are real estate formed vunder the Mam Tan Tap Industrial Park Infrastructure Investment Project in Tan Tap
. Commune, Can Givoe District, Long An Province, invested by Saigontol Long An Company Limited (including but not
limited to machinery, equipthent, furniture, tools, means of transport and ofher assets).

- Capital contribation and property rights arising from the capital contributlgn of Saigon - - Hai Phong Industiial Park JSC
11 Saigontzl Long An Company Limited to implement the Nam Tan Tap Indhstrial Park [nvestment Project.

Technalogics Corporation ol Seigontel Long An Company Limited to implement the Nam Tan Tap Trdustrial Park
Investment Projec, '

- The deposit at Vietnam Joint Stock Cu;rmmwmal Bink for [ndustry and Trade, with a 6-menth term, owned by Saigoatel
Long An Co, L.,

(2) B-::-rmwmg.s from the Joint Stoek Commercial Banl For Investment and Development of Vietnam, details e as
follows:

(8.1} Owverdrafl limit contract Mo 012024/16346640/HD dated April 2, 2024, borrowing to supplement working capital
for pre<duction-ard business activities with an interest rate of 4.1%#Avear, Joan term of 12 moaths from the date of signing
the contract. The overdraft Jimit value is VND 99,990,000,000. The balance as al December 31, 2024 is VHND
5R,064,944,310. This loan is secured by pledging 03 6-month term deposit contracts, worth YND 100 billion, with an
interest rate of 1.2%vear, torm of 06 months. (V.2}

{8.2) Credit limit contract N, 017202471 634668 WHDTD dated Tuly 3, 2024, borrowing o serve production and business
activities with interest rates for each specific debl receipt, loan term of 12 months from the date of signing fhe contract,
The balance os ot Decernber 31, 2024 is VNI 19,492,046,913. This loan Is. secured by morigaging the real estate
awiership rights of many individuals.

{9} Barrewings from the Vietnam .Commercial Joint Stock Export Import Bank, defails are as follows:

(9.1} Loan sontract Mo, LAV22006453 171403 dated July 26, 2072 1o buy i car. Loan term is 60 months from the date of
firet [oan dishursenent, interest mbe according 16 each debt recsipt. This lean i3 secured by 2 TOYUTA FORTUNER
cars. The balance as at December 31, 2024 is YINI 986,200,000, (Notz V.11)

{9.7) Loan contract Mo, LAVI2007730/1403 dated September 5, 2022 to buy & car. Loan term is 60 manths from the ilata
of first loin disbursement, interaet rate according to each debt seceipt. This loun is secured by a TOYOTA LAND
CRUISER PRADO car. The balance as #l Decamber 31, 2024 is VND 990,000,000, (Mote ¥.11)

{10} Borowing from the Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock Commercial Banl, details are a5 follows:

VPhank loan contrsct Mo, BOLO-4055-01 dated December 14, 2024 15 for the purpose of paying for velid and legal
exparses andior refinancing BIDV'z lean and financial compensation loan o implement the Dl Dong Hoan Son
Industrial Park [nirastructure Investment and Business Project Phase 2, Tien Du District, Bac Ninh Provinee, The loan
terin is 48 months from (e day Fallowing the Firgt disbursemont date, the interest rate according to the lender's regulations
at the time of dishursement and on December 31, 2024 15 10.6% and 8.9% for the 2 compensation and refinancing loans
Form of scourity: All property rights, all legal rights and interests; The entire talance in the Project Account together with
thie Fights and interests arising from the Project Account, the deposits created from part or all of the bulanee in the Project
Account togesher with the rights and Interests arising from the deposits arising from andfor related to the Project. The
balnree 5z ar Docernber 31, 2024 j2 VD 633,800,174,600,

These noiex form ar el par) of the carroiiceked fingwetal mhatesiunls Farge I
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205 Detalls of personal horrowings

(11} Borrowing without collateral from Mz, Nguyen Thi Khuyen secording to Loan Conbrast No. 1 BIHDCV/ANTE-SGT
dated September | &, 2023, purpnse: serving business activitics, Interest rate: A%ycar, 1oan term until September, 17, 2003

[12) Berrowing witheut collateral from Mr. Nguyen Thanh Tung according to Loan Contract Me, 2712/HDBCY/NTT-8GT
dated December 27, 2023, purpase: serving business activilies. Interest rate: (Payear, loan term: 18 manths from [1st
disbursement date,

1L Details of company borrowings
{13} Unsecured borrowing fo Duee Hea Infrastucture Development lnvest JSC according to Loan contract DPlo.
O/ HDCV/HP-SGT dated March 29, 2022 and Appendix No, 010LHDCVW/DH-SGT daied Scptember 29, 2023,
Appendin Mo, 020 IHBCV/DH-8GT dated September 29, 2024, purpose: sorving business activities, Interest rate:
d%'vear, loan term until Septomber 28, 2025,

{14) Bomawing without collateral from Kim Ha Consulting and Investment JS8C sccording to Loan Contracls, purpose;
serving business activities, loan tenm: 06 months, inferest rate as of Decesnber 31, 2024 is 8.5%/year.

17, Deferred ineome tax liabilities Mec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01, 2024
Deferved corporute income tax payabie 30,002,087,975 25,444,560,706
}mﬁﬁ:::hﬂ;':ﬁ;:;;ﬂzuﬂ SIS Mg 30,602,087,975  25,444,569,706
Total 30),601,087,975 25444,569,706

13, Orwners® equity £

1. Comparison schedule for changes in Owner's Equity: page 54,

2. Details of paid-in capital Hate of shareholding Dec, 31, 2074 Jan. 01, 202
Pald-in capltal of investors 1000, 0% 480005, 180,000  1,480,035,180,000
Total L0000 %% 1,480,035, 180,000 I, 80,035, 150 000
* Number af treasury shares o 30
The status of churter capital contribution is as follows:
: According to the Business Registration Charter capital il kave to
Certiffeate coitribuited contribute
WD Yo VWM YD
Contribate capital in cash 1,480,035, 1E0 040 | el I, 480,055, 180,000 -
Tuotsl 1,480,033, 180,000 100% 1,490,035, 180,000 -
— | L —
3, Capital transactions with owners anil Year 2024 Yenr 2023
and distribution of dividends, profits
Orwners' equily
A i heptiening of the vear I 480,035, J 83 {0035 TR0 000
Capitad increase during the pear - -
Capital decreate diring the pear . : ., i
Al the erd of the year PARG O35 180,000 1480 035 TR0 000
Dividends, profit distdbuted — e ———
There iares S o infageal pird of the sonsofeiared franclal gafemenls, Paged?
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4, Bhares Dee. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Mumber of shares registered to be msued 148,003,518 148,003,518
Mumber of shares sold out to He public [42,003,518 48,003,518

Clvalinary shavie 148,003,518 148,003,518
Mumber of shares repurchased 310 LTl
Ohdinary share 30 e
Number of existing shares in fssue [ 48,003,208 [ 48,003,208
Cheddinary shore 1a8,03, 20 F48,003,208
Face valwe: FNIVshara, {5 ) PICR T
4. Off-balance sheets jtens Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Foreign carrencies
LSD - 17,084.39 16,891.44
ELR G033 62033
Monetary gold (Ounos) 270,00 177.00

VL ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

1. Revenue from sales and serviees rendered Year 2024 Year 2003
a. Revenme
Revenue from imding and services 957, 282,525,158 995,013,224 942
Revenue from trding real estoies, lensing lend, office and plant §86,772312,525 314,746,118,116
Total 1,844,054,837,683 Iﬂl.’l!,"]'ﬂf!-l:!-.l.ﬁﬁ
b, Bevenue Mrom leasing assels '

In the year, the Company recorded the income from leasing the land at Dai Dong Hoan Son Industrial Park in the
oonsolidated income statement in compliance with the sccounting policies prezented in Motes V.20 I the revenue (rom
leasing iz al locased in the leasing tenm, the income, profit before tax will be influenced as follows:

bl Recording revenue once Year 2024 Year 2023
Hevenue 625,091, 137,828 05 085,239,355
Profit befare tax 375,058,445,852 86,195,285,700

bi. Recording by gradual allocation on leasing term Year 2024 Year 2023
Fevenue [ 3,165,520, 748 2,790 624,687
ProfiE before i 10,527,51 3.087 2,541,037.817

The possibility af decline in profit and cash flows in the fidure resulting from the recogniion of revernee on the entive
mmormt received 10 advanee )

Acconding to the Company's assessment, the Corupany is unlikely to expericnee 2 decline in foture profits omd cash flows
becayse it has already recopnized revenue for the entive amount received in advance for the land leasc agreement al D
Diong Hean Sen Industrial Fark, Tien Du distrlet, Bac Ninh provinee, As al the date of preparing the financial statements,
the Company has collested 90% of the lease payments for this land l=ase agreement

Tiawe tivies frm am imiepal gt of i coroidamd Gkl shiieaents Pags 1%
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2. Cosi of goods suld Year 2074 Year 2023
Costs of trading and services ), B19,240,831 899,617,386,773
Cast of leasing land, office and plant 445,233,665,112 151,141,.826,134

Torel L6005 1IS0IS0 28
3 Financial Income Year 2024 Yeur 2023
Interest imcomne from deposit, loans 14,606, 736,500 23, 412,174,350
Ciarim from investment cntrustment activitics - YR, 552,020,000 .
Cialn from reveluation of menctary ilems denominated in foreign curensy 01,694,232 17,352,800
Olthers : T0 1,504 200 125,278,101
Toial 54,063, M45037 23,555,i05,251
4, Fingneinl expenses Year 1024 Yeur 2023
Interest expenses . 159, 204,600,513 85,451,685, 314
Realizpd cxchange rate difference loss 216,032,845 41,583,300
Provision/{Reversal) for cevaluation of trading sccorities and investment
hesses ’ 15570, 211,558 5,367,554, 751
Others = .
Toial lTﬂgﬂﬂ,HﬁIF 1d 91,861,265,361
5. Genernl and administration expenses Year 224 Year 2023
Lathsrur exprenses A7 2TOE03 RS 40,797, 11% 551
Tools and supplics cxpenses 1,437,561,344 2675831013
Dreprecistion and amortisation expenses 5,022.799,230 8,120,816447
Taxes, fees and charpes 1,920,453, 058 1,082,966, 186
Provision expensesf{reversal of provision) 33,002 800,750 315,101,193
Outsourced service expenses 28,704, TT6 220 25, 195,613,007
Oither expenses incash 41,124, | 82,763 40,373 R05 888
Total 15‘9.4'?3,.11']‘;1“ 116.510,363,375
6, Corrent corporate fncome tax expenses Year 2014 Year 2023
1. Current corporate income tox liabilities B6.056,729,367 35,263,461,058
2. Adjustment of corporate income [ax payable of previous years 041,494,059 261,022,135
3. Todad current corporate income tax liabilities Hip Y98 T 19,426 = 35,52431%3'1.]
7. Deferved corporate incone 1ax expense Year 2024 Year 2023
Deferved income tax Habilitles {ncurred from reversal of pavable defeored I
income tax 5.157.518.269 (105 109 453 )
Totul 5,157,518,269 (2089,109,953)
There moles fore an Mfepral por! i:lj".u'r.:- conslichabnd firraehel sty Fage 42
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B. Basic enrnings per share W e 2024 Yeur 2023
Accounting profit after corporate income tax 130,050,006, 467 39,909,176,762
Profit or luss attributable 1o ordinery equity holders 130,050,006,467 39,909,276, 761
Average ordinary shares outstanding during the year 148,043,208 148,003,208
Basic cormings per share ET0 - 170

The average ordinary shares outstanding during the year ave calenlated as follows:

Year 2024 Yenr MIZ3
Orclinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 148,003,206 148,003,208
Average ordinary shares outstunding during the year l'?-ﬁ.ﬂ[lﬂ.ll]i 144,000, L1
U, Diluted carnings per share Year 2024 Year 2023
Profil or foss allocated o shareholders owning ordinary shares 130,050,006,467 39,909, 276,762
Profit or loss allocated to shareholders owning ordinory shares after
adjusting dilution Fectors 150, 50,006,467 39,0040, 276,762
Averaga ordinary shares outstanding during the vear F48,003,208 | 48,003,208
Average ordinary shares ontstanding during the year alter adjusting
dilution Caciors 148,003,208 145,005,208
Dilutest earnings per share BTY - 270
VIL. ORIFECTIVES AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Pagor risks of financial instraments include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk,
The Board of General Directors considers the application of management policies for the ubove risks as follows!

. Market risk

Market rizk is the risk that the fair valve of future cash flows of a firancial instrument will Ducluale dug to the changes in
market prices. There are three imarket risks: interest rate risk, foreipn cnchange risk and other priee risks, for example itk
of stock price. Financial instraments affected by the market risks inclode: borrgwings and lisbilities, deposils, available-
foe-zale investmenis.

The lollowing sensibility analysis relates to the financial position of the Company a3 o Dec. 31, 2024 and Dec. 31, 2023,

The sansilivily analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratin of fixed fo floating interest
rates of the detd and the proporiion of fnancizl instrumenis in foreign currencics arc all consiant,

When caleulsting the sansibility analysis, the Board of Geperal Dineclors assumes that the sensibility of available-for-sale
lighility in the balance sheet and rebited flems in the income stuternent is affected by changes in the sssumption of
corresponding market risks, This anelysis is bazed on the financial assets and fabilities that the Company heehd as at Dec.
31, 2024 and Dec, 31, 2023,

Interest Fate rislc

Interest pate risk s the risk that the fair valoe or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Ductuate dus Lo Lhe
changes in market prices. Market risks due to change in interest rts of the Company muinly relte fo: bomawings and
Jishilities, cash and shar-term deposits,

The Company manages the interest mie nsk by analyzing the competition glatns in the market in order lo apply the
interest rate that brings benefits to the Company and still in the limit of its risk manngement,

Tihes= mmﬁll-.l.-l i frese el prred of i consoidamed G rein! SEriesnEnd, Peape 50
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1.2s

RensiBiligr ro inferest role

The sensibility of (borrowings and Tiabilivies, cash and shori-term deposits) of the Caornpany to changes that may occur at
reasaneble level in the interest rate is lustrated as follows:

Assumning that other variables remain constant, the fluctuation in the inferest mte of (borrawings) with floating interest
rate makes impest on the Company's peofit befove tax as follows:

Increase/Decrease Influences on progit

This year ' W of Basiz poinis bueffwe tax
VD + 100 (33,215,827,244)
WVHD : ¥ ; ) = 1) A3,215,827,244

Foreigh curmency (US0) + 100 4,217,453

Faneign currency (LS00 ' - 100 (4,217,457)
Laust year

VKD - ) = + 100 (28,262,910,97%)
VND - - 100 28,262 410,979

Foreign currency (US) 100 4,170,068

Foreign currency {USD] L S~ 100 {4,170,068)

Inerease/decrense of basic points being vsed to analyze the sersibility to the interest rate is assumed o the basis of
observable conditiors of the current market,

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair valoe of future cash Hows af a financial instrument will fluciuate due to the
changes in exehinge rate. The Company bears risks due to changes in the exchange rabe of the currencieys other than VNI
related dircctly to the Company’s business.

Thi: Company imanages foreign exchangs risk by considering current s expested ket status when il outlines plans for
future transaclions in forsipgn cunengies. The Company does not use any derivefive fistruments Lo prevent foreign
exuchanre rikks,

Sensibility to forelpn civrencies

The Cempany does not analyze the sensibility to the foreign currcucies since change in the forelgn eurrencies at the
roporting deate is insigniticant. :

Stock price risk

isted and unlisted stocks held by the Company are affected by market risks resulied from the uncertainty of [uture value
of investment stock. The Company managss sks of steck price by seiting up investment limit. The Company's Board of
General Directors considers and approves decisions on stock investment.

Credit risk

Credit gk is the rigk due to the uncertainty in a courgerparty’s ability Lo meol its abligaticns causing the fnancinl Joss,
The Company bears credit risks from production and deing, business setivities (mainly irade reccivables) and from its
fingncial activities inchuding deposits, foreign exchange transactions and other financinl instruments.

Trode recenables

The Company minimizes the credit risk by caly doing hustness with entitiss who have good Ananclal copacily and r:lcm:'l,-.-
kesping track of the liabilites ¢ speed up the recovery af debis, On the basis of this method and reccivables ralatad o
different customers, tho nn.::l_it risk does not concentrate on a cerlain customer,

The Board of General Directors of the Company hns aesessed thal mest-financial assets e not overdus and tmypaired
sinee these financial asset relate to prestigions customens who have gead liquidity eapacity. The devalusd financial asscts
have been Tully provided.

Thissse mlir ferur an gl oo of e consefhfierd fnarein shasanenie ! i Fage 3
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V1L

Depasit

The Company mainly maintains deposits In big and peestigions banks in Vietnam. The Company realized fhat the
concentration level of credit exposure 1o deposiig is low,

o Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that arises from the difficulty in fulfilling financial ohligations dus to lack of caplial. The
liquidity rizk of the Company mainly arses from the difference of maturity of the financial asscis and liabilities, '
The Company supervises liquidity risk by maintaining an amount of cash on hand and bank lcans at the level that the '

Board of Genersl Direcloss considers sufficient for meeting the Company's activitics and minimizes the influences of
Ructuntions on cash fHow.

The following table summarizes liquidity deadiine of the Company's financial liabilities on the hasis of estimated
pavments in accocdance with contract which are not discountesl:

Dee. 31,2024 Under | year Freaw I-5 years Over § years Tirrard
Baorrowings and liabilitics 1,395 020,679,595 2,177,295,406,711 - 3,572,315,286. 306
Trade payables 508 B57,832.618 - - S08,857,852,6148
Cther shorl-term payahles wnd
acorued expenses 1,099 02% 647,312 433 428,048 423 - 1,532,457, 605,735 “
Tatul 3,002 017170825 2,610,713,655,134 - 514513.5401534,55__9_ ;E:
Dee. 31, 2023 Uder § year From I-§ years Trén 5 ndn Totad Im
Barrowimgs and tiakbilitics [411,108,1253,23% [, a2 B07.097.053 - 3373 12028
Trade payables 432,066,431,808 = : 432,066,431,808 .
(Mher shord-lerm payables and )
accied expenses 373,781,123,351 H30,678,512,138 - L24459,635480
Total 2,216,963 678,394  2.613. 485,609,191 b 4,830, 449,287,555

The Company lms many leans that are due to be paid within the next 12 months and some loans are alroady overdue.
Coarently, the Company is canying out the necessary procedures to get the loon ¢xtension in writing.

. Secured assely

The Com pany has used part of its land vss rights, buildings, land use rights, stocks and shares it is holding as colkateral for
shiort-term and leng-term Ioans from banks (Motes V. 21]. '

The Company has used deposit contracts of Ssigontel Hi-Tech Development and Invest Co.Tad a3 collateml for the
Company's loans (Motes V.21 L

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Bee Poge 65, '

The fair value of Anancial assets und fnancial liahilities is stated at the valoe that the financial instruments are convertible
in the presenl transaction among parters, cxcept for compulsary sale or disposal,

The Company uaes the fallowing methods and sssumpiions to estimate the Tair value:

The fuir value of cash on hand and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payzbles and other short-term liabilities is
equivalont to the book value of these items because theas instruments are in short-lenm.

The foir value of securitics and ligted financial lixhilities ia determined at merkat walue.

Thppe s [ an et gl gl e conmlichelnd fmapeial staldmdnle Pape 53
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M.

A% 1o willsted sacurities investrments but under regular transactions, the fair value s the average price provided by three
independenl securities company ut the fiscal yeor end. )

The fisir value of secaritics and Tirmacial nvestments whose fair value can not be frmiy determined slnee thera exists oo
high-liquid market for secarities, finpncial investments will be stated at book vilue.

Except for the sbove ltems, the fair value of firancial assets and Habilities are estimated by discounting the cash Mows al
the inferest rale applizable to abilities with conditions, eredil risks and similar maturity tenm.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN [N THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

. Now-monetary transnctions that affect the cash Now seatement in the future: Not applicable.

. Amount held by the enferprise but unused
; Ihee, 31,2024 Jan. 01, 2024
- Value of cash and cash equivalents | 0,653 BAT, 232 A0, DK, 000, DD
- Reason: used as mortgage, pledge (o secure borrowings from banks.
. Actually borrowing ameunt
Year 2024 Year 2023
- Receipt from borrowing in accordance with normal agreement 2,653,A78382,951  2,610,682,105411

o Aginally pald amount
Year 20024 Year
- Payment of principal amount in accordance with normel sgreement 2.433.591,525,266  1,142,230,779.39
OTHER INFORMATION . &

Conlingent linbilities, commitments and ather informatian

Arcenrding to Jand Tease contract Mo, 22THOTD dated December 5, 2006 and Contract Appendiz No. OLHD-GTSC in
2006, Quang Trong Softwars Park Development Company leased land ta the Company in a |lamd ares of area of 7,645 m
at Quang Trung Software Park to invest in construction of offlce huildings operating in informaetion technology, Innd lense
term i 50 years, from Apeil 4, 2005 to April 4, 2055 in the form of anmal land rental payments.

According to land lease contract Mo, SAMHD-TD dated August 13, 2014, the People’s Committee of Bac Ninh province
teased lond o the Company wilth an wes of 430,419.2 m2 {including: 411,004.3 nid in Decision Mo, 156500-UBNTY
19,4149 m2 in Deelsion 190/QD-UBND) in Tri Phoong commune, Dai Dong commune gnd Hosn Son commine - Tign
D district, Bag Ninh provines for the purpose of building factories, service operations centers, bullding anil trading
infrustrusture of Dai Dong - Hoan Son Industrial Park, land lease teem uritil Fuly 10, 2057 in the Form of rent payment
land every year,

Accarding 1o land leasa contract No, 99/HDTD dated December 7, 2015, the People’s Committee of Bac Mirh provinee
leased land ta the Company at an area of 485,924.3 m2 in [ Dong - Hoam &on Industrial Park, Bac Winh provinee with
the purposs of using as production and business land, traffic land and green Jand in Dal Dong - Homn Son Industrisl Park,
land lease term until Tuly 10, 2057 in the Rrm of anoual lond reatal paymenls.

There are no contingent fiabilities, commitments or other. financial information cerurred from the fiscal year ended that
eed 1o be adjusted or noted in the notes t the fAnancial Satements.

. Bubsequent evenis

There arc na significant events since the fiscal year Ut need to be wdjusied or noted in the consolidaied financinl
staben2nts,

Tiase nodes forid v niegeal rard af e congediieted finomaiel sieseeenls, Fyrge 53
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3. Relted party transactions

Related parties melated to the Company include: key management members, individuals related to key management

members and other related parties.

30, Transactions ard balances with key management members and individuals reluted do key munagement members

Key management membess include: members of the Board of Management and members of the Executive Board (Bourd
of General Directors, chisf accountant). Individuals refated 1o key mansgemen! members are chose members of the key

fmagement members' fal.'nil 125,

The Company dru:s not gencrate 53[-:5 fransactions and pt‘ﬂ-"-'ld-n services 1o k&}' maragemeant members and individuzls
telated 10 key munagement members, During the year, the Compeny also did not bave other transactions with key

mangement members and individuals related o key management members,

3a.1. Debis to key management members and individuals related to key munagement members

Diehts to key manapoment members and individuals related to key menogemvenl members are presented in the notes in

V.20 {Oaher payablas)
a2, Income of Key managoment members
Fosition

+ The Board of Management and Board of Swpervisors
k. Dang Thanh Tam (%)
Mrs. Mguyen Thi Kim Thenh

Cligirman

Viee Chairman

Mes. Nguyen Cam Phuong ~ Member of Management

Mrs. Ha Thi Kiin Oanh Member of Management

Mr. Le Nguyen Hoang Anh {*) Member of M:mag:mhu__t (resignied on
Apeil 20, 2023)

P, Hpoyen Thanh Thai
telr. Mizuizen Due Tl
Pelrs. Su Mgoc Bich

Birs. Le Thi EKim Mhong

= The Board of General Directors
Mre. Mauyen Cam Phugng Member of Management, General

Wir. Le Nguyen Hoang Ank Breputy Genersl Director - Finance, Acling
Chiel Accountant

Deputy General Director - Urban
Deputy General Director - Engineesing,
Director of Thai Mguyen Branch
L‘.ll:Pul::r Clenernl Director - 1&@1&111}[{#5}'

Deputy General Director, Director of Da
Minh Branch,

dlcmber of Management
Chief Supervisor

Wember of Supervisery Boad
kMember of Supervisory Board

Mir. Pham Van Luc
e, Nguyen AnhTu

Meguyen Dang Khoa (7%}
by Wu Mpoo Anh

Tuotul

Tz e Frees o fategen! pard o the enieradivkatsg finawetiol slcdenaals

Year 2023

Yoear 2024
156 000, 000 {56, 000,000
156, 0040, 060 156, 000,000
156,000,000 156, D00, 00
- 3G, 000, 0D
156,000, T 1 546, 0000, (00
144,000,000 44,000,000
T2, QR 00 L20,000,000
120, 0, GO 120,000,004
349 350,153 151,733,851
G058 301335 IB2,051,829
T, L 25, () O G0 000
698,515,000 £93,775,608
- 394 453,707
386,726,130 373,501,455
3 844,037,618 4,545, 106,510
— i
Fapz 54

E

AR Y e S



Form B i - TN
SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & 'I."iIl: HNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SURSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the fizcal year ended December 31, 2024 Uit PN

(*+) Pursuant lo Decision No, 22B/2021/Q0-HDOT dated May 31, 2021 on remuneration for members of the Board of
Directors and the Company's Supervisory Board. Porsonally, Chairman of the Board of Menagement Mr. Dang Thanh
Tam refused to recsive remuneration. And the 2023 Anmual General Meeting of Shaveholders on April 20, 2023 approved

thes dizmissal of Member of Mansgement - Mr. Le Ngayen Hoang Anb, so no remuncration will be paid from the secand
quanter of 2023.

(e*) Accosding 1o Decision No, 2220230D-HDOT dated Movember 30, 2023 an the dismissnl of Mr. Nguyen Dang
Khoa ns Deputy General Direetor, ths Company did not pay income to Mr. Khog from December 1, 2023.

b, Transsctions and balances with other related parties
Onher related porthes 1o the Company include: subsidiaries, assosiates, joint-veniures, joimly controlicd businesses,
individuals with direet or indirect voling rights in the Company and close members within their families, businesses rin
by ey management employess and individuals with direet or indirect voting rights of the Company and ¢lose members of

thesar fimilies,

Other related parties Relutionship
Saigon Vina Telecom Garment Textiles Joint Stock Company Arzociile
SkvX Saigontel JEC Azspeiste
Long An Development Invest Toint Stock Company Associale
Saigontel Service and Distribution Joint Stock Company Associnte
Saigonte] STS Vietnam Company Limited Associate

Hung Yen Investment and Development Group Jomnt Stock Company
Morthwest Saigon City Development Corporation
Tan Phu Trung - Long An Industrisl Park One Member LLC

Same member of management board
Same member of managemenil board
Same member of menagement board

Sai Gon - Hai Phong [ndusirial Park Corporation

Toom Ha Joint Stack Company

Saigon Postel Corporation

Saigon - Ham Tan Tourist Joint Stock Company

TH Ciobal Joint Stock Comjany

Fobin Hill Towrsm Ares Company Limited

Saigon - Lam Dong Investment and Tourist Corporation
Sigon - Taa Hang Investment Joint Stock Company
Trang Cat Lirban Development One Mamber LLC
Saigon Mhon Hoi Industrial Park Joing Stock Company
BHS Reel Estate JSC

fame member of management board
same member of management board
Same member of management board
Same member of management board
Same member of management boord
Same member of management board
Same member of managemment boand
Same member of managoment baard
Same member of managemeant boand
Same member of managzment boand
Barte member of manageusen! baard

Thiese thikes e am dntegre povt af e consotisaed fnavoia statewridl.
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b1 Transactions with other related parties
Transactions arising between the Company and relsted parties are as follows:

(W ler related pardics Transactions Year 2024 Vear 2023
Saipon Wina Telecom — Recelvables from eales i service 200, 0 00, D00 25,160 826,718
Gument  Testiles Joint  rendered
Stock Compary Loars 6,370,000, 040 -

e Loan interest recsivable 281,693 8594 -
Lang An Development Borrawing 127,400 00, D0 289, 877,340,000
Invast Joint Steck Company  peoment for barmowings 428,110,000,000 30,000,000,000

[nterest payable 20,454, 09E 035 17,320,304,200
Payment for intercst 41, 485,129,246 90 T16,027
Receivables from sales and service 2,842.658,810 114,586,131
Hung Yen bnvestment and  Payment for borrowings 196,913,054,7%1 .
Development Corpotaticn ; A
' Inierest payable 1,270,007 4438 3,295,959 081
Swigontel Service and  Iolerest payable |, 388, 704,282 1.088,138,302
Disteibution Joint Stock
Company
Morthwest Saigen City  Recaivables fiom sales and seryioe 1,810,082,519 18,373, 820,000
Development Corporation rendered
Borrowing 22, 500, CHD, 000 40,000,000, 004
Interest payable _ 5,670,539 988 10,119,752,622
Interest payabie according, fo tha 27125479452 -
Payrient according Lo this conperabion 6T, 125,479,452 -
Sui Gon - Hai Phong  Reccivables from siles and service 524,724,610 11,989,526,143
Indusirial Fark Cm"pmuiic:-n réndercd
Lean principal collection 112,500,000, 00
Payment for barrowings - 5, 100, 000, D00
Kum Da Joint Stock  Homowling 5, 3000, 000, (M) -
Company Paymént for borrowings 10,960 432,963 S043 003,000
Interest payahie [ 74,705,614 -
Sajgon - Ham Tan Tousist Paysble for goods and services 27.541,821,285 $4,891,765 253
Jaini Stock Company ;
M Global Jolnt Stock  Recelvables from salos and service 582391 531 570,149,700
Company remderad _
, Payable for goods and services 12,125,160,000 3,653, 100,000
Robin Hill Tourism Area Recetvables from seles and service 0, ET, 200
Company Lirmibed reniclered . y
Loan principal callection 53,216, 800,000 20,000, D0, O
Loan inferest receivable 1,2590,537,972 7,406,016,000
Loan intercst collection 19,717,081 349 3,740,027,397
Taase .-mf.:r-r,?u_m A niwgrel pord AF e eonsnd e o fitaicial e, 0 Dot 0

-
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For the fizcal yeoar ended Decambar 31, 2024 Lieir: FND
Other related parties Transactions Yeor 2024 Year 2024
Saigon - Da MNesg  Receivahles from sales und gervice TO2,131,25%,403 B24,6435,012,554
Invesimant Joinl Steck  rendersd
Compeny Pavable for gooda and services 2, 196,840_362 1,360, BRG,689
Transfer contributing capital money the 7,000, 004,000 2 51|:||:||:|mn.|:'uﬂ
investment conperstion
Hecovery of capital contribuwlion for 50,006, (000 271,000,000,000
imvestinent cooperation )
Loans C10,000,000,000 -
Trang  Cat  Urban Interest paryable 26,546,301, 370 12,541,095,890
Dievelapment Oma Member .
LLC Payment for bormowings 110,000, (000, (00
Satzon Mhon Hoi Industrial  [nterest payable - 23,731,506,851
Park Joint Stock Company Payment for borrowings i 7B, 000,000,000

3h.2. lnvestments in equity of other entities sre used for pledge, mortgage, amil guarantes

The company uses the contributed capital and property rights arising from the contribuied capital of Smigontel Long An
Co., Lid 1o secure the Joan of this company at Vietnam Joint Stoek Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade.

Alw 3. Debis to other related parties

Debts receivabhe from other related parties are unsecured and will be peid o cash. o provision For doubtful debis iz
made for debis receivable from other related parties.

4. Prescndation of assels, income, operating results by segment
Pape 6 - 68,
&, Comparative information

Comparative figures of 2 number of Tiems on the consolidated financial satements for the fiscal year ended 2024 have
becin decided by the Board of General Directars of the Group to adjust, specifically ns follows:

[tems Code Before restated Alter restated DrifTerence

Consolidated Income

Statemeni

|. Basic earnings per share T 289 270 (19)

7. Diluted :l:ulu_'[E per share 7l 289 I (1%)
— — ey

&, Information an going-concern: The Company eonlinues its eperation in the fufure,

Prepared by Acting CHief Accountant S CONG TY al Director
_ {l/ 3( COPHAN
{II' r’_.-F“rF * |'{:II+E #.:*E. I

|
| 'l
--‘Il_ -,[_.|_.J:L

T | Eond,

e . .?: [:F .Ii:.l: :
Pham Thi Cam Van I:i’r:i‘:uyn Huang Anh hﬁ_“”’?‘igum—

Thess notes i en imegeal pre of e cansndidined froncial dsmees. Page 37
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Fﬂ.r fhﬁﬂﬂ!]‘ﬂ'—ﬁr #?Td-flﬂ. L}E-\.-"'EMHF j.ll_. T4 Lises mI'D
V.2. Financial investments
b. Leng-term fnancial investments Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Accommlated Apcumulated
profit/loss) from  Value according to profitfiloss) from  Valse sceording to
Original cost associntes the equity method Original cost pssociates the equity method
- Investments in ventures and associates 813,763,680,000 14,400,833 445 $18,174,513,445 802,248,680,000 209,857,141 B10,548,537.141
Saizon Vina Telccom Gamment
Textiles JISC (1) 139,368, 680,000 (4,716,927,625) 134,651,752.375 139, 368,680.000 (3.023,957,353} 156,344,741 668
OlyX Snigontel JSC (2) 3 AR, 000,000 (271,897,148) 3,208,102 852 3, AR, 000,000 (259,348,701 3,200,653, 29
Long An Development and Invest JSC
(33 &0, 000, 000,000 18,814,509,5351 £18,814,500,551 00, (00, OO0, GO0 10,854, B75, 645 610,854, B79,645
Ban Lac Spirituality Fark J15C (4] 3,000, 000,000 (410,874,501) 20,589,125599 30,000,000,000 {188.299,769) Z9.811,700,231
Saigontel Service and Distribution
ISC (5} 20 A00, D00, 000 st ) 30,395,151,539 28,400,000,003 TiR561,298 30316,361.258
Saigonte] STS Vietnzm Co., Ltd (8) 11,515,000,000 %7170 [1,515,871,72% = -
Tatal S’ii"-’ﬂ.ﬂ 14,410,533 445 BZE 174,502,445 Bﬂl.l#ﬂ.ﬁﬂﬂ.ﬂiﬂ E,Mi.ﬂﬁ".fflﬂ R10,548,537,141

Thesa woles form v integral part of the sonralidated finaeclal HARMIENLL
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Forthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 Unit: FNLD
b, Long-terns financial investments Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Original cozt Provision Met value Orizinal cost Provision Nel valoe
- Investments ia other entities T80,026,372,585 - (156,903 431,631) 544,032, 940,953 TOROI33TL S8 (140,423,220074)  559.600,152,511
Saigon - (uy Whon Minerals 1SC (7) 220.000,000,000  (122,815,000,000) 97,185,000,000- 220000000000  (122,815,000,000) 97, 185,000,000
Saigon Postz| Corporetion (8) 265,313, 144,435 (24,085,687, 906) 240, 227,456,539 X65,313,144,245 (14,682 263 955) 230,630,880,450
Hung Yen Investment and
Developmant Corporation {9) 0, N, eI, DN - 6, 0, DD, 000 Ei CH0, 000, D . S0, HD D00, D00
Vung Tau Investment Group JSC (18) 50,460, 000,000 (1,011,560,046) 55,448.639.954 59, 460,000,000 (624,597,399) $8,835,402,601
Saigon Hi-Tech Park Infrastructurs
Development [nvest JSC (11) 28 B12,000,000 . 28,512,000,000 28,812,000,000 = 28,812,000,000
Hure Vuong Umivetsity (12) 2,200,000,500 (2,300,000,000) - 2. 300,000,000 (2, 300,000,000)
Saipon - Binh Thuan [nvestment
Development Power Plant JEC (13} 29,246,203, 140 {1,335,650) 29,244 544 460 20.746,203,144 {1,358,660) 20,244,844 1460
Viet So Investiment JSC 4,880,025,000 {4,880,025,000h - #,880,025,000 - 4,250,025,000
SPT Building Tnvestnent Co., Lid 15,000,000 - 15, D00 00 172,000, 0 - |2, 000, 000
Tatal T00,026,372,585 (155,993,431,632) - S44032.940.853 _ 700,023,372,565 (140,423.220,074) 559,600.152.511

Present additisnal information for each nvestment in joiet veniercs, associates aad Investments in equity of other cntifies.

(11 As at December 31, 2024, SGT owns 13,956,868 shares of Saigen Vina Telecom Uarment Textilea ISC (oquivalent to 48.93%)

(2) As at December 31, 2024, SGT owns 348,000 shares of SkyX Saigontel J5C (equivalent 1o 30%).

(3} According to the Business Registration Certificate No. 1101977259 isawed by the Department of Planning and Investment of Long An Province for the first time on Pebruary 18,
2021, Saigon Telecommunications Techmology Corporation invested YND 600,000,000,000 in Leng An Development Investment Joint Stock Company (equivalent to 402 of charter

capitah)

4} According to the Business Registeation Cert:ficate No, 2301 163643 dated January 11, 2021 issued by the Deparmment of Planning and [avestriert of Bac Ninh Provines, Saigonts]

Real Estate Investment Joint Stock Company invested VHD 30,000,000,000 in Bao Lac Spiritual Park Joint Stock Campany, equivalant i 3094 of charter capital.

There maker i aot-tegrd sord af the comsshicaed fnancis | siaemers,

Pape 30



SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES g ; Form B 0% ONMHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS _ :
For the fiscal year ended Decomber 31, 2024 Einit: ¥VD

(5} According to the Busincss Registratlon Certificate Mo, 0313042600 issoed by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chl Minh City for the first time on December &,
2014, the 9th change on March 28, 2022, Saigon Telecommunication Teshnalogy Corporation invested YIND 29.400,000,000 in Saiponiel Distribution and Service Joiml Stock
Company [cquivalent te 36.75% of charter capital).

(6] According to Business Regisration Cerlificate No. 0318097177 issued by the Department of Planning and Invesiment of Ho Chi Mioh City for the first time an October 12, 023,
Saizon Telesommunization Technology Corporation invested YIND 1 1.515.000,000 {equivalent to 49.00% of charter capital) in Saigonte] STS Viemam Company Lirmited, -

(7} Aceording to Business Registration Cettificate No. 4100424513 issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Binh Dink Province, the total charter capital of Saigon CRuy
Whon Mineral Joint Stock Company is WD 1,100,000,000,000. The investment fiae to owm 5. 7% of the charter capital (equivalent 1 WND 62,700,000,000) ef this Compary is VD
220,000,000,000. As of December 31, 2024, the Company has made a provision for investment logsses in S0C of VIND 122,815,000,000

(8) According to the Business Reglswarion Certificate No. 0300845034 issied by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh Ciry, the tolal charter capital of Saigon
Past and Telecommunications Services Joint Stock Compary fs VND 1,203,917,290,000. The investment fea to own 13.2%% of the charter capital (cquivalent to VMDD
160,036, 650,000} of this Company iz YND 265,313,144,445, The Company makes 8 provision for investment losses in Saigen Post and Telecommunlestion Services loint Stock -
Company ("SPT"} for the investment valns squivalent to the Company's owrership ratio over SPT's charer capital according to Circular 48201 9/ TT-BTC dated August 8, 2019,

(%) According to Busingss Regiswation Certificats Mo, (901095293 issued by-the Departrnent of Planning and Investment of Hung. Yen Province for the first time on February 3, 2011,
Saigps Telecommunieatinn Technology Corporation invested in Hung Yen Invesowent and Development Greup Joint Stock Company with VIND 90,000,000,000 (equivalent to 3% of
charter capifal).

{10 Aczording to the Business Registration Certificata No. 3502434723 issmed by the Department of Flanning and Investment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province, the total charter capital
of Vung Tan Investrnant Group Joint Stock Company i3 VND 1,060,000,000,000 {in which the Company’s registered capital contribution ratic is 16,909 of the totnl charter capital). Az
at December 31, 2024, Saigon Telecommunication Techaology Corporation has actually contributed VD 59,460,000,000, the remaming charter capital to be invested in WVung Tau
Invegtmant Group Joint Stock Compary is VND | 10,440,000,004.

{113 As st December 31, 2024, 3GT gwns 2,881,200 shares of Sajgen Hi-Tech Park Investment and Developmean Toint Stock Company {equivalent to 9.6% of chaster capatal), Main
activities: Investing in construction and trading of technical infrastructore works. Currently, Saipon High-Tech Park Investment and Development Joint Stock Compary his ceased
sperations. Saigon Telecommunication Technology Joim Stock Company is eompleting procedures to offser debt payabie with the amount the Comparry has invested in the amount of
VD 28,812,000,000 to divest from an investment project thit the Company finds ineffective.

(12) As ot December 21, 2024, SGT owns 230,000 shares of Hung Vuong University of Techrology {equivalert to 4.6% of charter capital). Main activities: Bducation, Cureently, the
aehoal igin the restructuring phase after re-enroliment.

{13) As ot December 31, 2024, 30T owns 1,887,61% shares of Saigon Binh Thuan Pawer Plant Investment ared Development Joint Stock Company. Main activities: Production,
transmission and distibution of clectrizity. Saigon Binh Thuan Power Flant Development Irvestment Toint Stock Company has not yes come into eperation. The company is carrying
aut procedares 10 adjust the project planning o submit To competent authorities for approval. According to the direction of the Board of Directors, SGT will continue to invest in this
project,

Thisct weled faorm an imbzzral part of tha sarselidoted fimanc (ol Srkaheme. o “':TJ‘.".._‘ Er Fogr (1



SAIGON TELECOMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGIES CORFORATION AND SU BSIDIARIES * Form B 08 - DNHN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fov the fiveal vear ended December 31, 2024 Uitz FND

Except for Saigpa < Quy Mhon Mincrals J5L's shares listed on Upeom, has market iading prices. The remainina investments' fair value cannot be determined becausa thers & o
Eransatlion price.
Tl Company vees part of the above investments 10 sacure the Company's loans as explained in Mote V.21 and guarsstees for related companies as explained in MNote K.3bi

The situation of Auctuations in provisions for Tnvesteents in equity of ather entities is as follows:

Year 2024 Year 2004
Opening balance T 140,423.220,074 135035225323
Additional provizion 15,570,211,558 5,367.994,751
Clasing halance 155,003, 431,632 140,423,220,074

f—=

Thazs mater farm o e part of the coerofidaed fnameial maremenr, Frge &1
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For the flcal year ended December 31, 2024 Unie. KND
V.7. Donbiful debis Dec. 31, 2024 Jan, 01,2024
Original cost Recoverable value Deblors Original cost Recoverable value Overdue time
Oither organizations and individuals
Trade receivables 4,126,259,453 More than 3 years 4,125,259 453 £ Muore than 3 yeors
Prepaymants to suppliers 2.515.267,154 - hore then 3 vears 2.515.267.154 = More than 3 years
Receivablas from loans 10,662,000, 0KH} e than 3 years 14, 662.000,000 10,662,000,000
« Wien Dong Vietnam Land JSC 10, 662,000,000 Jo, 862, 000,000 10,662,000, D00
Orther reccivables 66,281,346,078 7.500,000,000 Mare than 3 years £6,281,345,078 10,930,801,750
- Treyen Hink Hueu Mghi J5C 31,860,953 000 - More than 3 years 34, 869,953,000 E Move thar I vecrs
From 2 years 1o 3
« Safgon Foitel Corporation 25,000,000, 000 7500, 000,080 wears 25,000,000.000 25, (0, e, 000
- Vien Dong Fietmam Land JSO 4,930 801,730 More than 2 years 4030801 750 4.930,801,750
- Qihers 4480391, 328 Muore than 2 yeary 4 480 591,318 - More thar 3 years
Total §3,584,872,685 7,500,000, b4 83.584,872,685 40,592, 801,750
= o — = 4 =
The sitaation of fluctaations in provisions for receivables Is as follows:
Shori-term Long-term
aceounts receivable  accounts receivable Total
Opening balance #2,992,070,935 42,002 070,938
Additional provision 15,592,801, 750 17,500, 000,000 33,092,801,730
Beversal of provision - =
Closing balance 53 584,872,685 I‘?.Eﬂﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂﬁ] 76,084,871,685
Thess motas fowm an integral part of the corsolidated finanzial srenemens. Page 52
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V.11. Tangible fixed assets

. —z-

CRE

Ytems Buildings & structures Mach_intry & Transportation & Others tangible Mixed Total
equipment . facilities asscts

{riginal cost

Opening balance 61,636.343,361 8.186,442,654 37.475,773,952 47,469,997,963 154,768,557,930
Newe purchase 53425000 42,654,545 I Qi8,685. 453 503,454 283 1,618,289,285
Recategorization . (243, 164,702) - 243, 164, 702 -

Closing balance 61,689,838 351 1.985,932.497 38,494,459,407 48.216,616,950 156,386,647,215

Accamulated depreciation

Opening balance 3T ART2Z1T. 446 7774088421 23,452 375,800 22,938, 404,641 01,652, 086,308
Charge for the year 3,083 440,697 T, 402 430 5004 565, 406 347,000,418 12305,468.957
Recarggorizarion - (225 046.562) - 223,046,562 -

Closing halance 41,170,658,143 7.695,504,295 28 456,941,206 26,634,451, 621 103,957 555,265

Met book value

Opening balance 24,149,125,915 412,354,233 14,023,398,152 24,531,593 322 63,116,471,622

M__ 20.519,180,218 200,428,202 10,037,518,201 21,582 165,320 52,419.291.950

— — __ 1

* Ending net book value of tangible fixed assets pledged/mertgaged as koan secarity: VND 15 898 055,077.

* Ending original costs of tangible fixed assets—fully depreciated but still in use: VND 16,511.001,318,

+ Ending original costs of tangible fixed azsets—waiting to be disposed: Mot incurred.

* Commitments on tangible fived assets scquisitions, sales of large value: ot incurred.

= Other changes on tangible fixed assets: Not incurred,

Thess malds form an ieseprad pars of tee consofickned Taoneial siafemenis, Pore 43
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For-the fiscal year enced December 71, 2024

V.23 Dwoer's ciuitly

L. Comperizon schedule for changes in Owner™s equity
THems- Paid-in capital Share premiism Treasury slun'ﬂ_‘-_i_ U“;ii:;?d N“f::::i"“’ Total

Balance as of Jan, 01, 2023 1,480,035, 150,000 (465,119,800 (3,100, HH)) 171,135,586,497 207.904,931,717 1,858,607,475 414

Frofit - - 39009276, 7462 2500, 700 486 41, 510,046,248

Mon-conirelling sharcholders conmbuate

additional capitl to the Subsidiany - = - - 652, 500,01, 00 62, 500,000,000
Balamce as of Dec: 31 223 1,430,035, 180,000 {465,119 500) (3,100,000) 200,044 RBG3 239 273,305,701 203 1, 963907, 524,662
Balanee as of Jan, 01, 2024 1,450,035, 150,000 {465,114,500) (3.100,000) 211,044,863,25% 273,305,701,204 1,963,217,524 662

Profit - - - 130,050,006 467 (2,548, 567031} 127.501,438,530
Balance as of Dee 31, 2034 1 AS03S, 150,000 (465,119 800} {5 100, 000y L 2410 BES, TG 270757133273 é@ AIEPUEJIHE
T — ] =
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For the fiseaf yoor ended December 31, 2024
Vil Fimancial assets and financial Babililies
The fallowing table specifles book value and fair value of the financial insiruments presenied in the censolidated financml statemants:
ook value Frir valus
Dec. 31, 2024 Dec. 51,2023 Dec. 31, 2024 Dec. 31, 2023
Valne Provigion Value Provisien
Firancial assets
- Hebd-1o-matarity investments 187 387,200,350 - 1,000,000, 0040 - LET 387 209,350 1,008,000,000
- Trade receivables 1,150,444, 753,046 (4,126,259 453) 638 512,543, 838 14,126,259 453) 1,146,318,493 593 624,486,284, 385
- Receivables from boans 107, 703,200,000 (10,662, 000, 000) 140,799,833,3533 = 97,04 1,200,000 14421,‘-'99,3_33.333
- Other receivables 483 085 597311 (23,172,254,750) 1,167,197,084.778 {741,453,000) 460,813,392,561 1,166,455,631,778
- Oither financial assets 2,244 398,000 2 1,413,933,000 - 2245 398,000  1,413,333,000
- Cash ard cash equivalents 123,604 355 065 - 0§, 734,290,015 - 123,604,3 13,065 08,754 259,015
TOTAL 1,085, 370,502,772 {]?.96&,51&,1292 1.1]:!?.?17.151&64 g {4.867. 712 453) 2,01 7,409,988 S60 Lnaz.un_&:.u..dl 1
Fioaneial ishilities e
- Borrowings and Habilities 1,372,325,286,306 3,373,923,220,288 . 3,436,536,461.593 3,329,201,017,804
- Trade pavables S08.B5T.852.618 - 432 056,431,808 - S0%.857.552,018 432,066 431, B08
- Other payables 1,532 457 695,735 5 1,024,459,63 5,489 - 1,532,457,695,735 1,024,459 635 489
TOTAL iﬁlﬁdﬂmﬁﬁ! - 4. 820449, 187,585 - g:r:r.sﬁz,mgda 4,785, 727,085,101
Thesy motes farm o eagral part of the pamralimtan Feconcial stefamony. Fioge 63
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X, d Presentation of assets, income, operating resalis by sepment:

The Board of General Directors of the Company defines that the issuing managemental desisions of the Company mainky
bases on types of products, services that the Comphay provides, not an the geographical region where the Campany provides
its products, services, Therefore, the major report is by business sector,

4.1 Mnjnt' segment reporting! by business .'H.'Etﬂr

As ot December 11, 2024, the Company FI.'.EIIZII[E -:rpamlmﬂ by busines scgments; Trading - serviee astivities mnd other
activities,. offics, land & factory leasing af:rlutlts and n:al. estate business activitics. The company mnalyees detailed
indicatons h}'d:pm"lmml as follows:

{MTice, land & Renl esiaie
Troding, services factory lensing business activities,
— nmd ather activities aetivities re-leasing of land Tl
{pperating lease)  with infrastrectore
1. Met revenue from sales and Q57 282,525,158 47,113,023 334 539,654,300,101  1,844,054,837,683
services rendersd
2, Cpatof goods sold BO0E L9, 200 821 13,222 267,592 432,011,397,520  1.336,052,905,933
3, Gross profit Trom sales and 66,463,284 337 33,801,654, T4 A0T7 i 992 6T ] S0E,001,%31.750
LECYVICES rls_ndtt'f:d. . ;
4. Bepgment assets B6,Z72,000  3400,721,645075 3400307917076
5, Unnlleoated ssats 4,844 090 T3 463
Tl msseis 8. 244,898 648 541
6. Sogmant linhilitien . 385,754,204 474 - 385,354,204,474
7. Unalloeated liabilities 5.768, 125,480,369
Tatal Habilitles 6,153, 4 TH 685,343
— e

As gt December 31, 2003, the Company reports operations by basiness segments: Trading - - service aclivilics and ather
mctivitics, office, land & factary leasidg activities and real sstate business activities. The compamy analyzes detailed
indicotors by department as follows:

Offiee, land & Real estate
Ttems e, AT hcan
{operating fease)  will infrastrocture
{. Met ravenue from aales andd 05 013,224,947 a0, 556,050,570 210,027 548 1,309,759,343,058
services‘rendered
2. Cost of goods sold 804 617,386,773 . 11,491, 3789213 139,650447 211 1,030,755 212 897
3. Ciross profit from sabes and 15,395 538,169 To044,711,657 84,554 SR IES 150, 000,130,161
serviees rendered
4. Scpment assels §.519.765,749 2,704,708 358,003 315,711.000,923  2,745,956,134,675
3. Uniallogated assets” A 401,725,547 742
Total assets 7,147 681,682,417
f. Segment linhilites - ST T 026,515 . 177, 17TL.926,835-
7. Unallecated linbilities ' 4,506,386,230,920
Totul Nizbillbes _ 5,183,764, 157,755

Mhese nales forme ar satsgral pord gl consolidated frormedal slatemests
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4.2 Minor segment repart: by geographical region

As at Docamber 31, 2024, the Company made seport by geographical reglon: Bac Minh, HCMC,

Ha Maoi, Long An, Thai Nguyen, Da Nang. The Company nalyses lems by

geographical region as follons:
Items Bac Ninh HCMC Ha Noi Long An Thai Mguyen Da Kang Total
1. Met reverss from sales and senvicas BAE 945 884,277 171,514, 184,283 B02,708,024,551 330,306,364 163,436,358 1, B, 054,837 603
rendersd
2. Cose of goods sold A, 166530953  1E3.ETSS09.256  79L,908,301232 W4T . L336,05,904,335
3. Gross profit from sales and 438,338,353.324 £7,040,677,027 18,798,723,130 194,341 852 163,636,368 208,0401,031,750
services remdered
4. Segment assets 1292509231308 3,704,090 636,425 §R4,I31T0452 1, 936,531,604,067 |&7,16,803,693 138, 1TEEIRIRT RII6,599,059,161
5. Unalleented assets - - - = 2 . 8,345,589, 380
Tuotal assets 1M NSINI G 204091636 425 SRASEVITOE5E 1SS0 06T IRT.516,883,693 PI8,176,613.320 8244853648541
6. Sepment liabilities 347,342,900, 381 2,563,501 832 B6h TMGATI542493 1,264,270,£00 303 187,163 083,076 2513381387 6145354840436
7. Unsllocated liabilities . . = . . TE14.842.507
Tatal linhilities LT3 501,381 2563601400866 TOATIS42ATS 1264470455303 187,163 081,076 LH13,80387 _ 6,153,479,685 345
Page &7
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For tha fiseal year ended December 31, 2024 Ulnit: VND

4.2 Minor segment report: by gesgraphical region (comt.}

As at December 31, 2023, the Company made report by Seographical region: Bee Minh, HCMC, Ha Mol, Lang An, Thal Nguyen, Da Nang, The Company analyses ilems by

geographical regice as follows:

Tems Bae Ninh HCMC Ha Noi Lang An Thai Nguyen Da Nang Tatal
1. Wi revenus from sales and services AL, 103,508 445 136,702,229 434 B T2L6PENTR S5 TR0 TR [N ERELS DO EOOLO00 1309754 345,038
rendered
2. Cost of geoda sald 133, 441,8346,365 §9.330,099,442 373,573,024 487 $2,732.563 : 10,000,000 1,050,759, 212,897
13226072, 554 43,371 228.552 35,200,074,482 3,107,135 163 A36 368 BLITEE LTI 259,000,150, 161

3. Gross profit from sales and
services renderad

4. Segment assets I,U68, 120,563,362 2,654,542, 1705013 BO3,007. k22,670 LA56, 052,551 876 143, B9, 995,852 191,691, 550.364  7.137.352,003,057

5. Unallocatad stcets - - - - - . 103495 280,330

Total sasets L,168,000,363,360 1934349178913 oo, 00TE2LETI  1.AS6.0H2 991 H7a 143 BTH 93,852 131,681,550564 T I4T.AHLGET AT

6.  Segment lizbilities 517353124105 2,677,021 58,779 E43,082 376000 1,165 5B0,TA0,TA3 142 403 £30,071 6,040.350.496 512072425 200

7. Upallocated Habibitles = s 2 = - 1,690,734, 540

Total babilites EI.TI]&TI-E.IIH 55‘1?&15@5_39_,,7‘7? G633 283 516 0% 1,165,580, 740,763 142 493 58,971 _ o, 1801, 320 406 Ellﬁ.mm.ﬂl
Page &7

Thess masss i an ivcegrel parr o thz conpolidated inanciol sialeaencs, w
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